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Vision
“To be the most coveted Savings and Investment company,
while leading the effort to make the saving
population and industry grow”

Mission
“To be the preferred Savings and Investment Manager in Pakistan

by being best in class in customer services
and maximizing stakcholders’ value™

Core Values

HONESTY
We ensure to build trust through responsible actions and honest
relationships with our colleagues, customers and stakcholders

INTEGRITY
We work with integrity in everything we do, and embody our principles
when working with stakeholders as well as internal and exiernal customers.
We assure to promote the integrity for the ultimate benefit for everyone

ETHICS
As a trusted custodian of customer funds, we are commitied to
conforming to the highest level of ethical standards in the workplace
that mvolves putting customer interest first and maintaining
our stakcholders trust in the Company

PROFESSIONALISM
We value everyone and treat our external and internal
customers and our stakcholders with respect, dignity and professionalism
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of MCB Investment Management Limited will
be held on Monday, 28" October, 2024 at 11:30 am_at Sapphire Hall, Ramada Creek, Zulfigar Street 1,
DHA Phase VI, Karachi. Pakistan, as well a3 through electronic means’ Video link facility to transact the

tollowing businesses:

Ordinary Businesses:

5

To confirm the manutes of the last AGM General Meeting held on October 23, 2023.

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2024 together with Directors” and Auditors” Reports thereon,

As required under secthion 223 of the Companies Act, 20017 the Annual Report of the Company for the
finanecial vear ended June 30, 2024, has been uploaded on the Company’s website which can be downloaded
aceessing the following link / QR Code:

To declare and approve final cash dividénd of 25 percent 1.¢. Rs, 2.5 per ordinary share of Rs. [0/- each for
the year ended Jupe 30, 2024, a5 recommended by the Board of Directors,

To appoint external auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2025 and fix their remuneration.
The Board of Directors. on the recommendation of Awdit Committee of the Company, has proposed the
appointment of M/s. AF. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants, as external auditors of the Company for the
vear ending June 30, 2025,

Special Business:

5.

To consider and, if theught fit. 1o pass with or without modification(s), the following as a Special
Resolution under section 32(1)(¢) of the Companics Act, 2017 to approve alterations in the object clause
(I of the Memorandum of Association of the Company to add the business of REI'T Management
Services and Private Fund Management Services,

SRESOLVED THAT subject to prior approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
Commussion) under Bule 5(6)h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 {the Rules). after Cluuse 3 addition of Clawse 3A. and 3B. (as appearing in the 'Statement of
Material Facts™) in the abject clause (1) of the Memorandam of Association of the Company, be herohy
approved and adopted to undertake the business of REIT Management Services under the Real Estate
Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 and Private Fund Management Services under Private Funds
Regulations, 2015,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in addition 1o aforesaid changes in the Memorandum ol Association
approved by the members as special resolution, any changes in the Memorandum of Association as may be
advised and directed by Commission and agreed by the Chicl’ Exceutive of the Company shall be treated as
approved and adopted by the members from the date of passing of this special resolution as part of this
Special Resolution without the need of the members approval and shall have effect accordingly.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ihe Chief Executive and/or Company Secretary and /or Chief Financial
Officer of the Company be and are hereby jointly or severally authorized o prepare, finalize, execute and
file all necessary documents, and do all necessary acts, deeds, and things in connection therewith and
ancillary thereto as may be required or expedient to give effect to the above resolution and to complete all
necessary corporate and legal complianeces and formalities.”

Any Other Business

[

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

Statement under Section 134¢3) of the Companies Ace, 2007 in respect of special business contained in Agenda
fiem Number 3 is annexed o the netice being sent i the members.

By Order of the Board

Oetoher 07, 2024 Altal Ahmad Faisal
Karachi, Company Secretary

IMPORTANT NOTICES:

PARTICIPATION VIA PHYSICAL PRESENCE OR THROUGH VIDEO LINK FACILITY

The Company intend to convene this AGM with mimimal physical interaction of members while ensuring
compliance with the quorum requirements and requests the members to consolidate their attendance and voting
at the AGM through proxies.

Members, mterested o participate i the meeung via video Honk facilivy, are requested 10 email their Mame,
Folio Number / participant’s 1D number, Cell Number, CNIC / Passport Number with subject “Regisiration
for MCBFUNDS AGM™ along with valid copy of hoth sides of Computerized Mational Identity Card
(CNIC) ot agmd@mebfonds,com. Video link and login credentials will be shared with only those members
whose emuils. contuining all the required particulars, are received at least forty-gight (48) hours before the
time of AGM.

Members can also provide their comments and guestions for the agenda items of the AGM at the cmail
address agmi@ meblunds.com.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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CNIC No. /
Name of member Passport No. Fuolin / CDS No. Cell No. Email address

Login facility will be opened thirty minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants o join the
meeting aftér identilication process. Members will be able to logm and participate in AGM proceedings
through their devices after completing all the formalities required for the identification and verilication of the
members and members will be encouraged 1o participate in the AGM o consolidate their attendance and
participation through proxies,

NOTICE OF BOOK CLOSURE
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, October 22, 2024, 1o Monday,
October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order a1 the office of our Share Registrar M/s.

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, Block B, SMUHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi —
T440H), by the close of business (5:00 p.n) on Monday October 21, 2024, will be considered in time for the
determination of the entitlement of the shareholders 1o attend and vole at the meeling,

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY AND PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM

A member entitled 1o attend, speak and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another person as his'her proxy
1o attend, speak and vote for histher behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy has the
right to demand and join in demanding a poll and vote on a poll.

The instrument appointing proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed, as the case may be, or a notarially certified copy of the power ar autharity, must be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at least 48 working hours before the time of the meeting, In the case of
corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of atiorney with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided carlier) along with proxy form to the Company. Form of Proxy is
enclosed in English and Urdu language.

Reneficial owners of the physical shares and the shares deposited with the Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (CDC) and / or their prosies are required 1o produce their original Computerized National
Ldentity Card (CNIC) or Passport for identification purpose at the time of atending the meting,

The members are herchy notified that pursuant {0 Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 (“the
Regulations™) amended through Notification dated December 035, 2022, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commussion of Pakistan (“SECP"), SECP has directed all the listed companies to provide the right
to voie through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses clussitied as
special business,

Accordingly, members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vole through electronic
voting facility or vorng by post for the special business in its forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be held
on Monday, 28" October, 2024 at 11:30 am at Sapphire Hall, Ramada Creek, Zulfigar Street 1, DHA

Phase V111, Karachi, Pakistan, in accordance with the requirements and subject to the conditions contained

in the sforesuid Regulations.

For the convenience of the Members, ballot paper is annexed o this notice and the same {5 also available on
the Company’s website al www.meblunds.com for download,

Member are requested to update their details together with Name, Folio/ CDC Account No., E-mail address,
contacl number o the share registrar of the compuny M/s. CDC Shure Registrar Services Limated, CDC
House, Black B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-c-Faisal, Karachi — 74400,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING

{a) Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company
who have their valid CHNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail sddresses available in the negister of members
of the Company by the close of business of Monday, October 21, 2024

{b) The web address, login details. will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will be
communicated o members through SMS from web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (being
the c-voting service provider),

(e} ldentity of the members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be authenticated through electronic
signadure or authentication for login.

(d) E-Voting lines will start from October 25, 2024, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on October 27, 2024 at
5:00 p.m. Members can east their votes any time during this period. Onee the vote on a resolution 15 cast by o
Member, he £ she shall not be allowed 1o change it subsegquently.

PROCEDURE FOR VOTING THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC), should reach the Chairman of the meeting through post on the Company's registered
address Adamjee House, Ind Floor, L1 Clundrignr Road, Karachi or email at chairmanf@mebfunds.com one
day before the Annual General Meeting to be held on October 28, 2024, during working hours. The signature
on the ballot paper shall match the signature on CNIC.

Far the convenience of the Members, ballol paper is annexed (0 this notice and the same is also available on
the Company's webslte at www.mchfunds.com for download.

VIDEQ-CONFERENCE FACILITY

If the members holding 10 per cent (ten percent] of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other eity, the
Company shall provide the facility of video-conference to such members for attending Annual General
Meeting of the Company, if se, demanded by such members i writing to the Company at least seven (71 days
before the date of the meeting.

Consent for Videp-Conference Facility

Li'We, . being g member of MCB Investment Management Limited holder of
Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio/CDC Participant 1D & Sub-Account/Invesior Account No.
hereby opt for participation in the Anoual General Mectung to be held on
Monday. October 28, 2024 or any adjowmed meeting through video-conlerence facility at

i Please insert name of the City)

Date; Stgnature of Member:

NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF VALID CNIC COPIES (MANDATORY)
Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC, are requested to submit the
same along with folio mumber, ot the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share Registrar.

CHANGE IN MEMBERS ADDRESSES

Members having physical sharcholding are requested to immediately notify any change in their address to the
Share Registrar Mis, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. Whereas, CDC account holders are requested to
contact their respective CDS participant/broker/ Investor Account Services.
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1.

L.

CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO BOOK-ENTRY FORM

In compliance with section 72 of the Componies Act, 2017 and SECI's letter No, CSIVED/Misc./2016-639-
640 dated 26 March 2021, listed companies pre required to replace existing physical shares issued by them
imo Book-Entry Form. In view of the above requirement, shareholders of the Company having physical
folios! share certificates are requested to convert their shares from physical form into Book-Entry Form as
suon as possible,

Conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form would facilitate the sharcholders in many ways e sale
costody of shares, readily available market for instant sale and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of loss &
damage, easy & safe transfer with lesser formalities as compared to physical shares. The shareholders of the
Compuany may contact Share Registrar of the Company [i.e. M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited] for
assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form,

PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY (MANDATORY REQUIREMINT)

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations, 2017, every listed Company is requited to pay dividend, il any, to their members compulsorily
through electronic mode by directly erediting the same in their bank secount provided by them. The Company
shall be bound to withhold dividend of these members who do not provide their bunk details.

Members are required to provide to the Company’s Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio
number. complete bank account number (IBAN), and title of bank account. CDC sccount holders should
submit their request dirgetly to their broker (participant)/ CDC

Thoese sharcholders who have stll not provided their IBAN are once again requested 1o fill in “Electronic
Credit Mandate Form™ and send 1t duly sigoed aloog with a copy of valid CNIC o ther respective CDC
participant / CDC Investor gecount services (in case of sharcholding o Book Entry Form) or 1o the
Company’s Share Registrar M5, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (CDCSRSL), CDC House, 949-B,
HBlock *B°, S.MUC H.S,, Main Shahrah-g-Farsal, Karachi=-74400 (in case of shareholding i Physical Form).

A Dividend Mandate Form 15 available at the Registered Office of the Company ond can also be downloaded
from the Company’s website

DEDUCTION OF WITHHOLDING TAX ON THE AMOUNT OF DIVIDEND UNDER SECTION 150
THE INCOME TAX ORDINANCE, 2001 iMANDATORY)

Pursuant to section 1530 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2000, the rates of deduction of meome tax from
dividend payments under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 are as follows;

a) Rate of tnx deduction for persons appearing in the Active Tax Payers List: 13% per cent
b} Rate of tax deduction for persons not appearing in the Active Tax Payers List; 30% per cent

The tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend (@ 15 per cent shall be made for the payment of dividend to
shareholders whose names are entered 10 the Active Tax Payers Lt provided on the websiie of FBR, before
elose of business hour (3:00 pon)oon Monday, October 21, 2024 stherwise tax on the cash dividend will be
deducted @ 30 per cent, Active Tax Pavers List 15 available at Federal Board of Revenue’s (FBR) website:
httpyfwww. fbr.gov.pk

Further, according to clarfication received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR). with-holding tax will be
determined separately on ‘Filer™Mon-Filer”™ status of Principal sharcholder as well as joint-holden(s) based on
thetr shareholding proportions. in case of joint accounts,
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The required information must reach our Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited by the
close of business (5:00 p.m. ) on Monday, Oclober 21, 2024; otherwise, it will be assumed that the shares are
cgually held by Principal sharcholder and Joint Holder(s),

In this regard, all sharcholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide sharcholding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect af shures held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing as
follows:

Folio/CDC Total Principal Sharcholders Joint Halder (5}
Ale No. | numberaf | Name and Shareholding Name and Sharcholding
shares CNIC No. Proportion (Mo, CNIC Mo, Propurtion
of Shares) {No. of Shares)

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required 1o have their National Tax Number (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whercas corporate physical sharcholders should send a copy of their
NTN certificate 1o the Company or Share Registrar, The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificaies,
as the case may be. must guote Company name and their respective folio numbers,

For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Company and/or the Share Registrar at the
following phone Numbers, email addresses:

Company: MCB Investment Management Limited

UAN: 11-11-622-24 cmail: info@mebiunds com
Share Registrar; CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

Tel #: 0800-23275  email; infofacdesrsl.com

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Shureholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised 1o contact our Share
Registrar M/s CONC Share Registrar Services Limited to colleet £ enguire about their unelaimed dividend. if
any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Compunies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated
procedure, all such dividends ouwtstanding for a period of 3 years ar more from the date due and payable shall
be deposited by the Company to the Federal Government in case of unelaimed dividend,

13. PLACEMENT OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OON THE WEBSITE

4.

The Annual Report of the Company (compnising of annual Financial Statements) for the vear ended June 30),
2024, has been placed on the Company’s website: wwwanebiunds.com,

CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL REPORT 2024 AND NOTICE OF AGM

In terms of Section 223(6} of the Companies Act, 2017, the Company is allowed to send Financial Statements
and Reporis to its members electronically. Notice of AGM contammmg QR enabled code / wehlink to access
and download Annual Report 2024, has been circulated through email to those shareholders: whose email
addresses are available with the Company's Share Registrar, and in case remaining shareholders, whose email
addresses are not available, a printed copy of the notice has been dispatched on their registered addresses
through post,

Shureholcders who wish o receve Annual Beports and notices of general meetings through e-maily arg
requested to update therr emal address with the Share Registrar of the Company,
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS PERTAINING TO SPECIAL BUSINESS UNDER SECTION

134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

AGENDA NO. 5
SPECIAL RESOLUTION
This statement sets out the material facts pertaining to the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual

General Meeting of the Company on Monday, 28" October, 2024 at 11:30 am at Sapphire Hall. Ramada
Creek. Zulfigar Street 1, DHA Phase V111, Karachi, Pakistan.

MCB Investment Management Limited (the Company) is a Non-Banking Finance Company, licensed as Assct
Munggement Company, Investment Advisor and Pension Fund Manager under the Securives and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan’s Regulatory regime, The prncipal line of business of the Company is floating and
managing Collective Investment Schemes, Voluntary Pension Schemes and providing Investment Advisory
Services.

The Booard of Directors of the Compuany in its meeting held on September 25, 2024, has decided to diversify its
business activities as REIT Management Company and Private Fund Management Company subject to grant of
licenses by the Securities ond Exchange Commussion Pakistan {Commussion) under the Real Estute [nvestmient
Trust Regulations, 2022 and Private Funds Regulations, 2013 respectively.

Accordingly. the Board of Directors has proposed to pass special resolution for alteration in the object elause (111
of the Memorandum of Association (MOA) by making addition of clavse 3A. and 3B. (as appearimg below)
subject to prior approval of the Commission under Rule 5(6)(h) ol the Non-Banking Finance Companies
{ Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the Rules)

Diselosure under Para A(3) and Para (C) of SRO 423 of 2008 dated April 03, 2018

1. Comparative analysis of existing clause with the proposed alteration along with the reasons and
justification of the proposed change:
The alterations in MOA are proposed 1o make the addition of the following two claoses e, 3A. and 3B, in
Ohject Clause 11 of the MOA after elanse 3. There are no cxisting cliuses to compare with,

A, Subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and in particular the Rules, to
carry on the business permitted to be carried out by 4 REIT Management Company in terms of the license
to provide REIT nmnagement services granted by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with the Rules and the Real Estate Investment Trust
Regulations, 2022 {hereinafter referred (o as "the REIT Regulations” which shall mean and include any
amendments and/or substitutions thercol) and take all necessary steps and actions in connection therewith
and ancillary thereto ncluding but not limited to obtaunme lcense as REIT Muanogement Company: to
constitute, float and manage REIT schemes under trust deeds, and to orgamize, promote, form, create,
establish, support, manage, operate and administer RETT schemes of any type or character as may be
allowed under REIT Regulations; to act as the management company for REIT schemes and to offer,
issue, sell, hold, repurchase and accept the surrenders of umits 1o the local and foreign private and public
investors, including institutions, companies. agencies, stututory corporations, entities, povernment and
semi government institutions and trusts: o register the RETT Scheme(s) with the Securitics and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, with the object of maximizing the return for unit holders while staying within
the risk profile disclosed to the investors/unit holders: 1o make necessary appointments and hirings and to
delegate one or more of its functions to gualified and eligible individuals, frms, companies or
organizations subject o necessary approvals required under the REIT Regulations: to get hsting of the
REIT Scheme(s) at stock exchange(s) in Pakistan or outside Pakistan subject to necessary approval and
dehisting of any REIT Schemes as may be require and deemed necessary: and to undertake any other

MCSH Investment Managemen! Limited 10 Annual Repart 2024




NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

3B,

2.

avtion as may be necessary and expedient for the benefits of the investors/unitholders such as merger, de-
merger, te-organization of REIT Scheme(s) ete. subject to necessary regulatory approval; and 1o
undertake and fulfill all legal and repulatory requirements, obligations and formalitics a5 may be
appheable under the Rules, REIT Regulations and other laws, rules and regulations,

Subject o and in accordance with all applicable lows, rules and regulations, and in particular the Rules, to
carry on the business permitted to be carried out by a "Private Fund Management Company™ as permittied
in terms of the license to provide private eguity and venture capital fund management serviges granted by
the Securities and Exchange Comumission of Pakistan under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 read with
the Rules read with the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
MBFC Regulations) and the Prvate Funds Regulations, 2015 {Funds Regulations) or replacement thereol
and to take all necessary steps and actions m connection therewith and ancillary thereto; and to undertake
and fulfill all legal and regulatory requirements, obligations and formalities as may be applicable under
the Rules, and NBFC Regulations ond Funds Regulations and other laws, rules and regulations,

Reasons for change in the Memorandum of Association of the company:

Being # fund management NBFC, the Company has potential, and it also qualifies cligibility criterin for
obtgining License as REIT Management Company and Private Muanagement Company, The objective of
change in the MOA is diversification of business activities of the Company to utilize the potential of the
company in the respective business areas in addition to existing business activities.

Statement by the board that the proposed alterations are in line with the applicable provisions of the
law and regulatory framewnrk:

The proposed alteration/addition in the Memorandum of Association is in line with the applicable provisions
of the law and regulatory fromework and will not have any adverse ¢ffects on the interest of the company and
its shareholders.

Impact on the existing business activities:

The diversification of business activities as aforesaid will not have any impact on the existing principal lne of
businiess of the Company e floating and managing Collective Tnvestment Schiemes, Voluntary Pension
Schemes and providing Tnvestment Advisory Services.

Nature and exteni of interest, if any, therein of évery director, whether directly or indirectly:
The Directors ol the Company have no direct or indirect imterest in the proposed alterations in the
Memorandum of Association exeept to the extent of their directorship in the Company.

Inspection of documents:

A copy of existing Memorandum of Association along with copy of Memorandum of Association as will
appear after proposed alterations. has been kept at the Repistered Office of the Company which may be
inspected during businegss hours (9 a.m. 10 5 pon ) on any working day from the date of publication | 1ssue of this
notiee.
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CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES
INTO BOOK-ENTRY FORM

The SECP, through its letter No. CSD/ED/Misc/2016-639-640 dated March 26,
2021, has advised all Listed Companies to adhere to the provisions of Section 72 of
the Companies Act, 2017 (the *Act”). which requires all companies to replace shares
issued in physical form to book-entry form within four years of the promulgation of
the Act.

Accordingly, all sharecholders of the Company having physical folios/share
certificates are requested to convert their shares from physical form into book-entry
form at the earliest. Shareholders may contact a PSX Member, CDC Participant, or
CDC Investor Account Service Provider for assistance in opening a CDS Account
and subsequent conversion of the physical shares into book-entry form.

Maintaining shares in book-entry form has many advantages — safe custody of
shares with the CDC, avoidance of tormalities required for the issuance of duplicate
shares, and readily available for sale and purchase in open market at better rates. The
shareholders of the Company may contact the Company’s Share Registrar M/s CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited at the following address for the conversion of
physical shares into book-entry form.

CDC House, 99-B,

Block B. SM.C_.H.S..

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi- 74400
Tel: 0800-23275

Email: infol@cdcesrsl.com
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Altaf Ahmed Faisal
Company Secretary
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PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND ELECTRONICALLY
(MANDATORY REQUIREMENT)

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act,

2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Please note
that giving bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply
with this regulatory requirement and to avail the facility of direct credit of dividend
amount in bank account. sharcholders are requested to please update their
International Bank Account Number (IBAN- 24 digits) with the Company’s Share
Registrar.

The sharcholders of the Company may contact the Company’s Share Registrar M/s
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited at the following address for updating of
IBAN.

CDC House. 99-B,

Block B, S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400
Tel: 0800-23275

Email: info@@cdesrsl.com
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Altat’ Ahmed Faisal
Company Secretary
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

I am privileged to present this Report to the members of MCB Investment Management Limited for the
period ended June 30, 2024, 1t is an opportunity for us to collectively reflect, reset and rejuvenate our
mission o become a growth-onented and sustwmable Company.

The Audited Financial Statements for the year reveal the following aboul the performance of the
Company, when compared with last vear:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Amount in Rupees———
Management Fee / Investment Advisory Fee 1,608,510,322 1,100,957,252
Income from mvestments meluding profit on deposits 571,028,574 145,162,871
Profit before taxation 1,271,494 346 613921946
Profit afler taxation 861,302,376 378218, 186
 Earnings per share (EPS) 11.96 5.25

At the forthcomng AGM we will be pleased to present before our shareholders a final cash dividend of
Rs. 2.5 per share which is in addition to Rs.3.5 per share (35%) intenim dividend for the year ended June
30, 2024,

This year despite political and economic concerns the Company has witnessed significant growth. The
inflation reading has started to come down due to base effect and relatively stable currency.
This resulted in interest rates moving from 22% in FY 2023 to 20% in FY 2024 attracting unit holders
to still incling towards money market and fixed income funds leading to healthy growth. Despite PSX
mereasing by over 89% respectively high interest rates have kept unit holders away from equities who
have preferred to remain invested 1n safe class of assel. Since it 15 expected that the interest rates would
continue to dechine and close between 14% to 15% by FY 2025 which can aet as a catalyst in helping
reviving both the manufacturing and service sector. This may alsohelpinumtholders taking some
exposure in equities. However, we still beheve that Fixed Income category would continue to attract
both the existing and new unitholders,

The company continues to [ocus on digital innovation. Al the beginning of the year, we integrated
technology with the MCB Live App, allowing investors to open accounts, mvest, and redeem in real-
tme. Additionally, we developed a system to facilitate investments via Raast for customer convemence.
We also successfully incorporated generative Al into our marketing matenals and content development.
Our efforts were recognized with three Pakistan Digital Awards this year - Best Email Marketing, Best
Machine Leamning and Best Digital Customer Service.

Looking ahead, we anticipate launching more mnovative products to better serve our valued umt
holders. The Company 1s dedicated to providing our stakeholders with agile, modem, and mnovative
solutions that enhance convenience and user experience.
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I would like to appreciate our board members who has always focused on the preservation of the best
interests ol both the Company s shareholders and unit holders of the Funds under itls management. As
part of this effort, the Board’s properly structured Committees are in place, with each one having well-
defined objectives and appropriate Terms of Reference; performing their respective roles effectively
and efficiently. During the vear. a total of fourteen (14) meetings of the Board and the Commuttees ol
the Board were held which compnised of eight (8) meetings of the Board of Direclors, four (4) meetings
of the Audit Committee and two (2) meetings ol the Human Resource and Remuneration Commuilttee. |
wish to record my appreciation lo the Board Members for the active participation and continuing
mndance provided to the Management.

| expect that the Company, through its Management team, will continue to work closely, firstly with,
its valued clients, as well as, very importantly, with its employees, shareholders and stakeholders in a
manner that makes one feel proud to be associated with MCB Investment Management Limited.

| would also hike to take this opportunity to thank our valued investors for their continuous farth in the
Company, which has enabled the MCB Investment Management Limited to reach new heights year
after year, many ol whom have stayed alongside us from the mce ption of our journey and | sincerely
hope that the bond we share continues to flourish in the years ahead.

Haroun Rashid

Charmrman — Board of Directors

MCB Investment Management Limited
Karachi, September 25, 2024
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The Board of Directors of MCB Investment Management Limited (MCBIM) are pleased to present report
on the affairs of MCBIM for the year ended June 30, 2024,

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, licensed as Asset Management Company, Investment
Advisor and Pension Fund Manager under the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's
regulatory regime. The principal activities o the Company are floating and managing Collective Investment
Schemes. Voluntary Pension Schemes and providing Investment Advisory Services.

THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
Economy Review

Fiscal year 2024 marked a period of macroeconomic recovery for Pakistan, averting a looming default
brought about by centinued cconomic mismanagement. This turnaround was primarily attributed to
Pakistan entering a new IMF program after several months of delay. The government secured a much-
needed Stand-by Arrangement (SBA) facility of USD 3.0 billion from the IMF in June 23, and managed to
receive tmely rollovers from friendly countries. It also showed unwavering commitment to remain
compliant with the IMF targets and as a result government was able 1o successfully complete the program.

The caretaker government took office in August 2023 and immediately faced speculative pressure on the
currency, causing it to spike to a record high of 307 in the mterbank markel, Exchange rute m informal
market reached a higher of near 330 PKR/USD reflecting an increase of speculative activity and rampant
uncertainty, The government took decisive steps against smuggling of dollar, abuse of Afghan Transit and
illegal money dealers in September 2023, which spurred a rapid recovery in the exchange rate. This helped
in improving confidence and narrower spreads in open and interbank rates. The authorities also placed
mechanisms to strictly monitor exchange rate payments to manage the overall external balance.
Combination of both administration measures and steps to discipline external and fiscal accounts helpad
restore overall stability. The USD PKR close the year at 278.3 appreciating by 2.6% since the start of the
Your.

Country posted a current account deficit (CAD) of USD 464 million in the first eleven months of the fiscal
wear 2024 (1 TMEY 24) declining by 88% Y oY compared to a deficit of USD 3.8 hillion in the corresponding
period last year. Narrowing trade deficit was the major contributor towards improving CAD as 11.3%
increase in exports coupled with an 2.3% drop in imports led 1o a 17.0% contraction in the trade deficit.
The county’s external position improved with SBP's foreign exchange reserves increasing to USD 9.4
billion as of June 2024 compured to USD 4.4 billion at the end of last fiscal year. This wus on account of
flows from the IMF, friendly countries and multilateral sources.

Headline inflation represented by CPl averaged 23.9% during the fiscal year 2024 compared to 29.0% last
yeur. Inflation remained on the higher side a5 massive currency depreciation in the prior periods led to surge
in food and energy prices. The government also hiked electricity base tariff and gas prices to comply with
the IMF conditions, which led to further inflationary pressures, The SBP reduced the policy rate by 150bps
to 20.5% in the last monetary policy of the year held on June 10, 2024, The monetury policy noted a
significant decline in inflation, resulting in a substantially positive real interest rate, which justifies initiating
4 monetary easing cycle,

The country’s GDP grew by 2,4% in the financial year 2023-24 as compared to -0.2% last year. Agriculture
grew by 6.3%, Services and industrial sector witnessed a paltry increase of 1.2% each, Historic high interest
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rates coupled with political uncertainty were the major culprits behind the subdued industrial and services
output. On the fiscal side. FBR tax collection increased by 29.6% in FY24 to PKR 9,285 hillion, missing
the target by a modest PER 130 billion.

Equity Market Review

The stock market witnessed exuberance in fiscal vear 2024, as the benchmark KSE-100 increased by
staggering 89.2% or 36,992 points, to close at all time high of 75,445 points. This also makes Pakistan the
best performing market in the world with USD return of 94.4% in the vear.

The bullish momentum continued throughout the vear was on sccount of improvement in Macroeconomic
indicators after Pakistan entered into the new IMF program, Market participants also cheered the suceessful
completion of all IMF reviews under SBA. Moreover. the successful conclusion of elections in February
2024 brought long due clarity amongst investors, [n addition, reaffirmation by the incumbent government
to continue structural reforms. along with the intention to enter a longer IMF program. further uplifted
sentiment. Lastly. the strength of the local currency post-crackdown on currency smuggling and hoarding,
strong corporate profitability, increase in taxes on other asset classes in the budget FY23, and start of
monetary easing with 150bps cut. all contributed to the sustainable rally.

During FY24, Foreign investors, Insurance, and Corporates swere net buyers with un inflow of UUSD 41
million, USD 126 million and USD 36 million, respectively. While major selling was witnessed from Banks
and Mutual Funds with outflow of USD 141 million and USD 48 million, respectively. During FY 24,
average trading volumes for KSE-All Index saw an increase of 140.4% 10 461 mullion shares compared to
about 191 million shares in the same period last year, Similarly. the average rading value during the period
saw a rise of 1 18.5% over previous year to near USD 55 million.

Banking, Fertilizer, and E&P sector were the major contributors to the index gain adding
13.262/5.074/4.300 points, respectively. Banking sector witnessed broad based rallv as entry into the IMF
program diminished the probability of local debt restructuring besides strong profitability. Fertilizer sector
performed due to better than expected dividends while E&P rallied due to the news of clearance of gas
circular debt, which would improve the sector cash NMows.

Economy & Market — Future Outlook

Pakistan GDP is expected 1o rebound to 3.5% in FY 25 after a disappointing performance last year where
the GDP increased by only 2.4%, The cutlook for industrial output is relatively optimistic with an expected
growth of 4.0% compared to 1.2% last year. Macroeconomic stability, stable currency and decline in
interest rates will help revive the industrial and service sector growth. Agriculture performance is likely to
remain on the lower side dueto high base effect,

A new staff-level loan apreement has been reached berween Pakistan and the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) under which the country will recerve USD 7.0 billion over 37 months. The final approval of the loan
will be given by the IMF Executive Board. Successtul continuation of the IMF program is a key posituve
as it will allow us to tap funding from bilateral and multilateral spurces. However, our external position still
remains precarious due to debt outflows and our inability to raise funds through international Eurobond or
Sukuk. Thus, we would continue to run a sustainable current account this yvear to stave off external concerns.
We expecta CAD of USD 1.0 billion (0.2% of GDP} in FY 25 as policy of consolidation is likely to continue
under the IMF umbrella,
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The USD PKR is expected to remain stable as the government is focusing on improving current account
deficit on the back of recovery in export and remittances. Entry into the new IMF program will also increase
visibility on the external funding. We expect USD/PKR to close the fiscal year around PKR 311.

The nflation reading has started 0 come down due o base effect and relatively stable cwrrency, The
headline inflation number in June 2024 clocked of 12.68% compared to a high of 38.0% in May 2023, The
core inflation also registered a significant siowdown, clocking at 14.1% which is a low of 23 months. The
inflation reading is expected to decline to single digits in 1HFY 25, Keeping in view the inflationary trends,
external and fiscal position we expect interest rate to decline to 14-15% by June 25,

From the capital market perspective particularly equiries, the market is still trading at cheap valuations.
Market cap to GDP ratio is at 9.8%, a discount of 48%, from its historical average of 18.9%, Similarly,
Earning Yield minus Risk Free Rate 1s close to 7.2%, compared to the historical average of 3.0% signifying
i deep discount at which the market is trading. The resolution of challenges on external account will help
to unlock market potential. We believe a micro view of sectors and stocks will remain important and
investment sclection should focus on compames, which trade at a deep discount to their intninsic value. The
market is currently trading at PER of 4,7x, while offering a dividend vield of 11.2%,.

For debt holders, we expect Money Market Funds to continue to seamlessly murror policy rates throughout
the vear. Investors with a mid to long term view can benefit from Bond and Income Funds where higher
duration will create opportunities for capital gains in the wake of Interest rate outlook. We have added
government bonds in Income Funds to benefit from the expected monetary easing in the near term.

Mutual Fund Industry Review

The Net Assets of the open-end mutual funds industry increased by about 64.6% during FY24 to PKR 2,574
billion, Total money market funds grew by about 45.0% since June 2023, Within the money market sphere,
conventional funds showed a growth of 33.0% to PKR 629 billion while Islamic funds increased by 58.2%
to PKR 679 billion. In addition, the total fixed Income funds increased by about 104,7% since June 2023
to PKR: 736 billion while Equity and related funds increased by 32.3% to PKR 255 billion.

In terms of the segment share, Money Market funds were the leader with a share of around 50.8%:, followed
by Income funds with 37,3% and Equity and Equity related funds having o share of 9.9% as at the end o
June 30, 2024,

Mutual Fund Industry Outlook

Both Bonds and Equities are likely to do well in the next year on the back of cut in interest rates. During
the year, significant interest of investors is already visible in Income Funds while equity fund is likely 1o
see inflows post new IMF agreement, Relatively High interest rutes during the period would encourage
sustained ows in the money market funds as they are ideal for investors with a short-term horizon and low
risk profile.

Our operations remained seamless and given our competitive edge in digital access and online customer
experience, we are prepared to get benefits of the growing number of investors available online.

The mmereased focus of provineial and federal government on unsustamable pension payments and a push
for contributary pension schemes is a long term positive for the industry. During the year, Pension Schemes
for KPK Government Employees were successfully implemented. Punjab Govt. has also shown interest in
adopting a contributory retirement scheme and likely to adopt Pension Schemes for new employees from
the current year. Similarly, federal government has also highlighted the need for contributory structure in
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the current year Budget speech which shall help accelerate the adoption of voluntary pension schemes in
public and private sector.

COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Financial Year 2023-2024 the country continued to face high inflation primarily due to hike in
utility prices and surge in food prices. By stepping into the IMF program, the country was able to avert the
looming default, Weak economic conditions resulted in government keeping high policy rate which
attracted signilicant new inflows in both Money Market Funds and Income Funds which grew by Rs, 13
Billion and Rs, 52 billion to close at BRs. 121 billion and Rs, 87 billion regpectively.

After implementation of IMF program, macro-ceconomic indicators improwved which resulted in surge in
PSX which rose by 89%, Improved valuations resulted in growth in equity-based Funds® AUMs by Rs, 5.7
billion to reach Rs. 16.7 billion.

The Company continued to invest significantly in digitalization which helped in leading the market position
through focused initiatives encompassing launch of innovative and customer centric solutions, penetration
of emerging markets, adoption of digital avenues and instilling effective cost management techniques,

Driving customer centricity would continue to remain a key area of focus for the next year. We are
committed in maintaining our unique positioning as a diversified financial institution with a robust heritage
and strong reputation through enriched service offerings and products tailored 1o meet requirements of our
esteemed customers; hence, enabling Company to grow its AUMs" base manifold.

The Company uses Net Promoter Score (NPS) as a metric to gauge lovalty and satisfaction of valued
customers. At the close of financial vear ended June 30. 2024 our NP8 stooed at 61% which is evident of
the fact that our efforts ure translating into improved customer experience.

Increased growth in AUMSs in all categories including SMAs resulted in Company’s AUMs to increase by
44% from Rs, 226 billion to Rs, 326 billion as of June 30, 2024, Increased AUMS resulted in inerease in
Company’s core revenue by over Rs. 508 million and compared to Rs. 1,100 million in FY 2023, The
Company recorded gross management and investment advisory fee of Rs. 160X million in FY 2024, With
interest yield to be at an average of 17% und Stock Exchange to continue o grow in FY 2025, we expect
the AUMSs to grow Turther; resultantly going forward contributing to the revenue growth and profiahility,

On an average in FY 2023-2024 the Company remained 39% invested in equity-based Funds and with PSX
growing by 89% the same was reflected in Company’s income. Moreover, the Fixed Income Funds were
also delivering retumns of over 20%. Due to better fund management and the Company at times cautiously
taking higher percentage of mvestments in eguity-based funds, the Company was able to carn investment
mcome of Rs, 5355 million compared to gain of Rs. 139 million in the same corresponding period,

As discussed in detail in Note No. 24,2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, SECP has advised certain
changes including the allocation of selling and marketing expenses to different schemes of the funds under
its manggement. Accordingly, subsequent 1o vear end the company will credit Bs. 1585303 million 1o the wdentified
unit holders of the respective Funds, This has resulted in lowering profit before taxation of the Company
by the corresponding amount.

Due o higher AUMSs and improved investment income, despite recognizing above provision, the Company
has camed profit after taxation of Rs, 861.3 million compare to Rs, 3782 million in the corresponding year,
The Earnings Per Share of current Financial Year ended June 30, 2029 is Rs. 11.96 per share as compared
to Rs. 5.25 per share in the previous financial year ended June 30, 2023,
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The Board has proposed a final dividend of Rs. 2.5 per share e 25% which is in addition to Rs. 3.5 per
share i.e 35 % as interim dividend for the year ended June 30, 2024 as compared to 55 % (Rs. 5.5 per share
us final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2023)

The Board of Directors of the Company has w@n overall responsibility to ensure that internal financial
controls system of the company is adequate and is operating effectively.

The value of contribution of employees in pension funds 15 Rs. 38.21 million as on June 2024 (Rs, 3544
million for the vear ended June 30, 2023

Gender Pay Gap Statement under Circular 10 of 2024

MCB Investments promotes an inclusive work envirenment by ensuring equitable representation at all
levels within the organization. The Company believes that there is no significant disparity between what
women and men are paid at comparable cadres. Currently, the mean gender pay gap and median gender
pay gap pay for women is 65%, and 35%, respectively,

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Assets under management (AUM) which is the life blood of asset management industry showed substantial
growth in FY24 and crossed Rs. 2.37 willion. A host of factors have conmbuted to this growth including
successful disbursement of USD-3bln by IMF. stable political situation, stable PKR to USD exchange rate
and decline in inflation, ete. To attract new clients and facilitate existing clients in this highly competitive
industry, Asset Management Companies (AMCs) continued to offer more and more online and Mobile
based services, However, these web-based services are prone to hacking and cyber-attacks, These selutions
require substantial costs to develop, maintain and protect while the demand for delivery of superior returns
is not allowing increment in management fee. Thus, this continues to put pressure on margins of Asset
Management Companies { AMCs). To cover up expenses and being profitable, the only remedy is higher
AUMs. Government has become cautious on issues relating to *Know Your Customer” (KYC) requirements
1o cope up “Anti Money Laundering’ (AML) and *Coembating the Financing of Terrorism’ (CET). This puts
high responsibility on Asset Management Companies (AMCs) o carefully perform Customer Due
Diligence (CDD). This increases regulatory risk for Asset Management Companies { AMCs) and MCBIM
is committed to ensuring compliance of these very demanding but necessary regulations.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND IMPACT ON ENVIRONMENT

This year MCB Investment Management Limited conducted a workshop on financial literacy at “Mumitaz
Hospital™ to enable resident doctors and staff to make smart financial decisions by learning about different
avenues of investments. The Workshop consisted of a scenario-based demonstration of doctors and stalf
starting early investments to secure a fruitful financial future and sustain themselves. The Workshop also
gave i hunds-on experience of digital mutual funds with real time mutual fund account opening and
imvesting. The Session was condueted by our seasonad investment experts who provided a very aducational
and interactive session for the doctors and StafT.

MCB Funds joined hands with *Aga Khan University”™ 1o conduct insightful session on the carly
symptoms, self~examination as well as precautionary messures that can be undertaken to help prevent
Breast Cancer. A set of experienced doctors visited the MCB Investment Management Limited where they
conducted detailed session to increase awareness on the importance of early detection through screening as
this can lead to a cure and save a women's life, The session was conducted for all the female emplovees of
the company and paved to be a very educational and interactive session.
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ASSET MANAGER RATING

The Company maintained highest Asset Manager Rating of AMIL. This rating reflects the Company’s
position as one of the leading Asset Managers in the Asset Management Companies, strongly supported by
strong control environment, structured investment processes, pood povernance framework and qualified
management team. The Stability Ratings of the Collective Investment Schemes under management of the
Company are us under:

As ar June 30, 2024 As at June 30, 2023

Stability rating- Rating

ageney

Pukistan Cash Management Fund AA+ () AA D PACRA

Pakistan Income Fund A - (f) AA - (1) PACRA
MOH Pakistan Snvl.:rl.:j gn Fund AA- (D) Ak = 1.“, PACRA

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund AN A+t () PACRA

MCH DCF Income Fund AA- (D) AA-(D) PACRA

ML‘H {_ 'L*h Manogemant memﬂe AAT :ﬁ A+ (1) PACEA
1|.|'|'|.ur|.rr| !Hi Hmic |I1E|.]!ITH.. Iund A.-"u. i AA-LD 'LM, !'H. |

Alhamra :IJmh Dividend Fund -"l. *'. i AA- (1) PACRA
Alhamra lslamic Money Market Fund 1) Ak L) PACREA

‘Alhamm Wads Fund 'M. i AAA PACRA

MCH Pak'pahin F|'v.,:.|.! H,c!u'm I-und AA i frj__ -!'.A ! IJ':l J’—"\l"HﬂL

‘Alhamra Cash Management I-"Ilpirnuar “AA (1) AA D PACRA

The Mutual Funds Asseciation of Pakistan (MUFAP) is executing the Performance of the Mutual Funds on
the basis of Mutual Funds® returns. MCBIM has assumed the performance ranking of MUFAP for its equity
based Collective Investments Schemes.

HOLDING COMPANY

On April |8, 2023, MCB Bank Limited (MCB}), being the parent company of MOCB-Arif Habib Savings
and Investments Limited, has acqured 21,664,167 (30.09%9%) shares of MCB-Arnt Habib Savings &
Investment Limited (MOUB-AHY from Anft Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL). By virtue ot this
transaction MOCB Bank Limited’s sharcholding in MUB-AH has inereased from 36,956,768 (51.33%)
shares to 38,620,935 (81.42%) and AHCL no longer holds any shares in MCB-AH.

Consequently, members of the Company in an Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EQGM) held on Tuly 07,
2023 have resolved via special resolution that the nume of the Company be changed from MUB-Arif Habib
Savings and Investments Limited 10 MCB Investment Munagement Limited and Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has approved the change 1n name on August 15, 2023,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board comprises of eight (8) members including the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and has a diverse
mix of zender and knowledge. The Board consists of | female and 7 male directors, categorized as follows:

s 4 Non - Executive Directors:
* 3 Independent Directors; and
s | Executive Director (CEO),

The details of above are as under;
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Sr.
No.

L .h L -

=]

Name

Mfir. Haroun Rashicd
Mr, Shoaib Mumiaz

Mr. Ahmed Jahangir

Status

Mon-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Membership in other
Board Committees

Mone
HR&R* Commuttes

HE&R* Committee
Audit Committee

Mr. Manzar Mushtag Non-Executive Dirdctor Audit Committes

Audit Committee
{Chairman)
HR&R® Committee
(Chairmuan),
HR&R® Commitice
HR&ER* Committee

Sved Savail Meekal Hussain Independent Director

Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director

Mz, Mavra Adil Khan
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah

Independe nt Director
Executive Director

* HR&R stands for Human Resource and Remuneration

The Board of Directors review all significant matters of the Company. This includes, but not limited 1o, the
Company’s strategic direction, annual business plans and targets, decision on long-term investments. The
Board of Directors 1s committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance.

The Board of Dircctors is pleased to report that:

.

MCBE Investment Managemenl Limited 34

The financial statements, present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained,
Approprigte accounting policies as stated in the notes 1o the financial statements have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on

reasomible and prodent judgment;

Intemational Financial Reporting Standards have been followed in the preparation of financial
statements and any departures there from have been adequately disclosed and explained;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored with ongoing ¢fforts to improve it further,

There are no significant doubts upoen the Company s ability (o continue a8 going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations;

Key operating and financial data of the last 6 yvears in summarized form is annexed:

The outstanding taxes, statutory charges and duties, if any, have been fully disclosed in the audited
financial statements;
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The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for Company's system of internal contral and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility, has delegated
the detailed design and operation of the svstem of internal controls to the Chief Exceutive.
Company’s system of internal controls comprises of clear governance structures, authority limits
and accountabilities, well-understood policies and procedures, The Board meets quarterly to
consider Company’s financial performance, financial and operating budgets, business growth and
developmental plans, capital expenditure proposals and other key performance indicators. The
Audit Committee receives reports on the system of internal financial controls from the external and
internal auditors and reviews the process for monitoring the effectiveness of internal controls;

As at June 30, 2024, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of Directors’ Training
Program, as contained in Regulation No. 20 of the Code;

The Directors” Remuneration Policy (The Policy) was approved by the Board of Directors in their
144™ meeting held on September 14, 2018, The Policy was revised and was approved by the Board
of Directors in 182™ meeting held on October 21, 2022, The main features of the Policy are as
under:

(1) With effect from October 21, 2022 each non-executive director will be paid a sum
of rupees one hundred and twenty-five thousand (125,000) for attending the Board
mecting / committees of the Board;

(i} Payment for any extra services shall not be made to any executive director.
However, if a non-executive director performs any special services, the
remuneration of the same will be pre-decided by the Board and in the absence of
the quorum, by the general meeting of members of the Company;

(iii) Remuneration to executive director(s) shall be decided by the Board on
recommendation of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee based on
the role and responsibilities of the executive director and shall reflect the
individual’s roles, experience and responsibilities; and

(iv) Non-executive dircctors arce not covered under any post retirement scheme of the
Company.

The detailed pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 15 annexed;

A formal and effective mechanism is put in place for an annual evaluation of the Board’s own
performance, members of the Board and Commitiees of the Board:

There are no other contracts or arrangement entered into with any of the Related Parties requiring
disclosure under Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017,

Meeting of the Directors

During the year, eight (08) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The attendance of each
Director is as follows:
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Mumber of

Number of meetings

Q.

Name of Persons meetings held ~ Atfendance o Leave
reguired granied
L. Mr. Haroun Rashid 8 g 8 =
2 Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 8 8 8 a
3, Syed Savail Meekal Hussamn s § 7 I
4, Ms. Mavra Adil Khan 8 8 6 2
Wr. Muhammad Sagib Saleem ] 5 3 —
5 i
{ Resigned on October 31, 2023)
8. Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy & 8 3 3
7. Mr. Manzar Mushtag & 8 8 -
E. Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz 8 g 3 3
g, Mr K hawaja Khalil Shah & 3 3 =
{Appointed on November 01,
2023)

Meeting of the Audit Committee.

During the year, four (4) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The attendance of each

participant is as follows:

Number Number of meetings
: r
Name of Persons o Attendance Leave
meetings hatia Attended DY
held 4 gt
1. Syed Savail Meekal Hussain 4 Bl 4 -
2. Mr. Ahmed Jahangir 4 4 4 -
3. Mr. Manzar Mushtag 4 4 4 -

r.  Mecting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee,

During the yeur, two (2) meeting of the Human Resource and Remuneration Committee were held.
The attendance of each participant 1s as follows:

MCBE Investment Managemenl Limited
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Number of meetings

Attended

SNumber
Name of Persons of Attendance
meetings required
L Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy 2 2 2
3. Mr, Shoath Mumtaz 2 2 2
&5 Mr. Alimed Jahangir 2 2 |
4. Ms. Mavra Adil Khan 2 2 |
AUDITORS

Leave
granted

The current auditors. M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants have completed their engagement
for the year ended June 30, 2024 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting.

The Audit Committee considered and recommended the re-appointment of M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Acconntants as statutory auditors of the Company for the vear ending June 20, 2025 and the
Beard of Directors also endorsed the recommendation of the Audit Comumittee to comply with the

requirements of Code of Corporate Governance,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their deep appreciation to our shareholders who have consistently
demonstrated their confidence in the Company, We would also like to place on record our sincere
appreciation for the commitment, dedication and innovative thinking put in by each individual of the

Company and are confident that they will continue to do so in the future,

Forand on behalf of Board

T A
e

Khawaja Khalil Shah Manzar Mushtaq
Chief Executive Officer Director

koarachi, Karacha,

September 25, 2024 September 25 , 2024
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Categories of Shareholders

Ishnmhnldm| Shares Held ] Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children

HAROUN RASHID 1 500 D.00
AHMED JAHANGIR 1 500 0.00
SHOAIB MUMTAZ 1 100 0.00
MANZAR MUSHTAG 1 500 0.00
FAHD KAMAL CHINOY 1 500 0.00
MAVRA ADIL KHAN 1 100 0.00
SYED SAVAIL MEEKAL HUSSAIN 1 500 0.00
KHAWALA KHALIL SHAH 1 500 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
MIB BANE LIMITED - TREASURY 58,620,835 B1.42
ADAMIEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 5462, 000 759
NIT and ICP
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Financial Institutions 333,070 0.46
Insurance Companies
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 979,384 1.79
General Public
a. Local 5,388,049 7.48
b. Foreign 5,070 D01
Forcign Companies 497,000 0.69
Others 761,292 1.06
72,000,000 100.008
Share holders hoilding 10% or more Shares Held  Percentage
MCE BANK LIMITED - TREASURY 58,620,935 81.42
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLING

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
315 1 to 100 5.303
129 im to 500 44 396
196 501 to 1000 138,915
178 1001 to 5000 413,113
43 5001 to 10000 3440, 363

18 10001 to 15000 225411
10 15001 to 20000 188,772
10 20001 to 25000 225,108
5 25001 to 30000 145,374
1 30001 to 35000 30,500
1 35001 to 40000 39,000
3 45001 to S0000 145,481
2 50001 to 55000 104,900
2 55001 to 80000 116,800
1 60001 to 65000 61,000
1 F5001 to 80000 77,880
2 95001 to 100000 200,000
1 120001 to 125000 121,949
1 130001 to 135000 135,000
1 155001 to 160000 158,168
1 195001 to 200000 200,000
1 280001 to 285000 281,000
1 330001 to 335000 333,000
1 410001 to 415000 413,500
2 495001 to 500000 997,000
1 B45001 to B50000 650,000
1 8455001 to Q00000 S00,000
i | 1225001 to 1230000 1225132
1 5460001 to 5465000 5,462,000
1 58620001 to 58625000 58,620,935
931 72,000,000
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FINANCIAL & BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

2019 2020 021 2022 2023 24
Pre tex fnargins b 12 41 43 32 31 6%
Met Margins g 3 EH 3B 13 32 47
Performuanee
Relurn on asseis L | u I g i4 26
Reeturn o equity %a ] 17 13 12 2 44
Leverape
Crearamg { Lintalities:Equity) LS A0 (45 043 3.56 (.36 0.67
Interest Covernge Hatio TS 2075 42,31 G612 30,56 S, 100 TLO5
Liguidity
Curpem Ratio limes 215 2.11 1.%8 (R 1.08 {1 HH

Valwation

Earning per thare ILES 0.34 158 5.23 24t 525 1156
o of ardinury shares 1min T2 T2 T2 TL 12 72
Historical rrend

Munagement Fee {Rs. in million) 731 674 732 B30 1,001 1,604
Operating Profit [PBIT] (Re m million) &9 353 452 209 G235 L 290
Profit belore s (R m million) 85 345 485 294 14 12m
Profit after g (Ks inmillion) 24 258 37a 173 378 851
Share capital (#s momillion} T2 T20 T20 720 TE0 720
Shareholders equity (Rs. immillion) l462 1,551 1,603 1,434 1,741 1454
[otal assers ( Ry i million) 2044 2,260 2,376 2333 2,711 3268
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

MCE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-

1.

»

~

g

The total number of Directors are eight, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), as per the
following:

{a) Male: 7 (including the CEQ)
(b) Female: 1

The composition of the Board is as follows:
(a) Independent Directors: 3 (including a female director)
(b} Non-executive Directors: 4
(c) Executive Director: 1
(d) Female Director: 1

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a directer on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate sieps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of pariculars of the
significant policies along with their dates of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Requlations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the
Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

The Board remained compliant with the provision of the Regulations pertaining to the Directors’
training program. Out of eight directors, one (01) director i.e. Mr. Haroun Rashid is exempt from the
training requirement by virtue of his education and his experience as mentioned in Regulation 19(2)
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, Further, below
mentioned seven (07) directors have already attended the Directors’ Training program in prior
years:
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Mame of Director Status
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Chial Executive Officer
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Manzar Mushtag Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Shoalb Mumtaz MNon-Executive Director
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Independent Director
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan Independent Director
Syed Savall Meekal Hussain Independent Director
10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employmeant and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board,

12. The Board has formed Commitiees comprising of members given below:

{a) Audit Committee

Name of Director Status
Syed Savail Meekal Hussain Chairman
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Mr. Manzar Mushtag Member

(b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

Name of Director Status
Mr. Fahd Kamal Chinoy Chairman
Mr. Shoaib Mumtaz Member
Mr. Abhmed Jahangir Member
Ms. Mavra Adil Khan hember
Mr. Khawaja Khalil Shah Member

{c) Credit Committee

Name of Director Status
Mr. Manzar Mushlag Membear
Mr. Ahmed Jahangir Member
Syed Savail Meekal Hussaln Member
Mr. Khawaja Khalll Shah Member
13. The terms of reference of the aforasaid commiltess have been formed, documented and advised

to the committee for compliance;
14, The frequency of meetings of the Committees was as per following:

{a) Audit Committee: Quartarly maatings of the Audil Commillea wara hald, the deatalls of which
are as under;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Sr. No. Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 1% quarterly meeting of the Committee July 25, 2023
2. Half yearly maeting of the Committee October 16,2023
- 3" quarterly meeting of the Commitiee February 01, 2024
4, Annual meeting of the Committee April 18, 2024

{b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: The HR&R Committee met on several
occasions during the year, the details of which are as under:

Sr. No. Particulars of Meeting Date of Meetings
1. 34" meeting of the Committee July 24, 2023
2. 35" meeting of the Committee September 8, 2023

(¢) Credit Committee: No meetings of Credit Committee were held during the year

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function, the members of which are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company,

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and reqgistered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, thal they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not close relatives (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependeant
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Intemal Audit, Company
Secretary or Director of the Company,

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services excepl in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard,

We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and

Explanation for non-compliance with reguirements, other than Regulatiens 3, 6. 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

Regulation

Matters No

Explanation

Nomination Commitiee The Board effectively discharges all the

The Board may constitute 2 separate committes, 2901
designated as the nomination committes, of such
number and class of directors, as it may deem
apprapriate in its circumstances.

respansibilities of Nomination Commitlee as
recommaendad by the Code. It reguiarly monitors
and assesses the reguirements with respect to
any changes needed on Board's commitiees
including chairmanship of those committees.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

websile:

(1) key elemants aof its significant policies on its
wehsite environmental, soclal and governance
(ESG) relaled policy.

(2) brief synopsis of lerms of reference of the
Board's commitlees

(3) key slements of the directors’ remuneration
policy.

Matters Reg:latmn Explanation
o.
The Board also actively monitors requirements
regarding its struciure, size and composition and
timely reviews and adapts any necessary
changes |n thal regard.
Risk Management Committes The Board itself and through its Audit Committee
. ) annually reviews business risks facing the
Toe B."-"Erd Mgy Eonstiute te Rek mana_gernant Gﬂmﬂﬂﬂ}f lo ensure thal a sound system g{ risk
EDTmmﬂ' of such n”mt.mr a.”d. cras_.s Wi-dtesRIr, 30 (1) identification, rizk management and related
RS r!_may deem app.mp”ata o Its.I:Imumstar‘lcas. systemic and internal controls is being maintained
to. camy out & review of effectiveness of rsk lo safeguard assels. All material controls
m:naag:rrgﬁnt procedures and present a report to (financial, operational, compliance) are monitored
g and reviewed., The Board ensures thal risk
mitigation measures are robust,
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) The Board |s currently deliberating upon this
matters 10A matter and is committed to diligently oversesing
The Beoard Is respansible for governance and and addressing_ sl ri_sks -
oversight of sustainability risks and opportunities nppnrmml_les as:Ja. Aewn. 0 Hegulation m.n,_ &l
by SEliirrg the company's sustainabllity strateqles tha Code fntmduﬂec! by the EE;PZ Gonsicaration
priorities and targets to create long lem:. shall be given o either establishing a separale
Ceiamis el and nalives. that. oolldte. & committee or designate this responsibility to an
: . - ; existing Board committes in due course.
promote diversily, equily and inclusion (DEE&I) are
in place. The board may establish a dedicated
sustainability commiftee having at leasl one
famale direclor, or assign additionat
responsibilities to an existing board commitiea,
Disclosure of significant policies on website The Company has not placed certain policies and
i terms of reference of the Board's committess an
The company may post the following on its a5 (2)

its official website as these have included in the
annual repart which is published and upleaded on
the Company's website.

The Board has been guided by the fact that the above requirements are not mandatory and the necessary
explanation under the Regulations have been included above.

Mr. Haroun Rashid
Chairman — Board of Directors
MCE Investment Management Limited
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH
LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of MCB Investment Management Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Rerulalions, 2o19 (the Regulalions) prepared by the Board of Direclors of MCE Investment
Managernent Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with the reguirements
of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The respongibility for complianee with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Onur responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulalions and report if it does nol and Lo highlighl any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the
Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Comipany to comply with the
Regulations.

As g part of pur audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an eifective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all
risks and centrols or to form an opinion on the elffectiveress of such internal controls, the Company's
corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committes, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured complianee of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related parly transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Andit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements conlained in the Regulalions as applicable Lo the Company for Lhe yvear ended June 30, 2024,

n TFE.T N EL,-

AT, Ferguson & Co,

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: October 4, 2024

IIDIN: CR202410611ESuTNlila

A. F. FERGUSON & OO, Chartered Accauntants, a member firm of the PuC nefuwork :
Siate Life Building No. 10, 11, Chunidrigar Road, PO, Box 4716, Koroohi-rg000, Pakistan
Tel: +02 (21) ogo6bde-6/ 920406 11-5; Fax: +gp (21) 3241 5007/ 32427038/ 30404740 <o, [Yuse oom,/pis

s KARALCH! « LAHDRE « ISLAMABAD
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AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

o !

pwcC AL FERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT
To the members of MCB Investment Management Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

Wi have audited the annexed finaneial statements of MCB Investment Management Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024, and the statement of
profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, incloding materal aceounting
policy infwmation and other explanatory information, and we state thalt we have oblained all the
infuormation and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given o s, the
statement of financial [H‘r:&ilinn. staterment of 11ruﬁl ar loss, the statement of COMpP rehensive income, the
statement of chuanges in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereot
contorm with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the profit and other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We condueted our audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities nnder those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors Responsihilities
Sor the Audit of the Financial Statemients section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Acconntants” Code of Etfrics for Professional
Aceountanits as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordanee with the Code, We beliove that the audit evidence
wie have abtained is sufficient and appropeiate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ol most significance in our
audit of the finaneial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the contest of our
audit of the finanecial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

Followng 15 the Key audit matter:

i Valustion of investment in associates
M Refor notes 3.4 mnd 6 to the annexed fimancial
|statements)

The investment in associntes of Ba 1,790.637 Our pudit procedures included the following:
Imillion as at June 30, 2024 held by Qe
Company constitute s significant component of
{total assets of the Company. These represent
imvestment in units of muotual foods and
|pension funds under the management of the|= Checked that the share of profit from assoclates was:
Company and are classified as “investment in|  appropriately acconnted for in the financial statements.

* Checked that the investmeots were valoed appropriately in
accordance with the reqguirements of the accounting and
reparting standands as applicable in Pakistao

Affae

A F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accounfants, a membwr firm of the Pur netfusork
Stote Life Building No. 1-C, L1 Chundrigar Rood, P.O. Dax 476, Kargohi=-Tq000, Pookdaton
Tiol: +ge (1) gugette-/geda071-5; Fux: <9z (21) 32415007/ 32427938/32424 740, <wiuus.pioe.com,/pk>

=« KARACH! « LAHORE « ISLAMABEAD
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AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

;!

pwcC A-F FERGUSON&CO.

S.No. Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
ns.su_u-:'inh:-s' whirh_ are aceounted for using the s Ohtained account statements for checking the existence of
ecpuity method of acconnting. the investrnents portfolio as at June 20, 2o2d ol eaced

The proper valsation of the investments. balances in these stotements with the bools and records of
portfolio of the Company as at June:30, 2004 the Company.

and the related shave of profit (rom associales & Checked the retevant presentation nnd disclosures made in
during the venr ended June 3o, 2024 was  phe financinl stateménts to aseeriabn whether these are
considered a signifivant ared ancd therefore we complied with the accounting and reporting standards as
considered this as a key nudit maotter. applicahle in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is respongible for the vther information, The other information comprises the information
incloded in the annual report, bul does not inelude the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon,

Owor opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of azsuranee conclusion thereon,

I connection with our audit of the financial statenments, our tespansibility i o eread the other information
and, in doing =0, consider whether the other information i=s materiaily inconsistent with the finanecial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appesrs to be materially misstated. 1, based
ot Lhe work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
wir gre recuired Lo report that fact, We have pothing o report in this regarcd.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the fnancial stalements in
aceordance with the accounting and reporting standauds as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
the Companies Act, o7 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control a8 management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that arve free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
continue as a going concern, diselosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
coneern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease
operntions, or has no realistic allernative but o do so,

Board of directors are responsible for oversecing Lhe Company’s foancial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Oar objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Goancial statement= as a whole are
free from matevial misstatement, whether due to fravd or error, and to issoe an auditer’s report that
imcludes our opinivn. Beasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not o guarantee that s aodit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs a=z applicable in Pakistan will alwavs detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economie decisions of users taken on
the basic of these financial statements.

As part of an andit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and muintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Tdentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error, design and perform aodit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is smfficdent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting o material
misstatement resulting frem fraud is higher than for one resalting from error, as foud may invalve
collusion, Torgery, intenbional omissicns, misrepresentiations, gr the vvertide of internal control.

=  Obtain an enderstanding of internal control relevant to the sudit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the cireomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company™s internal cont roil.

Ao
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AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

i

pwcC A-F FERGUSON&CO,

= BEwaluate the approprinteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concérn basis of accounting and,
based on the aundit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going coneern. If
wee conelude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to deaw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures aro inadeguate, to medify
ot apinion. Our conclusions are based on the andit evidence obtained up to the dote of our audiors
rieport. Hlowever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue a5 a going
COTCETTL

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, strocture and content of the financial statements, incloding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
# manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicalowith the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant deficiencies in imternal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may ressonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosare about the matter or when, in extremelv rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report beeause the adverde consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of zo17);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in egoity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of aceount and returns;

o) Investments made, expenditure incurved and guarantees extended during the vear were for the
purpase of the Company’s business; and
d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII of 19480}, was deducted

by the Company and deposited m the Central Zakat Fund established onder section 7 of that
Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent anditor’s report is Junaid Mesia,

H osan £

A. F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: October 4, 2024

LIDIN: AR2o2g10611]56G7bsYw
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

Mote 2024 2023
Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assects
Property and equipment 4 110,555,376 130,539,859
Intangible assets 3 284,112 373 297,398,843
Invesiment in associales =] 1,790,686,810 1.353,001, 777
Long term investment T 265,000 265,000
Long term loans and prepasyments 8 37,306 403 28994 766
Long term deposits 6,646 103 6,816,103
2229 572 065 1.817.016.348
Current assets
Recaivable from funds under management - related parties g 841,794, 998 TO7 420,040
Loans and advances pli} 10,043,573 5,690 966
Prepayments and other recelvables 11 152 637,662 115,747 891
Accrued profit on savings accounts 4015 86,189
Cash and bank balances 12 33,678,807 65478577
1,038.159,055 BO4 432 663
Total asseis 3267, 731,120 2711 440 011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorsed share capital
T2.000,000 (2023 72,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each 13.% 720,000,000 720,000,000
Izsued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 132 720,000,000 720,000,000
Reserves 1,.234,011.7596 1,020,709 420
Total equity 1,954 011,796 1,740,709 420
Non-current liabilities
Defemred taxation - net 14 96 436,008 87211 857
Lease liability against right-of-use-asseis 15 30 817 470 56,628,776
Current Habilities
Current portion of lease liability against night-of-uze-asseis 15 42 645 586 30,5947 036
Trade and other payables 16 1,132,947 269 Tars417n
Taxation - net 4 844,689 42 713,913
Unclaimed dividend 6,028,302 5,296,298
1,186,465 846 B16,898 058
1,313.719,324 870,739 591
Total cquity and liabilities 3.267,731,120 2711 440 011
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17
The annexed notes 1 1039 form an integral part of these financial statements.
— ';-r::?zf’-d;;..;"aq ¥
Pt Maﬁu wﬁaﬂi:p'
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

REVENUE
Management and investment advisory fee
Sales load and other related income

Profit on savings accounts with banks

Income aon government securities using effective interest method
Gain on sale of invesiments - net

Total revenue

EXPENSES

Administralive expenzes

Selling and distribution expenses
Total operating expenses

Financial chames
Diter expenses

Other income

Share of profil from associates
Profit for the year before taxation
Taxation - net

Profit for the year after taxation

Earnings per share

The annexed notes 1 1o 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive Officer

MCB Investment Management Limited i ]

Chief Financial Officer

Note

18
19

26

2024 2023
Rupees
1,608,510.322 1,100,957 252

193 738,817 93,781,638
1,802,249 139 1,104 738 890
16,132 480 5,924 516
18,989,544
3,966,125
1,841,337 888 1,200, 663,406
778,356 6577 663,575,533
117 402 665 36 414 GBB
805, 750 242 699 990 201
18,115,316 11,250 663
180 528 403 17,603 674
208,643,719 28 854 337
2,619,504 2,864 723
531,939,825 139,238 355
1,271,494 346 613,921,946

(410,191.970)

(235,703,760)

861,302 376

11.96

378 218 186

525

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2024 2023
Rupees
Profit for the year after taxation 861,302,376 378.218,186
Oither comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year 861,302 376 378 218,186

The annexed notes 1 o 32 form an integral par of (hese financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

" Capétal eserves Rowvenoe reserve
oo Total
and paid-up . Deficit on St Unappropriated
capital g i amakgamation profd
{Rupees)

Balance as al July 1, 2022 720,000,000 396000000 (B0.000.000) 336,000,000 378,491,234 1,434 401 234
Profit after taxafion for the year . - . 378,218,186 378,218,186
Other comprehansive income for the year
Total comprehonsive income for the . 378 218,186 378 218,186

year ended June 30, 2023
Transaction with owners recorded

directly in cguity
Final dividend for the year ended

June 30, 2022 at Re. 1 per share - . . (720000000  (72,000,00D)

declared on Ociober 24, 2022
Balance as at June 30, 2023 T20,000.000 396,000,000 (60,000,000) 336,000,000 684, 709420 1,740,7094H)
Profil after taxabion for the year - - . 861,302 376 861,302 376
Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for - - - - 861,302 376 861,302 376

the year ended June 30, 2024
Transaction with owners recorded

directly in cquity
Fingl dividend for the year endad

Juna 30, 2023 at Bs_ 5.50 per share ] (396,000.000) (396,000.000)

declammd on Oclober 23, 2023

Interim dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2024 at Rs. 3.50 per share . - . (252.000,000) (252 000,003)
declared on February 2, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2024 7200000 396,000,000 (60,000,000} 336000000 883,011,796 1,954.011,7896

The annexed noles 1 lo 39 Torm an inlegral pard of these financial stalemenis.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Hote

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profil for lhe year before tsxation

Adjustment for non-cash and other items:

Despreciation 411
Amoriisabon 2
Inleras] expanse on lease abilily sgainst dghi-of-use-assels 23
Share ol proil from associales G
Gain on sake of invesiments - nel 20
Gain on disposal of property and eguipment 25
Gain on lemrminalion of lease

FProlil on savings accounls wilh banks

Operating cash inflow before working capital changes
Movement in working capital

(Increases) [ decrease in current assets
Recsivable Imm lunds under managemsanl
Loans and advances

Deposils, prepayments and other recevables

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unciairmed dividend

Net cash generated from operations

Taxes paid
Long lemm loans and prepaymonts
Long lem deposils

Nel cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fizxed capital expendiiure incurred

Additiors o inlengible assels

SBale [ {purchass ) of mvestments - mel

Profil recaived on savings accounts wilh banks

Dividend received

Proceeids [rom disposal of properly and eguipmaan]

Net cash generated from / (used in} from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Drividend pead

Lease rentals paid againsl nghl-ol-use assals 15.1
Net cash used in financing activities

Nel (decrease) | increasa in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash eguivalents al the baginning of the yoar

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 12

The annexed notes 1 1o 39 form an integral pan of these financial stalements.
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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2024 2023
——-——— Rupegs —---————
1,271,494 246 613,921,948
50,753 142 57.588.807
13.286.470 15,557.524
14,720,406 10,954.777
(531,939, 825) (139,238,255)
(3,966, 725) -
(31.917) (B9,750)
(B61,562) (658,187)
16,132 480 5,924 516
(465,732 497) (G1,788.610)
806,361,855 552,133,336
(134,374 558) {(161,307,657)|
(4,343.607) 1,963,944
(35,888,771) (47.065,662)
(175,608 336) (206,405, 360)
55 005,558 69,995,695
732,004 BS.704
385,737,502 70,081,489
1,026,491 081 415,805,450
{(44E B37 DA3) (150,416,821}
(8,311,637) (5.098,567)
170,000 (1,293,000)
(456.978.680) (156,808,388 )
660,512, 401 2589497 068
{1B,791,461) (33, 788.705)
- (787,371)
73,143 348 (108.929,.860)
16,214,654 5.B87.232
25,078,169 8,716,165
87771 308,238
95,732 481 {127,594,300)
[E4E, 000, D00) {72.000,0:00)
{49,044 652) (45,447 448}
(687,044 652) (117.447.448)
(31,798 770) 12,855,320
65,478,577 51,523,257
33,678,807 B65.478.577

o D |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

-

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

MCB Inveéstimen! Managemeni Limited (the Company) was incorporated in the name of Anf Habib Investment

Management Limiled (AHIML) on Auwgust 30, 2000 as an unguoted puoblic mited company under the repesiod

Companes Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). In the year 2008, AHIML was fistod on the Karachi Stock
Exchange Limiled (now the Pakistan Siock Exchange Limited) by way of affer for sate of shares by lew of ils exsting
sharcholders 1o the general public. In the same inancial year, the name of AHIML was changed from “Anfl Habib

Investment Mamagement Limited™ to "Anf Habib Invesiments Limited™ (AHIL). On Janwary 18, 2011, a transfor agreement
was signed between A Habib Corporation Limited (AHCL) [the than Parent Company of AHIL] and MCB Bank Lemitod
{MCRB Bank) [tha then Parent Compary of MCB Assel Managemenl Company Limited (MCB AMC)] fior the transfor of the
entire buginess of MCB AMC to AHIL fo achieve synergies in business operations: and o have access (o a wider
distribution netwaork. The schome of amalgamation ("he: Schome™) was approved by the sharsholders of AHIL 2nd MCB
AMC in their respective exiraordinary general meefings held on May 21, 2011 The Scheme was also approved by the
Securiios and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on June 27, 2011 (the offective date). In accordance with the
tarms containod m the Schame, the Company became a subsidiary of MCB Bank Limited from the year ended-June. 30,
2011, which then owned 51.33% share capital of the Company. Pursuant o the merger of MCB AMC with and into AHIL,
the name of AHIL was changed (o MCB - Anfl Habib Savings and Investmenis Limited (MCB-AHSIL) with effect from May
23, 2013, Dunng the year ended June 30, 2023, MCB Bank Limited: acquired the anfire shargholding of AHCL in MCB-
AHSIL after which the sharcholding of MCB Bank Limited has ncreased from 51.33% 0 81.42% in the Comparny and
AHCL no longer hedd any shares in the Company. Consequently, mombeors of the Company i an Extra Ordinary General
Meating (ECGM) held on July 7, 2023 resolved via special resalution that the name of the Company be changed from

MCE-AHSIL to MCB Investrmant Management Limited. Thencafler, the Company applicd 1o the Securities and Exchangoe
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for change of name under thi provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the name

was duly approved by the SECP on August 15, 2023,

Tha prncipal activities of the Company am floating and managing Coflective Invesiment Schemes, Voluntary Ponsion
Schemes and providing investiment advisory sorvices. The registered office of the Company is siluaied at 2nd Floor,
Adamjes House, 1.1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company = a subsidiary of MCE Bank Limited {Parenl
Company) which owns 81.42% (2023; 81.42%) share capital of the Company. The Paront Company’s regstered office is
situated al MCB Building, 15-Main Gulberg, Jail Road, Lahore, Pakistan. The Company oporates vanous branches all
ovar Pakistan.

The Company is registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Rogulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules) to carry on the business of invesiment advisor and asset

managamant under the said nes. Further, the Company i registersd as a Pension Fund Manager under the: Voluntary
Pension Systom Rules, 2005,

The Company has been assigned an Assel Manager rating of "AM1' by Pakistan Credil Rating Agency Limdted (PACRA)
dated Octobar 6, 2023 (2023: "AM1' dated Octobar 6, 2022).

The Company currenlly manages the following collective investmant schemes and volunlary penston schemes:

Met asset value as at

June 30, 2324_[ | June 30, 2023
Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (C15s) B S 1 L 1

Pakistan Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Siock Market Fund
MCB Pakisian Sovercign Fund
Pakistan Capital Markel Fund
Pakistan Cash Managemant Fund
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund
MCE Pakistan Azset Allocation Fund
MCEB DCF Incoma Fund

MCB Cash Management Optimizer
Alramra lstamic Money Market Fund
Alhamra lstamic Asset Allocaton Fund
Alramra Istamic Slock Fund
Alhsimra Istamic Income Fund
Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund

Alhamra Islamic Active Allocation Fund {Allamra Smart Portiolio)

Alkamra Wada Fund {Alhamira Wada Plan Vil
Balance carried forward

MCB Investment Management Limited

T4

1,899,329 682
7,215,604 358
11,081,720,081
520,366 663
26,069,692 227
5,899 167.023
671.827 736
16,311,628 407
46,797,994,021
22 060,273,135
1,487 200,380
4,079,657 080
12,208 433,118
14,342 530,513
138,837 659

2,723 845,068
4,820,727 B85
673,620,873
332,994 771
17,478,941,176
1,200,980,048
610,650,003
7.706 469,389
58,153 430,555
25,504,762 351
1,288 951 782
2 479327 821
4,775 124 538
2,890,631,415
114,718 965
2,021,170,837

172,374,561,083

V32 37T 347 57T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Balance brought forward

Mot asset value as al

Jume 30, 2024 | | June 30, 2023

Rupees

1F2.374, 561,083

132,377 347 577

Alhamira Wada Fund [Alkamea Wada Plan VL) 320 /89 519 -
Alhamra Wada Fund {(Abhamra Wada Plan 1X) 330,858,335 -
Alhamra Wada Fund (Atharmra Wada Plan X) 1,039,388, 565 -
Alharmra Wada Fund (Alkamra Wada Plan X1) 1,440,063,381 -
MCB Pakislan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakstan Fixed Raeturn Plan XH1) - 4./08.238,00
MCHE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakisian Fixed Relurn Plan Vi) - 295 019,452
MCH Pakislan Fixed Rolum Fund (MCB Pakisian Fixod Rolurn Pian Xi0) - 6,407 870,130
MCH Patestan Fixed Retum Fond (MCB Pakestan Fixed Return Plan X) - 676,271,089
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan Fioed Relum Plan XV1) 6.018.750,194 -
MCH Pakislan Fixed Relurn Fond (MCB Pakislan Fxed Return Pian X0H) 1,043, 640, 666 -
MCHE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCH Pakisian Fixod Heturn Plan XV 3,r65,79,316 -
MCH Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan Feod Rolurn Pran X1X) 3195 372,951 -
MCHB Pakislan Opportunity Fund (MCEB Pakistan Dividend Yiedd Plan) 286,990,398 208,933,784
Alhamra Oppoartunity Fund {Dividend Stralegy Plan) 201,194 329 -
Alharmra Cash Managamanl Oplirmizer 21,733,550, 732 4. 337 8BS0 120
MCH DCF Fixed Returmn Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan 1) 1.253.681,605 -
MCB DCF Flxad Relwm Fund (MCB DCE Fixed Relurm Plan 1) 1420439176 -
MCH DCF Fixed Relum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1) 2007 145,368 -
Alhamra Govammaenl Securlies Fund (Alhamra Governmenl Secunilies Plkan 1) 168,452 356 -
Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 4,973,038 841 2. B60,185,373
Alhamra lskumnic Peasion Fund 2878380 626 1,614, 400,855
MCH Alharrira KPK Governiment Employess” Persion Funid 130,209 169 -
MCB KPK Govarnimen! Employees’ Pension Fund 44,234,760

224 626,561,370 153,467,130,471

1.6 The Company = also managing investmants under disgrelionary and non-discrelionary  portlolio  managerminl
agroements, he doksits of which are given i node 18,3 b hese inancial skalermants_

1.7 In acoordance with the requiremenls of Fule 9 of the Nob-Banking Finance Companbes (Establizhmeent and Reguladion)
Rules, 2003, the Company has oblamed sullicien] nsurance coverage rom Jubilee General Insurance Company Limmaited
agains! any losses thal may be ncurred as a resull of employee's jraud or gross negligence. Jublles General Insurance
Comparny Limiled has boon assigned 2 credil raling of “A8++ {ils) by Pakistan Credil Raling Agency Limited (PACRA)
dated November 3, 2023 (2023 A8+ (ils]" dated November 3, 2022),

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Staternent of compliance

MCB Investment Management Limited 75

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance wilh the accounling and reporting slandards as apphcable
in Pakistan. The accounling and reporting slandards applicatils in Pakestan compriso ol

- Inlemaltional Financkal Reporling Standards (IFRS Accounling Standards) issued by the inlemalional Accounting
Siandards Board (1ASB) as nolified under the Companies Act, 2017

- Provisions of and direclives lssued under [he Companies Acl, 2017 along with part VIIIA ol (he repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984,

- Ihe Non-Banking Finasnce Compantes (Establishment and Heguialion) Rulas, 2003 (ke NBFC Rules): and
- Ihe Non-Banking Finance Companies and Noliied Enlites Regulalions, 2008 (ihe NBFC Regulations).

Whera provisions ol and direclives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017, pard VIILA ol lhe repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from the requirements of IFRS Accounting
Slandards, the provisions of and direchves issued undar the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIA of the ropealed Companios
Oidinianics, 1984, e NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulalions hava beon (ollowed.

Further, e Secuflies and Exchange Commisston of Pakistan (SECP) has directad vids SRO S6(12016 daled January
28, 2016 that the reguirernents of IFRS 10, Consobdaled inancial stalemants’, are nol apphcable in case of investimenis
made by companies in mulual lunds eslablished under the Tesl struclure. Accordingly, implicalons of IFRS 10 in
respaclt af the Company's investmenl in muleal funds managed by il have nol bean considersd in these linancal
slatameants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

221

231

Standards, interpretations and amendmants to the published accounting and reporting standards that are
affective in the current yoar

There are cortain amendments (o the published sccounting and reporting standards - that -are mandatory for the
Company's annual accounting penod boginming on July 1, 2023 However, these are not considered to be relevant or did
nol have any material effect on the Company's financial stalemenls and have, therefore, nol been disclosed In these
financial stalements excopl that during the year cefain amondments (o IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staloments”
have become applicablo to the Company which require entities to disclose their materal accounting poficy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. These amoendmonis o 1AS 1 have been introduced o help ontities
Improve accodnting policy disdosures =0 that they provide more useful informiation o nvestors and other primsry Ussrs
of the financal stalements. These amendments have been incorporated in these financal statements with the primary
impact that the malerial accounting policy information as boen disclosoed rather than the significant accounting policies.

Standards, intorpretations and amendmeonts to the published accounting and reporting standards that are not
yel effective

The following new standards -and amendmonts with respect o the published accounting and roporting standards would
be affoctive from the dates mentioned below agains! the respective amendments:

Effoctive date {annual
Standards and amendmenis periods beginning on or afler)
- IAS 1 - Presentation of financial statements" (amendmiants) January 1, 2024
- 1AS 21 - "Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’ [amendments) Jdanuary 1, 2025
- IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments. Disdosures” (amendmenis) danuary 1, 2026
- IFRS 9 - "Financial Instruments” {(amendmonts) January 1, 2026
- IFRS 18 - 'Presaentation and Disclosura in Financial Stalemenis” Jdanuary 1, 2027

The managameni is currently in the process of assessing the impact of these amendmenis on the financial statements of
thae Company.

There are cerlain other siandards, amendmenis and interpretations that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2024 but are considered not 1o be rolevant or will not have any signilicant effect on
the Company's operations and are, therefore, not detailod in these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimales and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the accounting amd reporling standards a5 applicable in
Pakistan requires managemen! o make judgments, estimates, and assumplions that affect the reporled amounts of
aszats, abilities, income and expenses. I also requires the managament o exercise s judgment in application of its
acoounting palicies. The estimales and associated assumptions ane based on historical expenonces and various othor
factors thal are beloved 1o be reasorable under the circumstances. These estimales and assumplions arme reviewed on
an angoing basis. Rovision o accounting estimates are recognisad in the year in which tho estimates are revised if the
rawvision affects only that year, or in the yoar of revision and future years if tho rovision affects both current and future
years. Significant accounting estimales and areas where judgments wers made by the mamnagemen! in the application of
the accounting policies are as follows:

estimation of useful lives and residual values of operating fixed assets (noles 3.1.1 and 4.1),
cstimation of useful lives of intangible assets (notes 3.2.and 5.1);
mpairment of non-financial assets (note 3.6);

- provision for taation (notes 3.5, 14 and 26);

- lease kability and right-of-use assets (nolos 316, 4.1 and 15);

- other provisions (notes 311 and 16); and

- classificaion, valuation and impairment of financial assets (notes 3.3.1.1, 3.3.1.2, 7 and 11.3)

Bacis of measuromont
These financial stalements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for the following:

Right-of-use assets and their relatod lease liability are camed at present value of fulure leasoe rentals adjusted for any
lease payments made al or before the commencement date of the lease; and

Investmants are camed at fair value-as disclosed in notos 3.3 and ¢ to these financial statemaents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3.1

3114

321

322

331

3.3.1

Functional and presentation currancy

lNems included n these finanoal stalements amo measumed using the currency ol the primary economic anvironment n
which lhe Company operales. These financial stalemenis are presenled in Pakistani Rupses, which s the Company's
luncticnal and presenialion curmanoy.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The maleral accounling policies applied in the preparation ol these financial siatements ae setl oul below. Thesa
policies have been consistenlly applied 1o all the years presahiled, unless otherwise staled.

Fizxed assels
Property and equipment
Owned

These gre slaled al cost less accumulated deprecialion and accumulaled impaiment losses, I amye Subseguent cosls
are included in the assels' carrying amounts of recognised as separate assels, as appropriale; only when it s probable
that fulure sconomic bonolils associated with the ilwms will low o the Company and the cost of the lems can be
measured relisbly. Depraciation s chamged #i The rales specilied in nolte 4.1 using the siraight line method Depreciation
o additions. is charged lrom the month when the assot becomes avagablo for use while on disposais depreciation s
charged uplo the month preceding the month of disposal. The mesidual values and uselul ves are reviewed and
adjusted, i significanl, st each reporting date o rellect the current best estimate.

MNaormal epaks and mainlemance are charged lo the sistement ol prolil of loss as and whan incurmed. Howaver, major
repaks and renewsls ane capilalised. Gains and losses on disposals of assets, Il any, are included In the slalement al
profil or loss in the year / pericd in which the disposal is mada.

Deprociation reialed o righl-ol-use assets is charged over the pariod ol the Ease lbrm
Capital work-in-progress

Al expendilure connecled with spoedilic assels nourmed during  installation and construction perod are camied under
capital work-tn-progress. These are ransferred to the relevan! calegory of properly and equipmenl a5 and whah these
become available for use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assals are measured [nitially &l cosl and are subsequently carmied al cost less accumulaled amodisation and
accumulated mpairment losses, Fany.

Subsaguent cosls are included in he assels’ carrying amounls or recognised as a separle assel, as appropnale, only
whan i s probable thal fulure ecanomic benelits associalad with the llem will low 1o the Company and the cost of the
Iterm can be mossured rofiably.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life
Intangible assats with indafinile uselul lile are staled al cost less accumulatod impairment losses, iF any
Intangible assets with definite useful life

Intangible assals with dedinite usslul like are siated al cosl less accumudaled amortisation and acowmulaied impairmanl
losses, if amy Intangible assols are amorlised al the rales speciied n note 51 uwsing the straight line method.
Amorisation s charged from the monlh when the assel is available for use while on disposals amorlisation is charged
upto the month preceding the month of disposal. The wseful lile and amortisation method is reviewed and adjusted, il
appropriale, al sach reporling date.

Gains or losses on disposal ol assats, | any, are ncuded in the slatement of profil or loss in the year / perod in which
lhesy anse.

Financial instruments

Financial assefts

Classification and subseguent measurement

The Comparny has applied IFRS 8 and classifles lts financial assats in the following measurement calegories:
- al amortised cosl,

- at lair value through olthar comprehansive incomae (FVOCTD); and
- al lair value through profi or loss (FYPL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

3312

The da=sification requiremants for debl and eguily instrumants are described below:
(i) Debtinstruments

Dbl instruments ara those instruments that mes! the defimtion of a linancal Eabiity rom he ssuer's perspective, such
as loans, government and corporale bends and pullable instruments lke unils ol open-and mulual lunds.

Classifcation and subseguent measuramant of debl instruments depend on:

- the Company’s business modal for managing the assel, and
- the cash low characlerislics of the assel

Basod on these fackors, the Company dassies its debl instruments in ong of the following three measuremeant
calegorkes:

a}l Al amortised cost:

Aszals [hat are heid for collaction of conlraciual cash lows whare those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interss! (SPPL), and thal are nol designaled as FVYPL, are measured al amorized cost. The carrying
amounl of thase assals s adpsted by any expected crodil loss allowance recognsed and measured as describoed n
note 3.3.1.2.

b} Fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI):

Financial assels thal are held lor collection ol conlraciual cash lows and lor saelling the assels, where the assals'
cash Nows represant solely paymenis of principal and interest, and [hal are nol designated as FVPL, are moasurod al
fair value through olher comprahensive income {(FYOCTE Movamants in the carrymg amount are laken hroosgh other
comprahensive income, excepl lfor the recognilon ol impaimenl gains or losses, recognized and measured as
described In nole 3.3 1.2, intorest revenue and forogn exchange gains and josses on the instrument's amorised
cost, which-are recognised in the stalement of profit o loss, Whean the inancial assel s derecognised, the cumualabve
gain or loss previously recognisad in olber comprehensive income is reclassified from equily o lhe stalemeant of profit
or loss.

€] Fair value through profil or loss ([FVPL):

Azzels lhal do nol meel the crilerla lor dassificalion al amorlised cost or FVOCH are measured al [air value throughy
profil or loss. A gain or loss ona debl investment Lthal = subsequonlly measurad al fair value through profil or less
and 15 not part of a hedgng relaticnship s recognssed n the statemeaent of profit or loss n the penod inowhich il anses.

(i} Equity instruments

Equily instrumenls are instruments thatl meat the delintion of eguily from the ssuer's parspective and are instrumants
thal do nol conlain & contraclual obligalion o pay and thal evidence a residual nleres! in lhe Esuer's nal assels,

All equily investments are required o be measwed m the slatement of nancial posion at lar valoe, with gains and
leeses recognised i the statament of profil or loss, excepl whers an irevocable election has beon made al the time ol
Inital Fecogniton o maasune e nvestimenl al FYOCL

The dividend income for equily securllies dassiied under FYOCI are 1o be recognised in the stalemeant of profil or loss.
Howevar, any surplus / (dolicil) arsing as a resull of subsequenl movermanl in the fair valoe of equily securitios dassified
as FVOCI is to be recogrised in other comprehansive income and s nol recyded © Ihe siatement ol profil or loss on
derecogniton

Impairment

The Company assesses on-a lomnward-looking basis the axpecied credil fosses (ECL) associated with fls debl instrament
aseals carmied al amorsed cosl and FVOCL The Company rocognises a loss allowance lor such losses al esach
raportng date. Tha messurement ol ECL rallacks:

- an unbiased and probabilily-wekghled amounl thal ks delermined by evalualing a range ol possible culocomes;

- the ime value of monsy; and
- measonable and supporlable informaltion thal is availabie withoul undue cost or effort at the reporting dale aboul past

avanls, currenl condilions and forecasts of ulure economic condilions.
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I'he Company considers thal a financal assael i in defaull when he counterparty fails [0 make contraciual paymenls
wilhin 90 days of when they fall due. Forther, linancial assels aro written off by the Company, in whole or part, whon it
has exhausted all practical recovery efforls and has concluded that there s no reasonable expeclalion of recovery.

Derecognition

Fnancial assets, ar a poribon thereol, are derscognised when the conlraciual rights o recelve the cash flows from the
assals have expired, or when they have bean Fansferred and oithes:

{i} e Company lransfers substanlially all the risks and rowards of ownership; or

{ii} e Company naithar lransfors nor relains substantally 2l the risks and rewards of ownership and the Company has
not retamed control.

When the Company anters into ransactions wher it retans the contractual nghts o receve cash lows rom assets bul
assumes a coniraciual obligation o pay those cash flows lo olher antibes and transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards, these ransachons are accountod for as ‘pass through' ransfors that resull in derecognition if the Company:

{i} mas no obligation o make payments unless i collects equivatent amounts from he assets;

{ii) s prohibited from saliing o pledging the assets; and
(it} has an obligation o ramil any caesh il collects rom he assels withoul malersal delay.

Ay gain of loss on derecognition of financal assals & aken Wb he stadameant ol profil o loss.
Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales ol financial assels are recognigsed on the rade dale |e. the dale on which tha
Company commils o purchase or sall ho assel Reguiar way purchases § sales of assels require deliveny of secunbios
wilhiin bwo days from the transachon date as per the stock exchanga regulations,

Financial liabilities

Firancial abilities are measured ot far value upon inibial recognibion and subsegquanty messured 3 amorised cost
axcepl for.

- Financial iabilities al fair value through profid or loss; and
- Fimancial labiities ansing from the ransfor of inancial assets which did not quality for derecogrition, wheroby a
financial liability is recognised for the consideralion recedved for the iransfar.

Derecognition

Firancial labiites are derecognised al the time when thesse gre adinguished Le. when the obligation specified in the
conbracl 6 dscharged, cancelled of axpies. Any gain of loss on defocognition of lmancisl Gabilibes @ lakoen o tha
statemeant ol profl or koss:

Initial recognition

Firancial assels and financial lizbiities are recognised al the lime the Company becomes & party 1o the confraciual
provisions of the instrumenl. These are initially recognised al fair value plus ansaclion costs excepl for inancial assels
carried al fair value: hrough prolil or loss. Financial assets camied al @ value through profil or loss am initally
recognisad al far value and ansacton costs associatpd with thess inancal assets are taken directy 1o the statement of
prafil or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Flrancial assels and linanckal kabilitkes are offset and tha nel amount is reporied n the Bnancial stalements when there s
a legally enforceabls righl o el off the recognised amounts and hore s an inlenton lo sette on a nel basis, or 1o reakso
the assats and soltla the liabiibes simullaneous)y.

Business model

The business modsl refloects how the Company manages Lhe assels o order to generate cash Nows. That s, whother the
objective iz salaly lo collect the confractual cash ows from the assets or is lo collect both the conlraciual cash flows and
=azh flows arsing from the sale of assets. i neithaor of these: is appiicable (e financial assols ame held for frading
purposes), then the inanchki assels are dassified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured al FVPL. Factors
consdensd by the Compainy i dalermining he business model lor a group of assels include past expenence on how e
cash Nows for these assels were collected, how the assetl's perfformance & evaluated and reported o key managesmsant
personngl, how nsks are assessoed and managed and how managers are compensaled.
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Solely payment of principal and interest

Where the business model is 1o hold assets o collec] contraciual cash flows or o collect conlractusl cash lows and sall,
the Company assasses whether [he financial nstruments’ cash lows represent solely payments of principal and interest
{lha “SPPI test'). In makihg his assessmmenl the Company considors whalher the contraciual cash fows are consislant
with a basic lending arrangament Le. interest includes only considaration for the lime value of money, credil risk, other
basic lending risks and a profit mangin thal s consistent with a basic lending arangemenl. Where the contraciual lerms
Introduce axposure 1o fsk or wolalilily thatl are inconsistant wilth a basie lending arangement, the related financal assel s
dassified and measured al 2 valoe through profit or loss.

Reclassifications

The Company reclassilies debl investments when and only when its business model Tor managing those assels
changes. The reclassificallon takes place from tha star of Lhe first reporting pedod following the change. Such changes
are expected to be vary infrequent and none occurred during the year.

Investment in associated undertakings

An associate s an anlity in which the Company has a significant influence and which s neither a subsidiary nor a joinl
verdureAssociates are accounted for usimng squity method of accounting aflter initzally bong recognised at oost

Thesa inancial statements include the Company’s share of tolal recognised gains and losses of associales on the aguity
accounling bases, from the dale significant influence commences unlll the date thal significant influence ceases. The
Company's share of the associates profit of loss s recognised in the statement of profil or loss. Distribulions: received
froen an assoclale reduce he carnying amount of tho mvestment. When tho Company's share of losses exceeds ils
interesl in an associals, the hwestmenl's cafrymng amounl s redoced o nll and mcognilion of luithor losses s
discontinued excepl o the exten] thal the Company has ncurred legal or constructive obhgalion.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current ax s besed on laxable income-al the curren! rates of Exaton after laking inle account kix credilts
and rebates available, f any, and Exes paid under the final tax regime. The charge lor cument tax also includes
adjustments whans necessary, relaling lo prior years which atise lrom assessments Iraimeed f linalised dufing U v

Defarred

Delorrod tax s mooghised using the balsnos shoel kabifly mathod on all lemporany dilferances arising belween e
carrying amount of assets and Labiliies lor financial reporting puposes and the amount used for Exabion purposes.
Deferred tax iabiibes are ecognised on all laxable lemporary differences.

Deferred tax assel s recognised for all deductible lemporary diferences only o the extent thal || s probable thal fulure
laxable profits will be avaiable againsl which the assel can bo ulillsed. Delarred tax s charged or credited to the
statement of profit or loss i the ax relates o tems al are charged or grediled 0 the statement of profit or loss and to
olher comprahanshve income il the lax relales o lems hal are charged o credided Lo olher comprahersive Incomaea.

Delarred lax assets and lisbiites are measured using the lax rates thal are expecled o apply lo the period when the
assel 5 realmsd or the lRbilily & sellied, based on the By aies (@nd lax laws) thal have been substantivaly anacted at
thie reporting dale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carmying amount of the assels 5 reviewed at sach reporting date o determine whether there s any indicaton of
impairmeant loss. Il such indication exists, the carrylng amounts of such assels are reviewed lo assess whalher they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. Where carmying values aexceed the respective recoverable amounts,

assels are wiillen down Lo thelr recoverable amounts and the resulling impairment charge s recognised in the stalement
ol profil or loss.

Deposits and othar receivables

Deposils and olhier recaivables are carmed al amorlsed cosl, less expecled cedil loss allowance dalamimed in
accordance with the accounting policy as menbioned in nole 3.3.1.2. Bad debls are writlon off when identified.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an approved funded contribulory provident fund for all its parmanent employess o wiuch egual
monthly contributions are made bath by the Company and the employees at the rale of 8.33% of basic salary.

MCB Investment Management Limited 80 Annual Report 2024




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

0

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carmiad In the stalement of financal position al cost. For thie purpose of statement ol cash
flows, cash and cash eguivalants comprse cash in and and balances with banks in cument and savings accounts.

Trade and other payables

Liahililies for trade and other amounts payable are carmied al cosl, which s the fair value of consideration o be peid 0
the future for goods and services whather or nol billed (o the Company.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Frovisions are recognised when he Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resull of pasl evenbs, i
15 probable. thal an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired o settle the obligation and a
rafiable estimala ol tha obligation can be mads. The amount recognised represents the best estimate of (he expendiluie
required o setthe the obligation at the reporting date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted o
refiect ihe current besi estimale. Provisions are nol recognised for fulure operating losses.

Contingenl assels are disclosed when thero 5-a possible assol thal anses from past evenls and whoss existence will be
confirmmed anly by the occurrence or non-occurrenca of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control
of the Company. Conlingent assets are nol recognised until the inflow of sconomic benefits s virtually cortain,

Contingent labiiity is disclosed whan:

- there |s a possible obligation thal arkses from past gvents and whose esistence will be confirmed anly by the
ocourrence of non-occunmence of ong or more uncertain future evenls not wholly within the control of the Company; or

- Ihere i a presant obligaton that anses rom past events ot il s ool probable hat an outllow of resources embodying
aconamic benelits will be required o sellle the obligalion or the amount of the obligation cannol be measured with
sufficiant rolkability.

Revenue recognition

Revenus s recognised when the services have beon rendered by the Company and roceived by the customer and thare
15 no uilfulfilled obligation thal could affect the cslomoes's acceplance of U saivice, Ravenue of dilfemnt stresms s
recogrised as follows:

- Managemenl fes from collectve nvestmonl schomes and volunlary pansion schomes s calcuiated by charging the
specified rates within the lmit alfowed under the NBFC Regulations 1o the net assats of such schemes as al the dose
ol business of sach calendar day. The peformance obligation s salished al the dose ol business day for each
scheamsa and paymenl is genorally due al the end of each month;

- Investmant advisory fee from the discretionary portfolios &= calculated on a dally basks by charging speciled rales o
the net assats of tha portfolios @ slaled in he eepoclve agreemonls with the cienls. The perlormance oblgation &
salsfiod al the dose ol business day for each portfoho and payment is genarally due either al the and of each guartsr
or six monihs based on the agreement lenms;

- Peoerformancs based omutierabon of nvestment sdvisory seivices and managamen! o dscrelionary portlolio ane
acorued once the lerms of the contract are honouwred and the Company achioves the perfformance condition af the
and ol the period. The padormance obligation ks, therelore, salished al the and of agreamant pertod or al the Ume ol
terminaton of agresment and paymenl becomes due al the end of he aforemenboned poriod;

- Capilal gamns { lossas arsng on sale of mvestmenis 12 recognised m the statement of profit or loss on the date at
which transachon kes place;

- Load income 5 recognisad once he savices are proviided 1o the unil holders in conneclion with heir investmenls in
collective investment schemes managed by the Company. The porformance obligation s satisfied al the lime of
providing Lhe service o the unil holders and payment becomes due al the end of each monih;

- Dwyeidend income s rocorded when e fighl o recaive he dividend s established,
- Profit on bank daposits and investments s recognised on-an acorual basis using effective inlerest rale maothod;
- Mark-up on loans to employess 5 recogrsed on an accreal basis, and

- Oiher income is recognksed on an accreal bases.
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Eamings per shars

I'he Company presents basic and diluled samings por sham (EPS) lof ils shareholders. Bazic EPS 5 calcdaled by
dividing the profit or loss attribulable o ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number ol
ordinary shares oulstanding during the year. Diluled EPS s delermined by adjustng the profil or loss atirbulable o
ordinary shareholders and [he weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for he effocts of dilutive
potental ordinary shares, if any,

Proposed dividend and transfer betweon reserves

Dividonds dectared and transfers belwoon resarves made subsequent lo the reporling date are considered as non-
adjusling evenls and are not recognised in the inancal statwments in the penod in which such dradends are declared ¢
Iranslers are made and hence, are accounied for subsequent lo the yoar and.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transachons in foresgn curmencias ane transated inlo Pakistam Rupees at the foreign exchange rales prevailing on the
date of ransaclion. Monelary assels and liabilitbes in foralgn cufrencies are ranstated inlo Pakstanl Rupess at lhe rales
of exchange approximating thoss sl he: statement of inancial pesition dato. Exchange gains [ losses resulling from the
zelfoment of ransaclions and from the ransiaton & year-end exchange ales of monelary assets and Habilities
denoiminated n lorelgn cuffencies aro laken o he stalamarnl ol prolit of loss.

Lease liability and righl-of-use assels

Al inception of a contract, the Company assessas whothor a confract s, or conlains, a lease based on whalber tha
cofnbract conveys the fighl 1o conlral e use of an danliiad assel lor a pedod ol ime i exchange for consdaralion.

In detarmining the lease lerm, management considers all facls and dreumstances thal creale an economic ncenlive Lo
exercise an exonsion oplion or nol exercise a lermination oplion. Exension eplions (or periods aflor lermination opbions)
are only included in the loase tom i the loase |s reasomably cortain to bo estonded (or nol lerminated).

The leasa liabiity s mitmally measured al he presont value of he lease payments over the period of leass lerm and thal
am nol pakd al the commencement dale, discounted using the inleres! rale iImplicit in the leasze, or il hal rale cannol be
readily determimed, the Cormpany's incrameantal borrowsng rale.

Lesrse payrmedils induds lxed payiments less any leasa inconlive recavable, varnable lsase paymonl sl are based on
an index or a rate which are nilially measured using the index or rale as at the commencemeant dale, amounts axpected
o be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees, (he exercize price of a purchase option if the Company
s reasonably cortam o exercise thal opton and paymenis of penallies for lerminating the leaso il tho pase term reflocks
that the losses will axercise that opbon. The axtension and terminabion oplions-arg incorporatled n delermination of lease
lermm anly whan lhe Company is reasonably cerlakn o exercise these oplions.

Nhe lease lability ks subsequently measured al amomtsed cost using the effeclive intorest rilo mothod. The lease Habikly
s almo rameasured 1o reflect any massessmeanl of lease modification, or © rellect rovissd esubstanco fixed lessa
paymeanl

The jease habiily is rameasured when the Company reassesses the reasonable cerainly 1o exercise exlension of
termination oplion upon occurmence of either 8 significant event or a significant change in crcumstances, or whan there
i85 a change i assessmenl of an oplion o purchase an undoerying assel, of whon thedre i a change in amounl oipacted
o be payable under a residual valve guarantes, or when there s a change in ulure lease payments resulting from a
change i an ndex or rale used lo delarmine those paymenls, The comesponding adjustment ts made 1o the camying
amounl of he nghtol-uss assel. or is recordod in the statemeant of profil or loss il the camying amount of rght of use
assol has bean reduced Lo zoro.

When there is a change in scope ol a lease, or the consideration for-a lease, thal was nol parl of the orginal lerms and
condiions, the same s accounted for as a lease modification. The lease modification s accounted for as a soparalo
leasa | modilicalion ncreases he scopo of leass by adding the fghl 1o use one of more undefdying assols and ths
consideration for lease increases by an amount thal s commensurate with the standalone prce lor the increass in scope
adjusied io reflect the creumstances ol lhe parlicular contract, I any. When the leaze modification is nol accownted for
as a soparale laass, he loase ability B remeasuned and cormesponding adjustment is made o righl-of-uss assal

The nght-of-use assel 15 mitially measured al an amount egual o the mBal measurement of lease hability adjusted lor
any lease paymenis made al or belore the commencemenl date, plus any initkal direct costs ncurred and an estimate of
tha costs o ba incurred o dismante and remove the underlying assel or o reshore he underiving assel or [ha site on
which the assel s located.
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The rght-ofwuso-asscl is subsoguently measured al costloss accumulatod doprociation and accumnulaioed mpairmont
losses, il any The nghl-of-use assol is deprocated using the straight ino mothod in accordance with tho ralos spocfiod
i mote 4.1 to these fnancial statements and aftor taking inlo accoun! esduad values, I any. The useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, | appropriate, at each roporting date. The nght-of-use asset &
adjusied for cortain romeasuramaents of tho lease hability.

Segment reporting

An oporating sogmont is 3 component of the Company thal engages in business activiios from which il may eam
revonues and incur oxponsos including rovonues and oxpenses that nolate 1o tfransactions with any of the Company's
other compononts.

Operating segments an ropotod in a mannor consstent with the intemal roporting structure. The managomont monitors
the operating resulls of its business unlis separalely lor the purpose of making decisions regarding resources allocation
and porformancs assessment. Sogment resolis, assots and labilties includo itoms directly attributablo o tho segmont as
woll as thoso thal can bo allocatod on a oasonable basis. Those assels and habiliies which cannot bo atlocated o a
particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated assets and labiliies. The Board of Directans and
Chiof Executive Officor havo beon idontificd as the chiof operating decision makors who are responsible for atlocating
resources and assossing the poformance of the oporating sogmaents, Currently, the Company 15 lunctioning as a single
oparaling segmoenl

Geographical segmenis

The operations of the Company are currently based only in Pakistan.

Note 2024 2023
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT —— Rupees
Operating fixed assels 41 110,555,376 128,081,651
Capital work-in-progross 42 - 2,458,208

110,555,376 130,539 859

Operating fixed assets

The following 1= the staterment of oporabing fixod assets:

2024

Camputsr efice Fumiture Leasehold : Right-of-use a5sets -
2 = & Vehiclss Laasshald Tostal

aqEpment equipmeal and figharss | | improvemenis

(Rupesz]

As 3t July 1, 2023
Cost WMESEE 25778 85267 12,804,342 9404270 2824493 384,350,187
Accusmniztnd dapreciaiion (64085,302) (VA003E35) (7ESAG3]  (3B4E350)  {5.185021) (128,334,964) [223.984,155)
Acoumd=ind el z z (T25817) _ [B550.464) z - __r3ssam)
et book value ZRAOTHEA  GBSI0Z 1,141.370 2,308,528 4,238 249 BISBRSDT 178,081,651
Year ended June 30, 2024
Dpening nel book valz PAEITEE  BFES3OZ 1041370 2,398,578 4,230,243 B4 509520 128,081 B
Addiions (al cost) 1,605,081 1,365,637 42,000 3,628,701 508,000 MIAMFTE 4554 B
Desposals

Cosl (383,000} - - - . - (383,000)

Accumuilsied deprecision 377,146 - - - - - 127,446

» {55, 854) - - - : - {55, 851]

Depeciation charge for the yesr (12097677) (2077.460) (T78500)  {2882583) (2 avzosm) (30516683  (58.792,142)
Effect of fermiraion E - - ] - 321323
Ciosing set book value THGI T GO T Wmhn . aamm . Ao ﬁ.ms:m g
As af June 30, 2024
Cost 103,138,047 27745024  ©,563,570 16,433,043 16,012,270 I WTHE 406,290,908
Acoumutated depracistion (T6.750,833  (21071,295) (B431,183)  (BE9ES13)  (7.537.280) (167951 847 (288,450,151
Acoemilaiod mpsmmen - - 171 G 550 464 - - T 1
Net book value Po.070218  GRTaiam —%‘ 7, BATA G0 66,045 890 :
Depreciation rate (% per annum| 2T 0% -50% PF%-AT% _ 75% -50% 25% AN - 32%

—_———e————
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4]
Caomputer Oifica ‘Famiture Leasehoid Vehich Right-of-use assets - Total
Buipment equiprment end fixherss | | improvements Lpasehald
[Rupees|
As at Jiy 1, 2022
Cost 66335011 21860420 10931415 17,196,518 A 237 210 130, 033A07 254,704, 35
Acoumdaled deprediation (G2 I7AI5) (1TAGES4E) (0.504,735) (7. 278, 265) {3.370,102) (90 509 140) (177,858, 207)
Acommulzted mpamren T = [F25517) {8550, 484 ) - - {7,285 381
Net book value 14087506 A4 351871 2410763 3358 788 BT 18T A4 524 61 B0 G50.A4T
Year ended June 30, 2023
Dipaning nel book valus 14,087 596 4.381.8M 2410763 3,358,780 BET 16T A4 524 281 64 550047
Adiicns (Bt oot} ITB1202 4440806 125,789 784,700 5,167,000 BIE31138 121,890,633
Desposals
Cost {258,247} ;531.533:‘[ | [735.225) :5.1m.m1| - - (6,702 437)
Accumulsied depracisiion 171,178 410,318 724 550 5,157,904 + = fi 463 840
(B8, 0B8] (120,773 (10,675) (18,872} = - (238 488)
Depredisiion charge for the year (Z023.066) (1835802 (1.384438) (1725088}  (1.TH9E) (37 B35 E24)  {57,5B0,B57)
Effect of leeminabon = L - - - E.‘s ggg@n !S G40 0441
Closing net book value 20 537 B4 6,785 302 1.947.318 2 308 538 4730 245 Sl b2 28,081,651
As at June 30 2023
Cost 03 916,966 25, 7T, 137 8,521,978 12804342 0,40, 70 12 M A93 364,351 187
Acoirmlated deprecition (B45008,302) (1BG03835) (TES4EA3)  (3B4E3AS0)  [B.16S021) {128,374 664)  [220,984,155)
Acoumulaiad mpsimeni - - [TZ5817) 16 550, 454 - - (7, 285.381]
Wt ook value 20597661 __ 6785302 _1M13rs __ 230850 2 423924) __ BAGRBSZD 128081051
Depreciation rate (% per annum} 25% 20%-50% PEW-GT% _ 25W-50% 7% 2% - 33%
MNote 2024 2023
411 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: Rupess
Adminksiralive axpenses by | 44 825 119 44,552 K3
Saelling and distribution exponsas 22 14,568,023 16,037,534
58,993,142 57,589 897
412 The oporaling ficed assels includes loms coslbng Bs. 111971 million (2023 Rs. 107080 million) which are (ully
deprecialed as ol June 30, 2024 bul ara still hactve wse ol e Company.
413 The details of operating fixed assets disposed of during the year are as follows:
Cont Accurrlstzd || Wet book Hale {Gair on Made of Particulzrs Relatianchip with
depresiation value || proceeds || dispesal || disposal o uyer Lasymr
(upess
Assets having book valre of not more 383,000 I27, 146 55 854 BT 3T Megoliafon  Mr Mubammsd Ex-Chusd
ihan five hundred thousand rupess Sanib S3eem Exscutive Oficer
wnidivicueally gisposed of dunag the year
Total - June 30, 2024 383,000 377,146 55 BG4 Er T 317
Total - June 30, 2023 6700437 6463040 Z3R488 30ADE  AUTS0
Mote 2024 2023
432 Capital work-in-progress Rupess
Advancea lo contraclions - 2 458 206
5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Definite life
Compular sollwarn 5.1 9,985 440 23271910
Indefinite life
Goodwill b1, 53454 B2 126,933 B2 126,933
Managemenl nghls 51.53854 192,000,030 192,000,000
274 126 933 274,126,933
284 112 373 297 398 243
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

2.1

541

Following Is the statemont of June 30, 2024

intangible assets: Computer software | | Goodwil | | Mamagementrights [ | Totd |

Hote {Rupees)
As at July 1, 2023
Cosl 122 A50 GaE B2,125,833 182,000,000 05 BTT 621
Apcumulsted amariisation [08,178,778) - - (39,178,778}
Net book value 23&?13915 3211255933 1682 UIIIIIIID 207388 843
Year ended June 30, 2024
Dpening ret book valus 23 271,910 BZ 126933 192 000000 297,388 843
Additions = = : -
Amortisation charge for the year (13,286 470) H : {13,286 470}
Closing net book valua 0 885440 B2.126,833 152, 0040000 ZE4_112.373
As at June 30, 2024
Cosl 122 450 688 B2,126.833 192,000,000 I96 57T 621
Accumulated smariisation (112,465 248] - 2 (112,465 248)
Net book value 8 .585.440 B2,126.833 192 000,000 284112373
Amuortisation rate (Y per anmum) _%Em‘a{.z_
June 30, 2023
Computer sofwars | | Goudwil | | Mamagomentights | | ot |
Moz [Rupees|

As at July 1, 2022
Cosi 121,663,317 82126833 182,000,000 355, 780,250
Accumidated emortisation [B3 G621 254) 4 - (B3, 5621, 254)
Nt baok valus — 20042063 _ BIT6033 _ 192000000 __ 312168955
Year ended June 30, 2023
Opaning net book value 38,042 063 B2,125,833 182,000,000 312,168,995
Addifions 787371 - - TE7. a7
Amoriisation charge for the year 7 {15,557 524) - : {15,557 524}
Closing net book valua 23,271,610 B2,126,833 192, 0040000 257 398 6843
As at June 30, 2023
Cosl 122 450 688 B2,126.833 192,000,000 396 57T 621
Accumulated amartisation {98 17E 77H - - (39178, 778}
et book value 23,271,010 B2 126,933 192 000 000 207, 3088 843
Amortisation rate (¥ per annum} 25% - 33%

Intangible assets incudes itoms costing Rs. 55 560 million (2023: Rs. 54 622 million) which are fully amortised as of June
30, 2024 but are still in active use of the Company.

Pursuant io the scheme of amalgamaton for the transfor of the entire business of MCB AMC to AHIL including all the
properties, nights, tifle and inferest as disdosed in pote 1.1 to these financial statements which was ontered between
AHCL and MCB Bank Limited. intangible asseis compnsing of managameant rights and goodwill aggregating to Rs. 152
million and Rs. 82,127 million respeciivaly woere recognised in the financial statemoents for the yoear ended June 30, 2011.

In accordance with the requirements of Intemational Accounting Standard (LAS) 36: "impairment of as=els’, an entity shall
test an intangible asset with an indefinite useful iife and goodwill acquired in a business combination for impaiment
annually by comparing its carmying amount with its rocoverable amount, imespective of whathor thare is any indication that
it may be impaired. Thercfore, the managemeoent has lesiod whether managoment rghts with indefinite useful Iife and
goodwill have suffdred any impairment as at June 30, 2024, The recoverable amounts for management nights and
goodwill are based on value-in-use calculations which require the vse of assumplions. The calculations use cash flow
projecions based on financial budgets prepared by the management covenng a five-year penod. Cash flows beyond
those perods are exirapolsied using the cstimated growth rates. These growth rales are consistonl with forecasis
specific to the industry in which the Company operates. Following are the key assumplions for determination of value-in-

uso for goodwill and management nghis:
Koy agssumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts

The growth rates and cost to income ratios used 1o esimaie future performance are based on past performance, markod
frends and the management experience of growth rates and cost o income ratios achievable. The management
belicves that the assumptions used in esimating the: fulure performance of these intangibles are consistent with past
performancs and trends. The caleuation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the following assumgptions:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Particulars 2024 2023
Diiscourd rafo 24 00% 24 0:%
Terminal growth rale 0.30% 0.30%
Revenue growth rate 9 30% 9. 30%:

Mol 2024 2023

INWESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES Rupees

Investment in associated underakings
Investment in units of funds under Mmanagenmnont 6.1 1.790,686.810 1,353, 001,777

6.1 Investmant in units of funds under management

Jups 3, 2004
m“ Barenlig :#': stments | Rodomphoon | N Diidmd | bvestment st
aind of Iing ; . i
Weame of e eeste Sind wlace hreitding P giring f22 year | durmeg e pa income Jame B M
Pigaes

Imvestmend in associEted cndertaking
Aamms sl Person Fund - Equly Sub-Hand Parstn 17 5% 61,355,380 ¥ [ 105, DO, 00y T-H.il.f" - 00 73805
Al |slarmic Ponsion Fond - Debt Sob-Fumd Pasiztan 12T B ST 243 - - ao.ET - 104 505 520
Al Islamic Preion Furd - Monoy Mool Seb-Fured Paiatzn T12% 17,356 456 . - 7297 B4 - B4 67310
Pahi=in Pession Fund - Equly Sub-Fued Pairstn BIFS T 35,561 - (56,500,000} 111385823 - 137 550 384
Paliisian Pission Fund - Dl Sab-Fund Pasiztan BOE% 2772 10 - - ZLATT 54D - 126 585 ATE
Paii=in Persion Fund - Marey Marks! Seb-Hund Paiisn B58% 108,231 000 - - 4 E5E 00 - 133 85 000
MCH Altesra KK Gowommant Emgioyees” Pasion Fond -

oy Market Sub-Fand Pairstn 25.50% - 300 - 3358 160 = 13,758, T
MCH Altesra KK, Goemmant Emgioyees” Pasion Fond -

iy e Sl Fend P 1990 : Eulin & il 3 578,
MCB Altam KPH Governmant Engrioyers" Persion Fand -

Eepily Sub-Feed Faicts  SOSFL = 500000 = 0.268 5 0 268
MCB Altmmis KPH Governmant Engrioyers" Persion Fand -

Db Seb-Fund Faiklan B 5% c 500,000 - 28,775 - .S
MICH FP Govemment Employees’ Prereion Fund -

Merioy Mk Sub-Fund Paikbs  TBSSE = 30,000,600 = AAZATED 5 TLAZR 780
MICH KPK Govemment Employees’ Prersion Fund -

Bty Indiex: S Fund Faiklan B B0 c 500,000 - 50,162 - 55,162
MCE KP¥, Govermms] Esyplopess’ Permsion Fund -

gty Sub-Fond Pakisian 08.50% - 50000 - 54578 - 558 870
MCE KP¥, Govermm Esyplopess’ Permsion Fund -

Dhd Se-Fund Patkiian 0E.50% - 500 0o - 54,588 - 550 580
Pateian Cash Marepenon Fand * Peiisian - . WoEsE| EoImAE am| @ .
MCE Cash Mansgoment Cpfimiz: Pkl 082% | 37720 | AMAgTaseT | MMOATTISEY  3m4mep0d| (11001 L e 12k
MCH Palrsian Siock Markel Fund * Pakisian - r Lk L [EA. 100, BED 4,108 580 - -
Altermra |slamic inpome Fond Paislan = B 370,240 - B, 785 288 415,048 - -
MCB Piakistan Sowsagn Fund Pabisim  1.20% - |2emarisrz| pasasTiT  21pEnaal| (3RauE|  3S4MGNGE
Al |slamic Stock Fund * Paiizlan = - tolionem | (FLTTad)l  2LTTAn - -
AEanmE sm Ache Alocsam

Fumd {Alramia Smar Padioin) Paiizlzn BT 5483 5 1,415,785 - JE43 404 | (13430335 125012483
AEEmne= Wada Fund

| Altmrz Wiada Plan VI Pasiztan ] 141,351 335 16 52E S5 | (180,606 244y Haam [BTT) -
e Cash Meregoment Opfimizer Pakslan - 150000 231201| (ZMSMAEY  D9TEES| (| -
MCB Paiiian Fapd Fatom Fumd

(MCE Paisian Fiaad Relum Plan Vi) Pairstn 3 RTINS S084.m (16,358,743 552 BHT - -
MCB Paiiian Fapd Fetom Fumd

(MCE Paisian Fiasd Relum Plan X5X) Pairstn L3T% - il - TiasEH| S 10 B0, 21E
MCH Paiian Fapd Faiem Fund

{MCB Pakiian Fieed Ratum Plan )00 ° Faiklan - - =L [VE,358 9563 ELANR|  (4E3 BT -
Abtera Oppetunty Fund {Dividond Siratogy Pin) * Pasistm 2 : M40 (20556 1S5 -
MO Paisian Oygrririly Ferd

[MCB Pkistan Drviderst Yiekd P} Pakistn BORSTALT | TRATBANG| (WMSETIIT)] WSnEM| (52ME -
AFEms Govenmen Seariies Fund

| At it Securies Pl | Ptz T 0 N0 - 950 - 50 (6E 550

1T TN [ EEE) SINBRES (S0miE 1 SLmEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

6.1.1

MCB Investment Management Limited

June 0. 2023
catmaaton | Pecage W": ivestments | Andamplons | Shoreofpeoft) | Dwidend | bvvestment s o
Wame ofthe etz dind and placeod | haiding tegimning & | i ey | ity | g come | JmeE ND
businese e year
Ruzas
Envestment in acsacisted undertaking
ey falaic Pamsion Fund - Eguly Sub-Fund Paistm  3720% [ 1enoo2am = 353588 | termazen
Alhaea kamic: Persion Fumd - Deh Sub-Fand T T 75,502 55 - - 11,258 548 - S M3
A almic Pension Fund - Mansy Market S Fund Paisn  10.83% £.538,755 - LTI 3 77,385 465
Pabistan Pension Fund - Equiy Stb-Fund Pamtm  16.02% | 1ZREREEE s {492,000 - | teemssE
Pabstan Pansion Fore! - Dek S Fumid Paistm  MLBE% 7 B43 058 - 1.5 362 | weEmRaw
Pt Pension Funt - Money Matkes Seb-Fund Pdis  GIT S0 200,000 : - 16,011,800 - | 1mzmt0m
MCE Cash Managament Opimizes Pamtm  05I% - |estemszn | mooe sz M7Eae| omeEe) A
MACE Pakistim Siock Marks Fund Paistm : 0| o0maned| (196367550 BWIED Z 3
Alheres lmic income Fund PamEm DITE = maem| meeaan S| pe 6,370,240
MCE Pastan Soversion Fund* Panin - | stomaen]| SuTEReszy 4402 - -
A e Monoy Markal Fund * Pz - | eoovezss| menoTAIEE  1DeER| (104188 z
Adtrea Dy Dividen Fund * Pasi= = | at7gsaesE| PITASGESEY  G1627S|  (B16ZTS) -
Alharva i Saock Fund Panim wamen| ono00000| ALiTaaemy  (anse) - -
A e Active Afocation
Fund {Athamiz Sma Porfii) Pdwim  0123% | 1mEoS0EE E5000000Y 058848 g AR 51
Ahava Wads Fand
gz Wadz Pin 1) Pzl 03T mayn| mEoasETRR 0 W) ey E
Avave Wads Fund
[Alharez Wads Pl 1) * Palistm 5 | Ao sy e s -
Hiharmea Wads Fund
{Atharres Wadz Pn 1) Pamt® - 19350304 | (16,801, 344) WIS | (5T .
Aherra Wada Fund
(Al Wats Pl V) * P = wEEm |  pEmasTI|  TEased|  (7Edsen| -
Adharra Wads Furd
[ Atharea WadzPln V) * Pzt 3 X195 | ESIRRAENY  HTZM| (165 z
Afermea Wads Fund
[ Al Wz P V1) * Panim - | tonrmsee]| meossema) 0 ereasy| (e -
A Wads Fund
(A Wadda Plan V1T Pdwim  699% - | wamsea| pmorsed  Teews| Rl MLB1ES
Ahava Cash Mansgement Dpimizer Pdst= 0394 = 10,15 100 E \SET|  [ITESET  1A.150.800
MCE Fakistan Fired Aot Fand
{MICE Pakistan Fised Ratum Pan 1) Pt e | vsaTE| pmasTaz  2ueea| [oezing -
MCE Pakistan Fieed Rt Fund
[MICE Pkictan Fired Retum Pan 1) Palislan = moim| paRTnase|  10meE|  ERn -
MCS Pakistan Fired Retom Fund
[MCE Pokistan Fired Raton P 1) * Paicin = VLI0GED | MLBORERMY 13050 (13054 -
MCE Paksian Fed et Fumt
[MICE Pbistan Fired Retum P V) * Palislan - Aonnm| e e STOE| (125 g
MICE Pabisian Fied Rz Fumt
(MCE Pkistan Fissd Refum Pl V) * P = 1ZmEet | (2 eiaETE| | m g
MCH Paistan Fised Rzt Fund
[MCE Pakistan Fizsd Refirn Fian V) * P - Han | - ER5IE Y S| (e =
MCE Pakistan Fized Rziom Fund
{MCE Pokistan Fised Retum Plan VI Pdwl  461% - | mEsepE| pOTETZESE  ZMUB| QATE) 0TS
MACE Pkt Fixed Refoen Fund
[MICE Pakistan Fised Retum Pian 1) * Pasi= - 0ETER| (o szE gozon|  (EEETH) .
MCE Pakistan Fed Roum Fund
W Pskistan Fosed Renam Plan X1 * Pamim = SHEENS | [EEADMT2) 611058 (3230 -
MCE Pakisi Opportunity Fund
[MCE Pakisizn Divilered Yesd Pian) Pamim 701N 0 S0000| (0000000) 64 1ET - S EST M7
1,1 S5 T2H 15 TG 935.360) 130,738,955 [3716.165] | P,

* The erils of Sese assorales were puchased and redesmed drmg e

Mo reconcliztion i regquired betweon the carmying amount of the nvestment 0 associaled underakings and the
surmrrarised hnancal information as he movesnenl i the Noel Asset Value (MAV) reprasents The proporlionate shase of
profit ol investmant in assooate and the invastment = also valued at the NAV prevailing al the reporting date under the

edquily scoountrg method.

ar
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

6.1.2

Summary of financial position and performance

B Jung W, A0 For the year mded June 30, 200
Takal
M of fhe investas heed Consiry ol | Parcantage Aty Liahilfies Favanue Metiscoms | comprehemsive
incerparaion |  Mcéding intone
TRazees)
Investmunl in sssocitod wndertaking
- Al sk Eonson Find - Equiy Sab-FHand Pakstan  2756% 738,191 884 10937 782 MIEGEA4E  OITTIMT BRIV
- At ki Ponsion Fund - Dot Sub-Fund Palsgban  1279%  EI7.040172 TOM0ER0  MEIIDAM 06HEETS  106946E7H
- iharmea llamic Porsion Fund - Money Market Sub-Fond Paestn  717% 1333414950 1392950 206MITM 1MGBOREZ. 10463052
- Pabistan Porsion [ ind - Equaly Sub-Fund Pakstn  G20% LRI MEST  EISTAON  BARANATS  EMTIAM M TR
- Paidstan Pansion Fund - Debt Sub Fond Pakistn  BOEY%  (OEPBAHABD. 10150420 2T HGMT4  AAGSITE 200835178
- Pakisian Pansion Fund - Money Marked Sub-Fund Pakstan  6.98%  1.911,266,160 L9804 M EMING NAJMEHM JHIHEM
= MACH Alhrswa KPY Governmeonl Employess’ Persion Fund -
Mooy Mt Sub-Fund Pakisls  25.95% 126,755 482 131,804 10,708,835 SE6T 1T 967177
- MCH Alivsrwa KPK Gowernmenl Emploiess’ Porsion Fund -
Exquity bt Sub-Fund Paestn  92055% 579,578 1.067 7618 285 2851
- MACH Alharmea KP¥, G overnmeanl Employoos’ Persion Fund -
Eguly Sub-Fund Pakcdyn  00.08%, 500565 1,068 24585 28 48T 26487
- MCH Altame KPX. Govorimnt Employess” Porsion Fund -
Dbl Saits-Franet Paksben  99.06% 500, 560 1069 B3 50 535 59535
- MCE KPR Govrrenant Employees’ Pansan Fund -
Money Market Sun-Frend Palestn  TRSS% 42801 357 45367 43374 4084 9% 4,084 520
- MCB KPK Gowrmemmnt Empioyoes:’ Pansion Fund -
Exquity el Sub-Fund Pakstan  90.00% 560,614 1. & B4 5.2 sm2
=~ MCH KPK Govormemant Emyloyons' Panson Fund -
Exquity Sub-Fund Pakstn  9950% 6 624 1,100 0 64 58 5 59524
- MCH KPK Govommal Employoes” Pansion Fund -
Debid Siib-Fund Pakstn  9900% 560,43 1.1 0,562 264 28,454
- MCH Cash Managemsn| Oplimizs Pakistn (% ATXTA1130  SSO0AJ01T  ASA148047 TEMOD4NS  7a0d (00435
- MCE Paissizn Sovevsgn Fund Paksin 1205 MA00SEEST IRESITENE  LAOL407 281 1S4 700182 121 00182
- Albamea bk Aclive Alocalion Fund
(Allssrea St Peetiofio) Paligber  OO05% 138566801 620237 ATEMME 2320 96,241 247
- MCH Paisiban Fowd Fiohan Fund
{MCE Peislan Foeend Hoturn Plan X100 Palsten 0004 1200166230 WIWAG HABH NG TRMER  METR
- Alrerris Govemment Sacunlies Hund
{Adhesrmra Govormmanl Secoites Pen 1) Pakstn 29724 24 N0 196468 R IMETT 2152008 215208
T4 IBGARD 014 & THT 13450 13300 000KFT 11 3RGEG1.M0 11 309 651 040
3s &t June 30, 1 For the prar eaded June 30, 2023
Tetal
Mams of the imvesiss hed Comiryl | Percantige bty Lishilifies Revanue | Nt foss) / tomprahestsiva
incerparaion |  hoddng (losz] | incoma
Higees]
Investmant in associated undertaking
— Afharnsa bsiamic Porcien Fund - Equity Sub-Fund Pastn  TT20% 2150575 8450 85 1230 57 {1465 54 {1,485.534)
- Al bsbamic Persion Fund - Dbl Sub-Fund Paksts  1098% 454754 6N 2005083 67570, 0 BE7 1T B0 &7 a7
- Atz dshamir: Ponsn Fund - Mooy el Sib-Ford Paheby  J0EI% 70560649 2381,343 45707384 B9 965 5 i SHED M
- Paitan Pansion Fund - Equily Sub-Fund Pakstn  16:12% T05.400 564 25615848 22 718 306 529181 5291 651
= Paston Paneion Fuand - et Sub-Fund Pakdyn 20BN 496,207 109 376,781 06 738 453 BT 21270 ErT2 T
- Padstan Pansion Fand - Money Markel Sub-Fund Paislen  6.7T% 12353455 ASMA IATME ERTIM0  1ERTIESN
- MCH Cash Managoman Oplidens Paksbsr  0EM%  7ESM 5508 10350954951 10031238070 SARIER T OAMIITH
~ iharmea lelamic incoms Fund Paestn  015% 430210243 BHFTAN  IMENDE  BM0ISIE 85162
- Albarra ki Active Alocilion Furd
{Alhamea Sirert Porthio) Pagmdy  B1IEY T5.220,850 501 585 13177064 11548, 48 11,584 228
- Alharmen Wada Fund {Atemea Wada Plan Wil Pakstan  6.00% 2007006064 5885127 85,958 955 79870540 79,970 549
= Al Cash Managomen! Oplimizie Pakbe 02 4345097005 746918 G2 781 581 50 106 540 50,196 54)
— MCE Pakistan Ford Fshien Fund
{MCE Pakistan Fued Riben Plan Vi) Pakcks 451% e, e 10173 17,845 807 166250 16563, 534
- MCB Pastan Opporunily Fund
[MCB Paislan Dnidond Yield Pan) Pakstn  2913%  ZHAISIE 12 597 3897 22 166,102 18,260 942 1260, 542
2RI 0072 1H.A50 971 30 1LGMASEOID 10 308 108K 999 308
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

LONG TERM INVESTMENT Mote 2024 2023
Rupoes

At Fair value through profit or loss
Invesiment in shares % | 265,000 265,000

During the year ended June 30, 2022 Mulual Funds Associalion ol Pakistan (MUFAP) had converled inlo a Sall-
Regulalory Organization {SRO) upon the diréctive of SECP and (hus, was reguired © be registered under Section 42 of
the Companies Act, 2017, Since it was converled inlo a SRO, the capilal reguirements wore mel from all the Assal
Managemenl Companies (AMCs) who are also the members ol MUFAP. All AMCs conldbuled equally lowards the share
capital of MUFAP by subscribing for 28,500 shares at-a par valwe of Rs. 10 each, raising -a lolal capital of Rs. 5,035,000
comprisirg af 503,500 shares of Ry, 10 each. Hence, the Company also subscribed for the shares of MUFAP baing ils
e Tibat.

LONG TERM LOANS AND PREPAYMENTS Mote 2024 2023
Rupees
Gonsidered good - securod
Loan lo execulive 4,01 477 4,136,901
Less: currant portion 10 (114.854) (101.653)
B1 3.906,223 4,035,248
Considered good - unsecured
Loan o ex-direcion B2, B3&B4 - 10962158
Levans Lo exsculives 8.5 8,376,118 4, 840,365
Loans lo eamployees B85 2859 517 266,974
Less: curranl porton 10 (3,312.800) {4,526 518)
70922 a3n 11,542 978
11,829,058 15.578 227
Propaymenis
Prepaid commission against bachat units 53,908,833 38875042
Less: curranl porthon 1 {58,431, 488) {25.4568.503)
8.6 25477 345 13,416,539
37 306 403 28,094 766

j— e

Thes represents loan gean 0 an execulve al an nberest rate of 4.5% por annum and was milizally recorded at s lair
value using an effeclive inlerest ale ol 12.368% per annum. This loan s advanced lor the purpose ol housing finance and
i repayable in moathly nstalbmenls as & dedoclion rom satary having a maximum repayment perod of up o wanly
yoars, This loan is secured against the documents of the immovable propery acquired and (ife insurance policy in Eeour
ol the Compary.

This represents loan given o ex-Chiel Exacutive Officer al the rale of 1 year KIBOR mimus 1% por annum with KIBOR 1o
be resel annually rom the dale of disbuersement and was inilially recogniged al lls fair value using an effeclive inlerest
rate of 17.09% per anmum. This loan was advanced for the purpose of housing linonce and was repayable in monihly
Instaliments having a maximurm repayment padod of up 1o four years. During the corent year, the loan has bean Tully
repaid by the ox-Chiel Exoculiva Officer upon his resignalion.

2024 2023
The recencialion of lean o direclor 1 as follows: Rupees
Opening balance 10,962, 158 12,308 656
Add: disbursemenls dunng the year - 12,500,000
Less: recoveries during Lhe year {10,962,158}) {13,847 498)
Closing balance - 10, 562 158

The maximum aggregate amount outsianding al any Wme dunng the year caloulated by referonce o monih-ond balance
was Rs. 10763 millon (2022 Rs. 12313 millian).

These represant nteres! free loans given o amployees and executives. These loans are provided for booking advanca
(lease down paymeni) al 20% of the involca price al the me of purchasing the vehide as per the policy ol the Company
and are repayable in monthly installments as a deducton from salary having a maximum repayment penod of up o ve
WIS,

Thes represents commission pasd o disinbulors on the Esuance of bachal units of different funds under the managament
of lhe Company. The commission amounl s amorised over the padod ol he contrac), unless redeemed earlier, In which
case il s charged off immediatoly. Howeaver, in the case of oarly redemplion, an amount is recovared rom the imvosior in
tha foem of back-end losd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

RECEIVABLE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT -
RELATED PARTIES

Considered good - unsscured

Open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

Pakistan lncome Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund

MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund

Pakistan Capital Markel Fund

Pakistan Cash Mansgement Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund

MCB Pakistan Assel Allocation Fund

MCB DCF Income Fund

MCEB Cash Managemenl Oplimizer

Alhamra Islamic Morey Markel Fursd

Alharmra lskmic Assel Allocation Fund

Alramra slamic Slock Fund

Albmamra lslamic ncome Fund

Alhamra Daily Dividend Fund

Alharmra Islamic Active Allocation Fund {(Alhamra Smart Portfolio)
Alnarmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan Vi)

Alhatmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VI

Albsarmra Wada Fund (Allsamra Wada Plar 1X)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X)

Alramra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X1)

Alhamra Wada Fund [Alhamra Wada Plan XI1)

MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakestan Fixed RBeturm Plan V)
MCB Pakistan Fixod Hetun Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Plan V1)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fliued Return Plan Vi)
MCEB Pakislan Fixed Relun Fund (MCB Pakislan Flxed Retum Plan [X)
MCB Pakislan Fized Returi Fund (MCB Pakistan Fieed Heturm Plan X)
MCB Pakistan Fixod Return Fund (MCB Pakistan Fheed Hoturm Plan XI1)
MCB Pakistan Fied Retum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Helurn Plan XI1)
MCB Pakistan Fied Retum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Helurn Plan X101}
MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCEB Palestan Fixed Retum Plan X1V)
MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakestan Fixed Returm Plan V)
MCB Paklstan Fixed Hetwn Fund (MCB Paklstan Fixed Relurm Plan X\Vil)
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fiued Return Plan VI
MCEB Pakislan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fleed Return Plan XI1X)
MCB Pakislan Fixed Reluri Fud (MCB Pakistan Fieed Heturm Plan XX)
MCEB Pahistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fieed Hotuem Plan XX1)
MCE Pakistan Opportunily Fund (MCE Pakistan Dividend Yistd Plan)
Pakislan Sarmaya Mehilooz Fured

Alhamra Cash Managemont Oplimizer

Altharnrs Opporlutity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan)

Alnhamra Governmenl Securlies Fund (Alhamma Govermnment Securiies Plan 1)

MUEE DCF Fixed Return Fund (MCB DEF Fixed Return Plan 1)
MCB DCF Foied Return Fund (MCB DCF Fised Return Plan 1)

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pensamn Fund

Alhamra fstamic Paenswon Fond

MCB Alharmia KPK Governmant Employees” Pension Fund
MCB KPK Govemmaent Employess' Pension Fund

MCB Investment Management Limited 20

2024 2023
Rupees

13,033,315 18,6592 329
85126 622 B5_ 933 241
52,121 967 34 487 230
8,188,664 7.337.240
49,087 AG7 48,258 569
S3.220 826 24,134 9068
3r 22 828 37,120,908
174 B66,286 153,747,001
116,027 876 156,755,800
31,483,578 31,626,773
12,784 462 11216497
20375087 18,185 252
32,308,074 18,419,359
23167./03 8,126,716
5,683 18,344
13,863,443 5,668 431

1,552 546 -
548,302 -

3,583,580 -

9,045,051 -

2 604,048 -
325484 8,956,981
225,454 4842890

B S84.229

- 6,048 332

1,430,256 60,836

- 1,265,348

717 625 746,824

17,938,145 537 ror
1,425,652 -
18,333,317 -
4,061,468 -
14.857 3412 -

2,031 5685 -

1,766,387 -

4,603,743 -

1.328.012 184,825

4,267 360 4 267,360

24 256,704 3.231,186

1,028,645 -
124 609 -

2 236,841 -

1,329,415 -

24 D05 425 GH3 BSF,025
11,451,622 B, r73410
G, 188,168 4,788,605
117,423 -
32 360 -
17,788,573 13,583,015
841,794,958 707 420,040
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8.3

0.4

The above amounts represont recoivable on account of management fea, Sindh Sales Tax on managemant oo, sales
load charged on sslected funds, Sindh Sales Tax on sakes load, sefling and marketng expenses and allocated expenses
charged o these funds, This also includes Federal Exciso Duty receivable from the funds undor its management as more
fully explained in nofe 16.3 1o these financial statements.

As por rogulation 61 of the NBFC Regulations, the Management Company is enfitfed to a remuneration cgual to an
amaunt not exceading the maximum rate of management foe as disclosed in tha offéring document subject o the total
exponse ratio imit Keeping in view the maximum - allowable threshold, the Management Company is charging its
remuneration at the rates as disclosed innote 18.2 1o these financial statemonts.

In accordance with Regulation 60 of the NBEFC Regutabons, the Company is-enfiied to chargo fees and expenses related
to registrar senvices, accounting, operation-and valuafion services, related 1o a collective investmant scheme (CIS).

Therefore, the Company is charging the allocated expenses variably koeping in view the overall returm of the Fund and
subject o the toial oxpense ratio of the funds as definod undar the NBEFC Regulations, subject o tofal axpenses changod
being lower than actual oxpenses incumed.

The SECP had asliowed asszel management companies io charge solling and marketing exponsos to all categories of
open-ond mutual funds (except fund of funds) initially for a perfod of three yoars (Lo, from January 1, 2017 fill December
31, 2019) subject o a maximum limit of 0.4% per annum of the average annual net assets of the Fund or aciual
oxponses, whichever is lower.

The SECP through its Circular 11 dated July 5, 2019 had removed the maximum cap of 0.4% per annum for charging of
sofling and marketing expenses 10 8 Fund. Furthermore, the fime limit of three years had also besn removed in the
circular issuad by the SECP. The asset managoment company can charge such expenses to the Fund as per the annual
plan and the same should be approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the annual plan for charging of selling and markefing expenses o
the funds under the management of the Company and has given a discretion for charging of safling and markeding
exponses directly to the Fund as proposed by the management as per the requirements of SECP Circukar 11 dated July
5, 2019. The Company is charging the seliing and marketing expenses variably keeping in view the overall return of the
Fund -and subject to the total oxpense ratio of the funds as dofined undor the NBFG Regulations, subject to total
cxpenses charged being lower than aciual cxpenses incurned.

The masdmum aggregate amount outsianding at any time during the vear calculated by reference to month-ond balance
are as under:

2024 2023
Rupees

Open-end Collactive Investment Schemes (CISs)

- Pakistan Income Fund 21,532,705 18,682 329

- MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 91,197,549 105,186,353
MCE Pakistan Sovercign Fund 63,123,520 34 487 230
Pakistan Capital Markot Fund 8,630,633 7,450,731
Pakistan Cash Management Fund 67 402 161 49 258, 569
Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund 45,023,998 24 ZB2.745
MCB Pakisian Asset Allocation Fund 38478737 37,983,605
MCB DCF Income Fund 184,035.362 153,747,001
MCB Cash Management Opfimizer 170,273,183 156,755,809
Alhamra lelamic Money Market Fund 45 B56,136 31,528,773

- Alhamra lslamic Assot Allocation Fund 14 266,124 12,780,272

- Alhamra lslamic Stock Fund 22 764 002 20,000,538

- Alhamra Islamic Income Fund 42 535,719 20,785,556
Alhamira Daily Dividend Fund 34 773,050 9262 841
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2024 2023
Rupaos

Athamea Islamic Aciive Allocafion Fund (Alhamra Smart Portfolio) 17378 229 526
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan |) - 819,531
Alhamra Wada Fund [Alhamra Wada Flan II) . 3353421
Athamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan [il) - 1,885,777
Alhamra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan V) - 1673812
Alhamra Wada Fund [Adhamra Wada Plan V) - 568,001
Athamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan V1) - 68 909
Afhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan Vi) 16,609,363 5,659 440
Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan VIl 1,552,546

Althamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan 1X) 548,302

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X) 3,583 580

Alhamra Wada Fund [Adhamra Wada Plan X1) 9.045 051

Alhamra Wada Fund [(Alhamra Wads Plan X1} 2604048 -
MCEB Pakisian Fixed Relum Fund (MCEB Fakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1} - 458,424
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MGCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan I1) : 4 037,106
MCB Pakisian Fixed Retum Fund (MGB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan 1) - 241817
MCB Pakisian Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retumn Plan IV) - 766206
MCB Pakistan Fxed Relum Fund {MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan V) 325494 16,320,323
MCB Pakistan Fxed Retum Fund {MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Plan V1) 225 454 0,856 532
MCEB Pakisian Fixed Relum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan Vil) 127 863 854,229
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1X) : 8812613
KMCB Pakisian Fed Reium Fund (MCB Palisian Fixed Refurn Plan X) 147480 60835
MCB Pakisian Fixed Retum Fund {MCB Pakistan Fixed Retumn Plan X1) - 3,280 333
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan X11) 7458747 b86,674
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund {MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Plan Xill) 17,038,145 537,707
MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Flan XIV) 4,300,851

MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MGCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XV) 7.034 233

KMCB Pakisian Foed Reium Fund (MCB Palasian Fixed Return Plan XVT) 18333317

MCB Pakisian Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retumn Pian XVII) 4081 4638

MCB Pakistan Fxed Relum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan XV} 14857 312

MCB Pakistan Fxed Refum Fund {MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Plan XIX) 2031 565

MCEB Pakisian Fixed Relum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan XX) 3,063,137

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCEB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan X1} 4612844 -
KMCB Pakisian Opportunity Fund (MCB Pakistan Dividend Yield Plan) 2.139.590 187,830
Pakizian Sarmaya Mehfooz Fund 4 757 360 4 P67 360
Alhamea Cash Management Oplimizer 35,184 531 3,268,058
Alhamea Opportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan) 1,028,640

Alhamra Govemment Secunties Fund (Alhamma Government Securities Plan 1) 124,609

MCB DGEF Fixed Retum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan 1) 2235 841

MCB DCF Fred Refum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Retum Plan 1) 1329415

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 11,451,622 8,808,558
Alhamra |slamic Pension Fund 6,188,168 7,785,845
MCEB Alhamra KPK Government Employees’ Pension Fund 117423

MCB KPFK Government Employees’ Pension Fund 32360
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote 2024 2023
The ageing analysts of receivable from funds Rupees
under managemenl s as follows:
Mol past due 368 185484 306,314 238
Past due upto 3 monihe 65,214,194 1,471,304
Past duo moro-than 3 months and upto & months 7,079,169 -
Past duo moro-than 6 months and upto 12 months 1,130,705 -
Past duo moro-1han one yoar 400,185,446 389 634 498
B41,794, 938 707 420,040
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good - secured
Current portion of loan 1o execitive 8 114,554 101,653
Consldered good - unsecured
Current portion of loans Lo director, executives and omployees a 3,312 800 4,526,518
Advancs lo employees, suppliors and contractors 6615819 1,071,785
10,043,573 5,680,966
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Propaymenis
Currenl portion of prepaid commizsion againat bachal units B 58 431 ABRB 25 458 503
Prepadd insuranco 15,915,397 16,037 245
Propaid maintensncn 538,112 560,294
Prepaid IT service level agreemoenis 15,877,164 15,656,728
Propaid ivonse foo B1,727 408,703
Others 3,260,783 213,044
84,104,871 57.334.57
Other receivables
Considered good - unsecured
Advisory fee on-account of discrotionary and
portfolioc management
Due from rofated party 111 ¥.BE2 633 15,437 414
Due from olhers 1.2 16,439 235 § 705,801
24 3 BER 25143215
Considored doubtful
Diue from olhers 12.4{’2,1.1? "2,"“]2,1‘!?
Roceivable from funds against ATM card redemptions 33,594 686 32 732 8549
Othors B16.237 537,300
70,934 908 70815491
Provision against advisory {ec 1.3 (12402 117) (12,402 117)
152, 637 662 115,747,881

This includes managamont feo recovable from Adampooe Life Assurance Company Limited undor discrobonary portiolio
managemenl agreement. This also includes Federal Excise Duty recelvable from Adamjes Life Assurance Company
Limited as more Tully oxplained in note 16.3 to theso firandal statemonts, The madmum aggnegale amount outstanding
at any time during the year calcutatod by reforonce o month-ond batance was Bs. 15252 million (2023; Rs 15437

[ATSTI
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121

The ageing analysis of related party balance is as follows:

Mot past due
Past due upto 3 months
Past duo more than one year

From related parties

2024 [l 2023
RUPODS s memmmms
- 3,835 325
339,000 3.954 456
7,543,633 7,543,633
7,882,633 15437 414

This represents management foe and perfomance foe receivable from  soparatoly managed accounts under

discrotionary and non-discrofionary portiofio managament agrooments.

Prowvision against advisory foa
Balance as at July 1

Provision made during the year
Balance as at June 30

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

Balances with banks inc

Savings accounts
Cument accounts

Mote

121
122

2024 023
Rupees

12402117 12402117

12,402,111' 12.#&2,_1 l?h
5.088 5,588

18,297 965 40 368737

15 375,754 16,104 252

33673719 65472 8589

33,678,807 B5. 478,577

Thiz includes balances of Rs. 11.667 million (2023 Rs. 43.726 millicn) maintained with MCB Bank Limited {a related
party} that cames mark-ap at the rate of 20.50% (2023: 18.50%) per annum. Further, it also incdudes balances of Rs.
0381 million {2023: Rs. 0,373 million) maintained with MCB lslamic Bank Limited (a related party) that camies mark-up at
the rate of 7.75% (2023: 7.66%) per annum. Other savings accounts of the Company camy mark-up at the mie of

17.10% (2023: 19.50%) por annum.

This includes balancse of Rs. 6.322 million {2023; Rs. 6468 million) mamtained with MCB Bank Limited (a retated pariy)

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised share capital

2024 2023
[(Number of shares)

72000000 72,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Izsuod, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2024 2023
{Number of shares} Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

5,000,000 5000000 Fuly paidin cash
31,000,000 31,000,000 Allolied as bonus shares

36,000,000 36,000,000 Issued for consideration other than cash

72,000,000 72000000

MCB Investment Management Limited o4

2024 2023
Rupoes
720,000,000 720,000,000
2024 2023
Rupees
50,000,000 50,000,000
310,000,000 310,000,000
360,000,000 360,000,000
720,000,000 720,000,000
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133  The share capital was issued, subscribed and paid-up by the following related parties of the Company:

| 2024 11 2023 | | 2024 | 1 2023 |
Percentage holding {Mumber of shares)
MCE Bank Lirmited B1.42% 81.42% 58,620,935 58,620,935
Adamjea linsurance Compary Limiled 500, T.59% 5462 000 5462 000
Dhirectors, spouses and ther mihor childran © - - 3,200 3200
Otheers * - - 1,200 1.200
54 087 335 54 087 335

= Mil higures dus to rounding off differance.

13.4  “Defict on amalgamabion” represants a capital reserve which was crealed vpon amalgamabon of the Company mio Anl Habity
Investments Limiled in the year 2017 as more fully explained in nota 1.1 1o these fnanckl stloments.
Mote 2024 2023
14 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET Rup
Deferred tax assels arizing on deductible temporary differences
- Lease liability against right-of-use assets (28 ,650,592) (34,154 567)
- Provision against advisory feo {4,836 825) {4,536, 826)
- Finanice cosl on oans 1o oxacilhv and ax-dinscios (B30 191) {1,034 455}
(34,386 609) {40,025 B4R
Deferred tax liabilities arising on taxable temporary differences
- Proparty and eguipmeant (including right-of-usoe assels) 18,367 839 26,575,341
- Inlangible-assats 106,668,486 105,842 066
- Invasiment in assocales 5,786 282 4 820 298
150,022 617 137,237,708
96,436,008 97,211,857
141 Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
Delerred Lax hability as at July 1 o7 211857 4117 465
Recogmsed in the statement of profil or loss 26 (T75.B49) 23,084 3592
RHecognized in olher comprehenshe income - -
Dalerred tax abilily a5 at June 30 06436 008 97.211 857
15 LEASE LIABILITY AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Company has entered inlo lease agreoments n respect of its vanows nented olfices. These were inibally measurod al
the presenl value of remaining lease payments, discounled using lhe Company’s incramental borrowing rale thal ranges
from 8.489% por annum o 23.77% por annum. The lease lishililies are subsequenty bemng measured at-amortisad cosst

using the effectve interest rate matbod

The amount of fulure payments for the leases and the penod i which these payments will become due are as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees
Presant valug ol mirumum laase paymenls 73,463,056 BT 575812
Less: current portion (42 B545,5086) (30,947,036)
30817 470 56 B2B 776
2024 Z023
- Prlsanl value of S Frmnt value of
i minimum lease ks minimum lease
i paymants s payments
Rupees
Mol later than one yesar 52 058,316 42 B45 508 43,053,255 30,847,036
Latar than ane year and not latar than five yoars 33,581,828 30,817 470 54,520,458 S 628,776
85,640,144 73,463 056 107,573,754 B7.57T5.812
Less: finance cost allocated o ulufe pafods {12 177.088) - (19,997 942} -
Present value ol minimum lease payimoents 73,463 056 73,453.{]‘.']_5 BY 575812 B7.57H5.812
Less: curnent portion {42 645 586) {42 645 586) {30,947 038) (30,947 036)
30817470 HUIE1 7470 SEIEEBET?'H SE.B.ZBI??E
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16.2

Mote 2024 2023
Movement of lease liability against right-of-use assels Rupoos
Loasa lishility against nght-of-use-assets as at the boginning of tha year BT 575,812 44 B35S 5TH
Addittons duning the yvear 24,384 975 B3.531.136
Interest exponsa on lease lability against fight-of-use-assols 14. 720406 10,954 777
Effoct of termination of leaso (4,183 ,485) (6,288.231)
Loase rentals paid against nght-of-use assels (49,044 652) (45 447 448)
Loasa liahility against night-of-use-assets as at the ond of the year 73,463,056 B7.575812
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Accrued expenses 16.1 287 152 191 70,0091 592
Bonus payable 182,360,779 117,682 516
Sindh Workers' Wedlare Fund payabie 16.2 93.971 867 68,022,845
Sales tax payable 14,577 062 10,500,617
Federal Excise Duty payable 16.3 412,892 880 412,852 880
Withhoiding tax payable 35,022 951 14,046,540
Payable to Tadilitators / distributors 106,969,539 44,704,721

1,132,947,260 737941711

This includes an amount of Rs. 158.5 million recognised as provision as mome fully explained in nole 242 o theso
financial statements.

As a consequonce of the 18th amondment o the Constitution of Pakistan, in May 2015 the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund
Act 2014 (SWWF Act) had been passed by the Governmaenl of Sindh a5 a resull of which every indusinal establishment,
including financial institutions, located in the Province of Sindh, the total income of which in any accounting year is nol
less than Rs 0.50 million, s oguined to pay Sindh Workers' Welfane Fund (SWWF) in respect of that year a sum equal to
two percent of such income. The matior was taken up by MUFAP with the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) collectively on
betall of various asset managemenl companies and their ClSs whoreby it was contested that AMCs and mutual funds
should be excluded from the ambit of the SWWF Act as these werne not industnal estahlishments. The MUFAP has also
taken up the matior with the Sindh Finance Ministry 1o have AMC's cxduded from the applicability of SWWE In view of
the above developments regarding the applicability of SWWF on AMC'2, the managoement as a matter of abundant
caution, has made provision in respect of SWWF on-a prudent basis with offect from the date of enaciment of the
SWWTF Act {i.e. starting from July 1, 2014}

The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duly (FED) on financial services to indude Assst
Managemeni Companics (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate:of 16 percent on the remuneration of the Company
and sales load was applicable with effect from June 13, 2013, The Company was of the view that since the remuneration
was already subject o provincial sates tax, further levy of FED would result in double taxation which did not appear o be
the spirit of the law. Henee, on Soptembaor 4, 2013 a constitutional petition was filod with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by
the Comgany together with various olher assel management companies challenging the levy of FED.

With efiect from July 1. 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial institutions dealing in
services which aro subjoct 1o provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by the Finance Act, 2016.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the SHC pasced an order whereby all nofices, procoedings taken or ponding,
orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act. 2005 in respect of the rendonng or providing
of sernvices (lo the extonl as challenged In any relevant petition) were sel aside. In response fo this, the Deputy
Commissioner Inand Revenue has fled a Civil Petition for leave to appead in the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is
peding adjudication.

In view of thi above, thie Company has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED with effect from July 1,
2016. Howover, a5 a matier of abundant caution, the provision for FED already made amounling to Rs. 412 8593 million s
being retained in the lnancal statemanis of the Company as the matier is ponding before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan. A comesponding receivable of the same amounl has beon recorded as recotvable from the funds under the
managoment of the Company as disclosed in node 9.1 to these finandal statoments.
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CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

On Juna 20, 2014, the Punjab Revenue Authorly issued 8 show causa notice no. PRAIAMT14/18 fo the Company o
pay Sales Tax on management fee samed in the province of Punjab under the Punjab Sales Tax on Sarvices Act, 2012
with affect from May 22, 2013. The Manageamanl Company jonily with other Assel Managemenl Companies through the
trustees of their Collective Investment Schemes challenged the above notice wide a pstition bed on July B, 2014 in the
Honourabie Sindh High Courd (SHC). Tha SHC had ardered suspension of the show cause notice inits order dated July
10, 2014 tl the date of the nexl hearing of appeals. The managemaont s expecting o outflow of economic resources in
this respec as the paymanits relating o sales tax have already been made to the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB)} and in
case decision is made againsi the Company, the samea s required o be seftied between the two authoriiies. During tha
current year, the SHC vide an order dated September 11, 2023 has dismissed the case on the grounds that the enfire
liability had been paid io the SRB and the same is admitbed by the SRB's counssl. The SHC in iis order has directed the
Company to pursue the SCHN with the PRA and has directed SHREB nol to take any coorcive action against the Company
pending adjudication of the SCM.

On January 30, 2017, the Additional Commissionar Inland Revenue [ACIR] passed an order under section 122{5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amending the assessmont for fax year 2011 after making ceriain additions | disallowances
m the statement of profit or loss and ceated a demand of Bs. 25.567 million. The disallowances mainly pertained o
apportionmant of expanses, managemenl / processing fese and relaled income sharing. amorlisalion of managament
nghis | goodwill created on merger of the MCB Assel Management Company (MCB AMC) into the Company etc. The
Company than fed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR{A]] against the impugned order
and a notice of demand issued thereagainst The CIR{A) annulled the order of the ACIR by deleting demand on all the
imsuas raised thersin. Being aggrieved by lhe decsion of CIR(A), an appeal againsl the order of CIR{A) had been filed
before the Appeoifaie Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] by the Commissioner Inland Revenue. Based on the advice of s
lax consultant, the managemen! anficipates a favourable outcome of such appeal, and accordngly, no provision has
bean recorded in these financial sialements lor the above matier

The Company was selecled lor audit by the Commmssioner Inland Revenue, fona 1, Large Taxpayers Umil, Karachi for
tax year 2014 vide lotter dated November 9, 2016, The audit proceedings were conducted by the Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenues [DCIR] and a Show Cause MNolice [SCHN] dated February 10, 2017 was tssued therealter. Based on 2
then recenl judgment of a supenor courl, the SCN was challenged by the Company on legal grounds. However, the DCIR
did not agree with the legal objections raised and passed an order dated March 24, 20107 under section 122{1) of the
Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 after making certain additions |/ disallowances in the slatement of profit or loss and created
a demand of Rs. 93388 million. The disallowances manly pertaned 1o apportionment of expenses, managemeani
procéssing fee and related income sharing. amortisation of management righis / goodwill created on merger of the MCB
AMC info the Company etc. An appeal before lhe Commissianer Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)}] was filed by the
Company which had been adjudged in favor of the Company in respect of major disallowances made in the order passed
by the DCIR. In respect of the malters confirmed by the CIR{A), the Company had fled an appeal before the ATIR. Baing
apgrioved by the decision of CIR{A), an appeal has also been fled by the Commissioner Inland Revenue before the
ATIR. Based on the advice of is tax consultant, the menagemeaent anticipates a avowrable oulcome of such appeals,. and
accordingly, no provision has been recorded in thess fmancial siatements for the above matter.

On March 28, 2017, the Additional Commisstoner Inland Revenue (ACIR) passed an order under sechion 122{5A] of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 amending the assessmont for fax year 2012 afler making ceriain additions | disallowances
in the stalement of profil or loss and created a demand of Rs. B2 841 milion. The disallowances mainly partained o
apportionmant of expanses, managemeanl / processing fee and relaled income sharing, amorilisalion of management
nights / goodwill created on merger of the MCEB AMC nito the Company, disalfowance of brought forward losses [/ refunds
of prior periods eic. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR{A]] against
the impugned order 2nd notice of demand ssued there againsl The CIR{AjJannulled the order of the ACIR by delsting
demand on all tha issves mked therein. Being aggrieved by the decision of CIR{A), an appeal againsl the order of
CIR{A) had been fled before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue [ATIR] by the Commissicner Indiand Revenue. Based
on the advice ol s Bx consuftant, the manesgemsnl enticipates a favowable oulcome of such appeals, and accordingfy,
no provision has bean recorded in these inancial stalemenis for the above matter.

On April 29, 2017, a nolice under section 122(8) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by the Addilional
Commissionar Infand Revenue (ACIR) o conduct the amendment of assessment proceedings for tax year 2011 of the
pre-merger entity MCB AMC. On July 3, 2017, an order under section 122{54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, was
passed to conclude the said proceedings. A demand of Rs. 485 milion had besn raised by the AGIR by making
disafiowances mainly pertaining o apporfionment of expenses, managemeant / processing fee and related income sharing
and disallowance of brought forward losses. The Campany then lled an appeal before the CIR{A) against the impugned
order and notice of demand issued there againsl. During the year ended June 30, 2018, order of the CIR{A) was
recoived by the Company whoreby the demand on maior issues was deleted. In respect of the matiers upheald by CIR{A)
agamst the appeal filed by the Company, the Company then fied an appeal before the ATIR for the said ssues. Baing
apgrieved by the decision of CIR{A), an appeal against the order ol CIR{A) had been fled bafore the Appeliate Tribunail
Inland Revenue [ATIR] by the Commissiocner Inland Revenus. Based on the advice of ils lax consultant, the management
anticipates a favourable outcome of such appeals; and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial
statements for the above matter.
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17.1.6

1T

1716

17.1.9

On February 29, 2016, the Deputy Commissionor Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 122 (1) of the
Income Tax Ordimance, 2007 refating to tax year 2010 of MCB AMC making cortain additions / disallowances in the
retun filed by the Company. The assessing officer adjusted the impact of disallowances and reduced the amount
refundable in respect of that tax year o Rs 1.947 millicn. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Infand
Revenue (Appeals) [CIRIA) against the said order. CIR(A) vide its ordor dated Decembor 11, 2017 deleted the
disallowances madae by DCIR.

Subsaquently, the Company again received a notice of demand amounting to Rs 0.980 million on May 4, 2016 from the
Additional Commissionor Intand Rovenue (ACIR) against which it fied an appeal bofore the CIR(A). CIR(A) vide its ordor
dated January 22, 2018 uphetd the demand raised by the ACIR. Being aggrieved by the decision of CIR{A}, the Company
fiied an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Intand Revenue (ATIR} against the order passed by CIR{A) which is pending
theroin. Basad on the advice of itz fax consultant, the management anticipates a favourable cutcome of such appeaals,
and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matber.

On November 24, 2017, the Company recoived two orders pertaining to lax years 2015 and 2016 passed by the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIHR) and Depuly Commissioner Infand Revenue (DCIR) raising demands of
R=. 118,350 million and Rs. 142.008 million respectively due 1o certain disaliowances in the refumn filed by the Company
for the mespeciive tax years. Tho disallowances mainly porfained fo apporfionmont of expensos, management |
processing fee and related income sharing, amortisation of mansgemaent rights ! goodwill created on merger of the MCB
AMC inlo the Company, trestment of provision for FED as income of the Company eic. The Company filed separate
appeals bafore the CIR(A) against the impugned orders and notices of demand issuod thersagainst. During the year
ended June 30, 2018, CIR{A) uphold the demands raised by both ACIR and DCIR in both fhe appeals. Being aggricved
by the decision of CIR{A), the Company had ficd appeals with Appeliaie Tribunal Inland Revenuc (ATIR) which is
pending thercin. Basod on the advice of its tax consuitant, the managemant anticipatcs a favourable outcome of such
appeals, and accordingly, no prowsion has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matters.

On June 5, 2017, the Company received an Order dated May 26, 2017 passod by the Assistant Commissioner - Sindh
Fevenue Board [AC SRE] whorein a demand of Sindh sales tax of Rs.10.621 million along with penalty of Rs. 6.329
million and default surcharge (o be calculaled at the fime of payment) was established for short levy and payment of
Sindh Sales Tax on ils services and for claiming inadmissible input tax during tax periods from July 2011 to June 2015,
An appoal against the aforesaid order was filed before the Commissioner Appeals-SRB who upheld the order of the
Assistant Commissioner, SRB in its Appallate Order. The Company then fled an appesl before the Appellate Tribunal,
SRB against aforesaid order of the Commissoner Appeals, SRB. The Appaltate Tribunal, SRBE remanded back the case
o the Commissionor Appeals - SRB to pass fresh speaking order afier verifying the records on meerit.

Buring the yoar ended June 30, 2021, Commissioner Appeals - SRB issued an order whereby the domand raised by AC
8RB amounting o Rs. 10.621 million was upheld. The Company, boing aggrieved with the said order, filed an appeal
before the Appeliate Tribunal, SRB. The stay was grantod by Appeliate Tribunal, SREB on July 6, 2021. Upon expiry of
stay granied by Tnbunat, the Company then fled for 3 stay application with Honourable Sindh High Court (SHC) which
was duly granfed by SHC.

Druring the current year, Appellate Tribunal, SRB issued an order dated March 26, 2024 whereby the Appoflate Tribunal,
SRB deleted the demand of Rs. 7.568 million on account of input tax adjustment disallowed to the Company and the
remaining demand amounting to Rs. 3.033 millicn on account of short payment of Sindh Sales Tax was remanded back
to AC SIRB with spocific directions to pass fresh assessment order after providing proper opportunity of being heard to
the Company. In this regard, subsequent to the year end, AC-SRB Bsued a Show Cause Notice (SCN) to the Company
dated August 5, 2024 Tho procoedings are currently underway at SREB.

Based on the advice of s fax consultant, the management anticipates a favourable oufcomo of such appeal pending
before SRE Tribunal Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these finandal siatements for the above matier.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) had ssued two orders dated October 2, 2018
and October 10, 2018 wheneby it raised a demand of Sindh sales tax amounting fo Rs. 3.8542 million and 1.275 millicn
along with penalty of Rs. 4.047 million and Rs. 1.402 million respoctively wherain input tax daimed by the Company
agzinst various fransactions has beon disallowed by the assessing officer on the ground that tho outpul tax against the
same has not beon offored by the respective wendors. The Company then filed separate appeals against the aforosaid
orders bofore the Commissioner Appeals, SRB.On April 27, 2022, an Ordor-in-Appeal was issued by Assisiant
Commissioner, SRB whoreby onginal demand of Rs. 2605 million, including penalty imposed thorein, was reduced to
Rs. 67,186 which was duly discharged by the Company. Howowver, the appeal filed against the order dated October 2,
2018 is sfill pending thercin. Based on the advice of its tax consultant, the management anticipatos a favourable outcome
of such appeals, and sccordingly, no provision has boen recorded in these financial statements for the above matier
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417.1.10 The Deputy Commissioner Inlznd Revenue (DCIR) issued a notice dated September 13, 2018 under section 2140 of the

171N

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whareby it requested for audit and fumnishing of det=il, eviddences and infonmation. The
Company has submitled s reply in consuliation with its fax consultant for dismissing the proceedings initisted under
sechion 2140 as the selechon of audit was made afier the provision of sechon 2140 was omilted via Finance Act, 2018.

Durning the yvear ended June 30, 2021, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued a show cause nofice on account of short
payment of Sindh Sales Tax amouniing o Rs. 9.975 million pertaining to tax pericds from July 2015 G0 June 2016, The
Assistant Commissioner, SRB vide Order-in-Onginal No. 966/2021 dated December 13, 2021 rmaised a demand of Rs.
9.975 million along with a penalty of Rs. 0.499 milion. The Company, being aggricved with the said decision, filed an
appeal with Commissioner (Appeals), SRB. The Company also filed for a stay application with the Honourable Sindh
High Court {SHC) which was duly granied by SHC on January 17, 2022 The Commissioner (Appeals), SRB vide ifs
orider daled February 2, 2022 upheld the demand raised by Assistanl Commissionesr, SRB. The Company, being
aggrigved by the order passed by Commissioner (Appeats), SRB filod an appeal before the Appeflate Tribunal, SRB.
Subsoquent to the year ended June 30, 2022, the Appeailate Tribunal, SRB vide an ordor dated August 10, 2022 upheld
the decision of Commissionor (Appeals), SREB. In response o the order of Appeollate Trnbunal, SRB, the Company had
filed an appeal with the SHC. Further, the Company also fled for a stay application with the SHC which has been duly
granted by SHC. Based on the advice of s tax consultant, the management anficipates a favourable outcome of such
appeal, and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements for the above matter

17.1.12 On June 20, 2022, a Show Cause Notice (SCN) under section 161{1A) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was issued by

Deputy Commissioner Intand Rovenue (DCIR) for tax year 2016, On June 27, 2022, DCIR issued an Order under section
161{1) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby it created a demand amounting to Rs. 29.078 milion on account of short
deduction of withhoiding taxes. Being aggreved with the said order, the Company filed an appeal with Commissionar
Appeals Intand Revende [CIR{A)]. During the current year, CIR{A) vide an ordor dated August 31, 2023 remanded back
the case to the DCIR for re-adjudication. Based on the advice of ils fax consuitant, the manmagement anticipates a
favourable outcome of such appeals, and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements Tor
the above matior

17.1.13 During the year June 30, 2023, the Deputy Commissionor Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued Show Cause Notice (SCN)

dated January 20, 2023 to recover super tax on high eaming persons under section 4C read with section 9 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 daiming thai the income of the Company as defined in sub-seclion (2} of soction 4C of fho
Ordinance s subject lo super tax at the rate of 4% and hence, computed the amount of soper tax o Rs. 13.142 malficn
against the taxable income of Re_328.556 milon. In response to the aforesaid SCN, the Company vide its {ox advisor,
submiited a response to the DCIR whereby the Company was of the view that the super tax under seciion 4G of the
Ordinance is applicable prospectivaly from tax year 2023 and onrwards in fight of the judgment of the Honourable Sindh
High Court (SHC).

DCurning the cument year, the DCIR vide an order dated Acgust 8, 2023 under section 4C to recover supar tax not paid
with refurn. Being aggreved with the aforesaid order, the Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner Appesls
Inland Revenue [{CIR{AJ]. CIR{A) upheld the order of DCIR vide an appeliate order passed under secion 129(1) of the
Ordinance dated Sepltember 15, 2023: The Company in response to the order passed by CIR{A) paid an amount of Rs.
13.566 million under protest but also filod an appeal with the Appoltate Trbunal Infand Revenue (ATIR) against the order
passed by CIR{A) which is pending thorain.

417.1.14 Duning the yoar ended June 30, 2023, the Deputy Commuissioner Intand Revenue (DCIR) ssued Show Cause Motice

(SCN) dated Oclober 31, 2022 under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the DCIR initiated
proceedings regarding monitoring of withhotding for tax year 2017. In this regard, the Company through its tax advisor
submitied required necessary documents against the said nofice. The DCIR then issuad an Order undor socion 181(1)
of the Ordinance whereby it created a demand of Rz 15.121 million along with pemalty and default surcharge against
short paymant of withholding income tax. Being aggrioved by the order of DCIR, the Company filed an appeal with
Commiissioner Appeals Infand Revenue [CIR{AY. During tho cumant year, CIR{A) vide an order dated Auwgust 18, 2023
remanded back coriain matiors to the DCIR for re-adjudication and docided corlain matters in the favour of the
Company. No appeal effect order has been inifiated in this respect till date. Based on the advice of iis tax consultant, the
management antidpates a favourable outcome of such appeal, and accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these
financial statements.

2024 2023
Commitmants Rupees

Commitment against renovation of islamabad branch - 1.082 318
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MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT ADVISORY FEE

Management fee from collective investment schemes - related parties

MCB Cash Managemenl Oplimizer

MCB Pakislan Assel Allocatson Fund

MCB DCF Income Fund

Alharmera lskamic Incoma Fund

MCH Pakistan Soveregn Fund

Pakislan Capilal Markel Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Income Enhbancament Fund

Pakistan Inocome Fund

Altsamra lslamic Asset Allocation Fund

MCEB Pakistan Stock Markel Fund

Alhamea islamic Stock Fund

Alamra Islamic Mongy Markel Fund

Altamra Daily Dividend Fund

Alharmra {stamic Active Allocation Fund (Alhamra Smart Portioha)

Alhamea Wada Fund (Alhamira Wada Plan 1)

Alhaimra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan 1)

Albamra Wada Fund (Alhamira Wada Plan (111}

Albsrrera Wadsa Fund (Alhasmra Wada Plan IV)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamea Wada Plan V)

Allamra Wada Fund (Athamra Wada Plan Vi)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Athamra Wada Plan VIl

Alharmra Wada Fund {Alhama Wada Plan VIl

Alhamea Wada Fund (Alharmira Wada Plan 1X)

Alhaimra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X)

Albamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X1

Albarmera Wadsa Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X))

MCH Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Pian 1)

MCB Pakistan Fxed Return Fund (MCEB Pakistan Foed Returm Plan 1)

MCE Pakistan Fixed Hetum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixxed Returm Plan 1)

MCB Pakistan Fixed Betum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan V)

MCEB Pakislan Fixed Relum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Plan V)

MEB Pakislan Fiked Hetum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Pian V1)

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retim Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Helum Plan VI

MCH Pakisian Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Plan 1X)

MCHB Pakislan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Pian X)

MCB Pakistan Fxed Retun Fund (MCEB Pakistan Foed Retum Plan X1

MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Plan X1H)

MCB Pakistan Fixed Hetum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan X101

MCEB Pakislan Fixed Helum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Plan X1V

MCEB Pakislan Fiked Hetum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurmn Plan X\V)

MCB Pakistan Fixed Retim Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Helum Plan X\VI)

MCH Pakistan Fixed Ratum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Retum Ptan XVIl)

MCB Pakislan Fixed Hetum Fund (MCB Pakistan Ficed Retum Pian XVl

MCE Pakistan Fixed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Returm Plan X1X)

MCB Pakistan Fixed Betum Fund (MCB Pakistan Fixed Return Plan XX)

MCEB Pakislan Fixed Helum Fund (MCB Pakislan Fixed Relurn Plan XXI)

Albamra Cash Managemanl Oplimizar

MCB Pakistan Opportunily Fund (MCB Pakestan Dwidend Yield Plan)

Alhamra Opportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Plan)

MCEB DCF Fiked Refum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1)

MCB DCF Fxed Retum Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Return Plan 1)

Alharmra Govaernment Secuntes Found (Albamra Government Securibes Plan 1)
182
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Management fee from pension schemes - related parties

Alhamea slamic Pension Fund
Pakistan Pension Fund

MCE Alhamra KPK Governmant Employees’ Pension Fund

MCB KPK Govarmananl Employeas’ Pensian Fund

Investmeant advisory fee from soparately managed acoounls

Less: Sindh Sales Tax

182
183

2024 2023
Rupbas -
26,253,716 18,620 426
435 979,743 28, 036,127
441,823 -
186,699 -
72 851,981 45, 656,553
48 061,480 60,529 899
1.817 616,664 1.244 0B1,685
(209, 106,342) (143,124 443)
1. 608,510,322 1.100.857 262

This pertains 1o Sindh Sales Tax levied by he Provincial Government of Sindh at Lhe mate of 139% (2023 13%) through

the Sindh Sales Tax on SoervicesAct, 2011,

Remuneration for the services rendered by the Managemanl Company has bean caiculated by applying the following
rales on the average annucal nel assels of lhe funds delermingd on a dally basis (unless olherwise staled) in
accordance with o provisions of thae Nop-Banking Fioance Companies (Establshinenl and Roegulatkon) Rules, 20003
{lher MBFC Rules), the Non-Banking Finance Compames and Notified Entiies Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC
Ragulations) and the Vaoluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules).

Opan-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

MCE Cash Managemean Oplimlser

MCEB Pakislan Assel Allocaton Fund

MCB DCF Incoime Fuind

Alhamra iskamic Income Fund

MCEB Pakistan Soveraign Fund

Pakistan Cagetal Marke! Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancament Fund

Pakistan Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Assel Allocaton Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Markel Fund

Alhamra islamic Stock Fund

Alhamra lslamic Monay Markel Fund

Altamra Islamic Actve Allecation Fund (Alhamima
Srmarl Portioho)

Alrarmra Daity Dividesd Fund

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhcimra Wada Plan 1)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhcimra Wada Plan 1)

Alhamra Wada Fund {Alkamra Wada Plan 111}

Alhamea Wada Fund (Alhamna Wada Plan IV)

Alharmra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan V)

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan V)

Alhamra Wada Fuend (Alhamra Wada Plan VIl *

Alharmra Wada Fund {Alhamra Wada Plan VIlL) =

Alharmea Wada Fund (Alharmima Wada Plan 1X) ™

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhcimra Wada Plan X) *

Alhamra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan X1 ™

Albssimra Wada Fund (Alhamra Wada Plan XI1) **

MCB Pakistan Fimed Retum Fund (MCB Pakistan
Fixed Hatum Plan 1)

MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakslan
Fixed Returm Plan 1)

MCB Pakistan Fiked Retum Fund (MCB Pakiskan
Fixed Redum Pran 1il)

MCB Investment Management Limited

Mote

18.2.1

1822
18.2.2

1822
18.2.3
18.22

1823

1823
18.2:4
18.23
18.23
1823
1823
1823
1823
1823
1823
18.2.3

1823

1823

18.23

2024 2023
4%, 3.30%
1-50% 1.50%
3.35% 3.35%
3.30% 3.30%
2% 2%
2% 2%
1.75% -
1.75% -
1.75% -
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Note 2024 2023

MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakislan

Fixed Return Plan V) 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Raturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan V) 1823 - -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Relum Plan V1) 1824 = =
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Retum Plan VII) * 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Plan 1X) 1823 - -
MCEB Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakislan

Fixed Return Plan X) * 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Raturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixed Relurm Plan X1} 182.3 - =
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Plan XI1) * 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Retum Plan X1} * 1823 - -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Flan X} = 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakislan

Fixaed Return Plan XV) 1.75% -
MCEB Pakistan Fixed Raturn Fund (MCEB Pakistan

Fixed Relurm Plan XVI1) = 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixaed Relum Plan X\VII) * 1.¥5% -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixad Retum Plan XV ** 1.75% -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Relurm Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Relum Plan XIX) ™ 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Fixed Return Fund (MCB Pakislan

Fixad Return Plan XX) "™ 1.75% -
MCB Pakistan Fixed Retlurn Fund (MCB Pakistan

Fixed Returm Plan XX} =™ 1.75% -
MCE Pakistan Opporiunily Fund (MCB Pakistan

Dividand Yiakd Plan) 1% 1%
Alhamra Cash Managemenl Oplimizar 182 1 = =
Alhearmira Opporlunity Fund {Dividend Stralegy Plan) = 4%, =
MCB DCF Fixed Raturn Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Relurn Plan 1) ** 1.75% 2
MCE DCF Fixed Return Fund (MCB DCF Fixed Rolurn Plan W) = 1.75% -
Alhamra Government Securiies Fund

{Ahamra Govemmen! Sacunbes Plan 1) " 286 =

Voluntary Pension Funds

Pakistan Pension Fund 0.5% 1o 1.5% 0.5% o 1.58%
Alhamra lslamic Pension Fund 0.5% lo 1.5% 0.5% to 1.5%
MCB Alhamra KPK Govaernmonl Emplovess’ Pansan Fund " 0.15% to 0.8% -

MCB KPK Governmenl Emplovess’ Panigion Fund ** 0.15% to 0.8% -

Discrotionary portfolio
Separalely managed accounts 18.3 0.4% o 1.5% O.07% to 2%

* Thesa funds have matured duning the curreant yoar.

™ Thess lunds have beoen Bunched during the curmenl yvear,
= Thaesa lunds have been launched and malured during the curmenl year.
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18.21

18.2.2

18.2.3

18.2.4

18.2.5

Upto 7.5% of all gross camings of the Schema.
Uiptos 10% of all gross carmings of the Scheme:
Upto 15% of all gross earnings of the Schome.
Upto 20% of all gross earnings of the Scheme:

10% of accrued bank profit to be calkculated on a daily basis.

The Company is also managing porifolio of investors undor discrotionary and non-discretionary porifolio management
agreemonts. Investment advisory fee from the discretionary portfolio is calculated on daily / monthly basis by charging
specified rates to the net asset value of the portfolio as stated in the respective agreements with the chents. In
addition, performance foe is charged to some investors based on the condraciual mies at the end of the respecive

mandates. The details of this portfolio are given below:

Discretionary portfolio

MNumber of portfolics

Total portiodio at cost (in Rupaes)

Total portfolio at market value (in Rupeos)

SALES LOAD AND OTHER RELATED INCOME

Sales load from collective investment schemes - related partios
MCB DCF Income Fund

MCB Pakistan Asset Allocation Fund

Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund

MCB Pakistan Soversign Fund

MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund

Pakistan Cash Management Fund

Pakistan Income Enhancoment Fund

Pakistan Income Fund

Alhamra Istamic Income Fund

Alhamra Islamic Stock Fund

Alhamra Islamic Assot Allocation Fund

Alhamra Daily Dividoend Fund

Alhamra istamic Active Allocation Fund (Alhamra Smart Porifolio)
Alhamra Cash Management Cptimizer

MCB Pakistan Opportunity. Fund (MCB Pakistan Dividend Yiold Plan)
Adhamra Cpportunity Fund (Dividend Strategy Pian)

Sales load from voluntary pension schemes - related parties
Pakistan Pension Fund

Alhamra Istamic Pension Fund

Less: Sindh Sales Tax

Other related incoma

Commission inoome
DPebit card incomea

GAIN ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS - NET

Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds (PlB=)
Gatn on sale of Markat Treasury Bills (MTBs)
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Mote

18.1

2024 2023
H 33
85 823,182,247 73,259.480,820
94,171,813,832 72073,197.923
2024 2023
Rupeos
125,110,006 48,857,147
4,471 IB82 263
752 855 2,663,739
6,605,509 132173
3,141,399 220,119
42 325 60,453
11,043,044 6,612 588
2 054, 505 8,577 285
51,305,767 15,828,191
1,303,682 59,231
399,933 5,879,804
4 422 006 9901 475
- 213125
3,623,647 772 885
677,130 -
392,034 =
210,889.213 99,960,518
2722318 1,822 175
2 846,330 BEB 127
5,068 628 2,710,302
216,457 861 102 670,820
(24,502 333) (11.811,687)
191,555,629 90,859,133
83,6852 845,734
2 058,536 1972771
2 183,188 2822 505
193,738 817 93 781,638
2042 848 -
1.923.777 -
3,866,725 -
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Fal

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benafis
Legal and professional charges

Shariah advisory fee

Traveliing and conveyance
LUiilies, communicaiion, couner, taxes, efc.
Repairs and maintenance

(Hfice supplies

Directors’ meeling fee

Insurance
Degreciation
Amortization

Stamp duty and faxes

Registrar fee

Printing and stationary
Entertainment expenses
Fees and subscription

Telephone expenses

Reimbursemeant of expenses from
Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benafis

Commission exXpense

Marketing and advertising expenses

Dreprectation

Branch expanszes

Printing and stationery

Reimbursemeant of expenses from
Collective Investment Schemes (CISs)

FINANCIAL CHARGES

Interest expenss on leass fiability against nght-of-use-assels

Bank charges

OTHER EXPENSES

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Audifors’ remunaration
Revorsal against reimbursement of selling and marketing

EXDENSES

Auditors® remuneration

Annual audit fee

Fee for half yearly review of condensed interim financial stziemenis

Fee for other certifications

Fee for ofher services

Cart of pocket expenses and Sindh Sales Tax

MCB Investment Management Limited 104

MNote

411

411

16.1
241

2024 2023
e e [ SO S o s e
620,732 558 494 241 566

28.571.461 13.424 D63
1,060,000 720,000
5,262,660 2,530,554

37 650,154 28,502 166

B0.387.001 62 478,144

4 B23472 3,863,124

8,125,000 13,425,000

4,468 451 2 464 0538

44 825,118 41,552 363

13,286 470 15,557 524

1,304,496 1,068,776

1,246, 548 1,245,700

8.176,043 4,908 282

10,026,343 6,186,012

45,091,128 32,231,514

4. 650,521 5,071,081

920 687 485 730,870,367
(142.330,888) _ (67,294,834)
¥7B.356,577 663,575,533
238,226,183 204,058,945
470.062 378 214 569 887
54,625,008 61,619,646

14,968,023 16,037,534

22 314,469 17221918

1,028,365 817,930
801.224 514 514,325 880

(683,821,848) (477.911,192)
117,402 665 36,414,668

14,720,406 10,854,777
3,384.910 295,886

18,115,316 11.250.663

25,940 022 12,529,019

6,076,800 5,074 655
158,502 581 -
190,528 403 17 603 674

3,000,000 2,600,000

500,000 400,000
250,000 250,000
1,500,000 1,000,000
826,600 524 655
6.076.800 5.074 653
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

242 Reversal against reimbursement of selling and markeling expenses
Dunng the year, SECP camoed out an inspection of the Company and highlighted, among other matters, the mochamsm
of chargeability of selling and marketing cxpenses 1o the funds under s management and advised cerain changos
inciuding the allocalion of the aforementioned expenses betwoen the funds for the period covored by the SECP.
Subscquent to the year ond, the Company agreed to crodit the amount of Hs. 158503 million to identificd unit holdors
of the respective Funds and has recognised a provision of Rs_ 158 503 millicn in the books of the Company dunng the cument
yoar.
Note 2024 2023
25 OTHER INCOME Rupess
Intorest inceme on loans to excoutive and dirocto 1,422,845 1,827,711
Gain on disposal of property and equipment i1ez 69,750
Othots 1,164 632 867 262
2619554 2 864 723
26 TAXATION
Current
- for tho year 392 609 337 214 548 582
- for prior year 18,358 482 (1.939.614)
410,967,819 212,608 368
Diglesrred 14.1 {775,.849) 23,084 3592
410.191.970 235,703, 760
26.1 Relationship betwoen income tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxation 1,271,484 346 613,921,946
Tax rale 29% 29%
Tax on accounting profit at agphcablo rato 368,733,360 176,037 364
Fax offect of prior years 18,358 482 {1,930, 614)
Tax offect of inadmissiblo expensos 40 4591 313 11,277,567
fax aoffect of pormancot difcrences (93,246 938) (12256, 150)
Fax cffed of income taxed al lower rale (77 577, 165) (B O67,243)
Tax effect of income subject to final tax {3.510.944) {1,360, 263)
Tax offect of change in tax rato - 15457 661
Tax offect of super tax 107,936,798 54,558 501
Othots 49,007 062 {5,463)
410,191,970 235,703,760

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

271 Basic

Earnings por sharme has boen computed by dividing profit aftor taxation for the vear by the weightod average numbor of

shams outstanding as at yoar ond as follows:

Profil for tho year aftor laxaton

Weightod average number of ordinary shares as at June 30

Earnings per share

2024

Rupees

2023

BE1,3023 378

378,218 186

.

(Mumber of shares)

2,000,000

72 (00,000

Rupees

11.96

525

27.2 Diduted carnings poer sharo has not boon prosentod as the Company does not have any convoertiblo instruments in
issue as al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 which would have any effect on the camings per share f the oplion o

comver S oxXarcisod.

MCB Investment Management Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The relaied pariies of the Company comprise of MCB Bank Limiled (Parent Company), associated companies, siaff
refirement funds, collective investment and pension schemes managed by the Company, directors and Key
management personnel and their close family members. Transaciions with related paries are entered into at negofiated
prices at commercial terms. The aogregate value of transactions and outstanding balances as at June 30, 2024 with
related parties other than those which have been disclosed elzsewhere are as follows:

Year ended
Relatinnship and percentage June 30, June 30,
Mame of the related HNature of fransaction
paty of sharehaiding 2024 i)
(Rupees)
MCH Barik Limilod Patanl compiarny wiliy Cioatamission and other expenses paid 258 B34 977 B3,372.126
B1.42% sharchalding Comemession paid ageins issuance of bechal unils T334 134 AT BT 525
(20T B 4% sharehoiding)  Pralil on savings aceoumnt 15041 512 5,123,204
Bramch shanng eagrises 1,384 658 2,765,820
Henl &5 por rental apesmani 5915 500 Q412 147
Dot pratid 5IT 588 415 36,9568 68
Bark cheanges 188 24 205 456
MCH kmic Bank Lanfod Suteadiary ol Prafil un sawings accound 419 23807
Prranl Compamy Cowmemeszsion and oflwar sxpersas 1,155,218 -
Adamies Lie Assiiranos Group Cofrgany Irnveslmeid sdvisory loe 19,532 BRS 37574 2
Company Limiled of Papenl Comparry Amoun pasd agars! insuEanon Ba20.211 Jed 188
Hyurtai Mkl Molor Group Company Purchass of fiaod assuls 6472000 -
{Privatn) Limiled of Panml Comgsany
Adamen [nswanoe Compsmy Group Company Amoun pad agais! nsuERce 24388 324 18,156,671
Lisrabiad ol Pament Company Dirvadend paid 48,158,000 54462 000
Rent 25 por nanlal agreesmend 300354 B4 26 870,766
Arnoumd pead ageins dlilifies 16,278 645 13,534 540
Mutuzl Funds Assocmion Assodated Compary by Armoumd pead ageinst memborship lee TN 576 5,055,165
of Palastan it ol common direclorship
of Mr. Khawaga Khail Shah
MCE Cash Marssgomemik Furids ursder Managermonl s 271,143,351 315,606,374
Oyplimitzer Hianagerme irvazstment in wnits of nds under managemen 4N ETSRET 602 B40 684
Reduinpbon of unds of fuds undor- managoment 49477258 6008305320
Drvedend mcomsa 1,188,120 1,569,380
Risrnbiusermanl ol docaled exjanses 30,006,324 10,232 €31
Resmbursermnont of seding and markolng oxponses 165,150,425 16679174
MCB OCF Incormie Fund Funits undor Managarmanl fou 179 233 661 HED04 BAT
Marageman Saks foad BE 694,185 33, 160357
Back end load 24 003 B 9 594,065
Rembursermont of alocalad exponces 10222 352 S.EEE 87T
Hesmbursernont ol sefiing and markefing oxpenses S6.5E8 TT0 23,936 136
Atamia elamic Incomo Fund Funids rdar Managomanl foe ol 2 507 32 735,985
ErEEmE Sales foad B2 3m 9667744
Back end load 5,091,032 4,333 505
Shania fee paid on bahall of the Fund 390,000 T2, 000
Resnbursernonl of afocalod mponses 7584 Ba1 5,853 845
Hesmbursemen! of seling and markebng expenses 35047 53 o 4G 804
Irnverstimeid in Ldits of hnds under mansgemenl - 75,709,143
Redanphion of unds of kmds under memsgumen 6,785, 288 TO.613,140
Dirviderd income - M3A80
MCE Pakistan Assal Funids rdar Managomanl foe 20,070,980 231613
Alcation Fund ErEgE T Sales joad 3857 334 786
Resmbursermon of aliocaled axgarnses a2 Far Ti6.824
Resnburserneid of seflig and meckeling cxpanses 1.0, -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relationship 2nd parcentage dune 30, June 3,
Mame of the related party e Mature of transaction g s
—— {Rupess)

Alhzmea dsiarmic Money Funds under Manizgament fe 107 667 418 113,991,756
Mkt Fund manaEment Resmburssmenl of sfocatod expansas 13,272,225 2 B0 ART
Reimbursement ol seling and markeling expenses FATR 144 30 435 154
Bules load 66, 243 2357291
Shana fee pad an bahall of the Fund 350 00 F80,000
Invasimant in wils of lunds uwder managemen - BE0.974 336
Redemplion of unils of funds undor managament BED 974 336
Dividénd coms - 1.044 186
Alhamea Jslarmac Slock Fund Funds: wndi Managemant fea 50780 563 51,7 348.405
Fresiagement Sales hnad 1,153,101 82417
Resmbursemonl of allocalod expoenses 3,26 034 2 586 820
Resmburssmenl of soling and markebng exponses 16, /83,018 33 529 963
Invasimant in wils of lunds uwder managemen 100, 00, Do 25 00,000
Redemplien ol units of lunds undor masagament 121104 41,474,348
Sharna lee gad an bahall of the Fund 350 00 F80,000
MCB Pakmstan Soveregn Fund  Funds wodor Managemant fea 81,860,195 3,116,306
management Bales load 5845583 1160967
Resmbursemanl of allocalod axpenses T ZF 384 930 546
Rusmbursimenl of soling and markeling sxpoansss 31832 523 2,730,613
Irvestment in wils of lunds wder managemsenl 23 48582 510,354 360
Resdemplien ol unils of funds undor mansagement 1863 611,718 514, Fed Ba2

Dividénd coms 340 01 -
MCR Pakestan Stock Makel Funds: wndar Management fea 161,242 BES 139,616,166
Funed management Sales load 2719854 194, /96
Rosmburmement of aliocalod expensos 6015622 . B0 BOB
Resmburssmenl of soling and marksbng exponses 29 740 368 90,150 509
Invesiment in wiilz of lunds under managemenl 50,000,000 100,000,000
Redompiion of units of [unds under managoment 54108 B8O 199,367,853
Pakislan Capital Markel Fisd Funds et Manpgement foa 13,624 703 11,825,184
mesnaemeni Resmbursement of allocslod expanses 34 662 251,045

Reimbursemen ol selling and markeling expanses 1 246 446 -
Pakictan Cash Managamant Fuinds wnder Managemant fos 150 254290 BE_ 144 828
Fimnd managemant Resmbursemenl of aliocalod exponses 1301601 3,550,363
Reimburssment of seliing and markoling expunses 14306 618 58,650,205
Sales lnad Ar 456 53534

Dividond acoma 35,080 -

Invesimenl in wiels of lunds under menagemenl 60,029 518 -

Restlemiplion of widks of lunds undior fessagemonl 60 0 a18 -
Pakistan Incoma Funds wmier Masiisgyesmant foo 58839570 B 00 504
Enfarcarmsend Fund irEanEgment Sales load §rr3a02 5551 BAB
Reambursamin] of sllocslod expenses 5049 468 1,766,211
Retmbureemont of saling and maikoling axpansas 22 10,310 5157 416
Pakistan Incoma Fund Funds wmier Masiisgyesmant foo 23 564 046 15,330 425
irEanEgment Sales load 1,006,996 1590518
Reambursamin] of sllocslod expenses 2R BeY 4,604,502
Retmbureemont of saling and maikoling axpansas 12,7 A 15,794 118
Alhsmira lakarmic Ausel Fuifids uris Maiagyamant (oo A4 ATT 140 40 855 097
Aliocztion Furd irEanEgment Sales load 266,359 147 428
Back end load Br 564 5,055,938
Resmbiirasamont of alocalod expaimseas 1,232 196 1511973

Remmbursermil of seling and markobng expenses 3809676 -
Ehara lee paid on bahall ol he Fund 3ai 000 120,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retationshig and percantage June 30, Juns 30,
Wame of the relaled party of Mature of transaction 2084 o
——— (Rupees) ———
Alhmmra {atames: Pongson Funds wnder Managemant foe 33377 16,478,253
Fund managoment Sales |oad 2518876 85,833
Redemplicn of urds of funds under management 105,000 000 -
Palkistan Pensson Fund Funds wnder Managemant foe A0 650 038 24 810 732
management Eales load 2408131 1612544
Rodemption of unsls of funds under reanagemsnt 68 500,000 .
MCB Alhamra KPK Govemmont  Fonds under Manzpmont foe 350,954
Emploryees' Pensson Fund management Irvirsimont in units of furds under managemant 31,500,000
MCE KPK Govemment [Funds under Manspemint fos 165,24
Employees’ Pansson Fund imanagement Investmant in units of funds under managemant 31,500,000
Alhamra Igamic Actve Fuands wnder Managoment fos 67,334 BE, 208
Alipcation Fund (Alfsamra manapemoent Rombursemaent of dlocaled exponses 2170 122,362
Smart Poriiohs) Invnstmant in uks of funds wunder managemant 11,415,785 -
Redemplicn of urds of funds under management - 35,000,000
Dividend income 13,430,335 -
Sales hoad - 168,606
Mz Dy Dividend Fund Fumds isnder Manspement ios 4373 973 18,831,346
MmanapeEmenl Dividand inceme . 616.275
Investment in unds of funds undar managomant M7 856,756
Redemplion of units of furids under managomednl - 317 B56, 756
Roimbiirssmont of alldcated copensis 6,808 429 897 565
Reimbursamen of sedng and mearkeng cxpenses 35.558 29 21,2596 400
Bank charges paid on behall of e Fond 435452 448197
Sales load 3513280 8,762 367
Alhnmra Wada Fund [Fuands under Managemani fee 510,297
(Adhamra Weada Plan 1) managoment Dividond income 38210
Invesiment in unds of funds wnder managemenl Pt R TL
Redemption of unils of funds under managament 50,358 725
Rembursemoent of sofing and markobng expenses 242 B55
M Wasta Fund Fuinits isnder Manspement fos 1, 758948
(Adhmra Wada Plan IT) MmanapeEmenl Dividand inceme 31,814
Investment in unds of funds undar managomant 40441 673
Redemplion of units of furids under managomednl 40 441 672
Roimbidrssmont of sefing and moekofiing axpenses 1,365,810
Afhamrn Wada Fund Funds under Manzpmont foe 636,958
(A Wada Plan 1) managemen| Dividerd income 112547
Investiment in unds of funds under managoemanl 18,191 314
Recemption of unils of funds under managoment 19,191,314
Rembursement of alocslnd exponses -
Rimbursemen of sofing and markeing cxpenses 1,265,881
Ahamra Wada Fund TFunds under Manapemand foe 2087841
(Adhamra Wada Plan IV) marnagement Dividend incoma TR3 56D
Ineestment in wnis of funds Ender management 45 254 523
Redemplon of units of funds under managamsant 46264 623
Rembursemont of allocaled exponses 66,023
Reimbursement of seling and mearkoling cxpenses B3 BR5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retationship and percantage June 30, June 30,
Hame of the related party ol g i Hature of transaction 254 s
——— [Rupees) ———
Alhamra Wads Fund Funds undor Managemant fog 150,800
(Mdhamma Wada Plan V) mznagement Dividend income 164215
imvesiment in unis of funds undor manogement 25,130,583
Redemplion of units of funds under management 25192 650
Rembursement of allocated exponses 397 687
Albzmra Weasda Fund Funds imder Mansgement foo M50
{Adtamra Wada Flon Vi) manseement Dividand moome 152,820
Invesiment in onsts of funds under managemont 100,129,990
Redemplion of units of funds under managemient 100 650,013
Roimbursemont of allocated cxpenses 1810
Aihsmm Wada Fund Funds undes Manapement foe 4 731 056 3,506,316
| Aihvamra Weada Plan Vi) manaoEment Dividend income: 677 257 552
Investment in unis of funds imder managemont 16,522 515 564,045 308
Redemplion of unils of funds under management 160,916,244 420 974 BAZ
Rembursement of allocated exponses 2630 265 1.697.235
Reimburserment of seling and marknfing cxpenses 26 874 441 -
‘Aihamra Wada Fund [Funds under Manapemant fes 2524 449
{Adhamra Wada Pian Vill) mansgement Rembursement of allocated exponses 134 86T
Reimburserment of seling and marknfing cxpenses 530 384
Ahamra Wada Fund Funds under Manzgemant foa 205,000
[ Adhamra Wada Plan [X) manEement Rembursement of allocatnd expenses 47 757
Rembursement of selling and markeiing cxponses 167,879
Aihamra Wads Fund Funds-under Management foo 4 150 282
{Adhamra Wada Plan X) manEement Reimbursement of allocatnd expenses 584,11
Rembursement of selling and markeiing cxponses 3,655,000
Aihamra Wads Fund Funds-under Management foo 10,490,995
[ Adhsamra Wada Plan XI) manEement Reimbursement of allocatnd expenses 398,555
Rembursement of seiling and markefing cxponses 6,565 613
Mhamra Wads Fund [Funds wndor Manapement fog 1,388,345
{Adamra Wada Plan XI) manEement Reimbursement of allocatnd expenses HE6H
Rembursement of selling and markeiing cxponses 883615
MCE Pakzctan Fixod Rotum Funds-under Management foo 405 685
Fund (MCB Pakistan manEement Diwidend come 2162 141
Fixed Rotum Plan 1) Imvestmant in unils of funds under managemend 1,837,820
Redemplion of urils of funds under managamentl 171557 421
MCE Pakzstan Fioed Retum [Funds under Manapemant fes 2846 757
Fund (MCE Pakistan mansgement Dividend ncome 2312
Fixed Raotum Plan 1) Reimbursement of allocasied cpenses 541,750
Roimbursemont of seding and markefing oxpenses 504 520
Imvestment in unds of funds under managoment 723360
Rexdesmpion af units of finds undor managemiont 28,570,996
MCE Pak=tan Foood Retem Funds imder Manspemernt foo 213898
Fund (MCB Pakisfan management Dividond incema 1,305.440
Fieed Retum Plan 1) Invesiment in onsts of funds under managemont 41,109 624
Redemplion of units of funds under managemient 41,100 624
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year anded
K o Retationshig and percentage Mt I § June 30, June 30,
pediny party of shareholding - 2024 2023
—— (Rupess) ——
MCE Paksstan Fiaed Rolum [Fursds under Mmnagemeni foe 1,370,780
Fuind (MCB Pakiztan EnarEEL Dividond Foomn 125780
Find Retmn Plan V) Reimburssmend of sffocaled exponses 322 085
Remmbursemen of seliing and marksing oxponses Tal6
Ireestment in unils of funds wder managemenl 20,711,118
Redemplion of units of funds under managoment 21,002 243
MCE Pakstan Foed Rotun Tunds undar Marzpominl fee 11,961,554
Fund (MCB Pakistan managemen| Dividend incoms: 55,944
Fixed Rowm Plan V) Reimburssmend of sfocaled exponses 6,003 485
Rembursement of solling and markaling oxpenses 3,953 506
Invosinuont in wnits of funds wnder managenonl 12,103 061
Redemption of undls of funds under ranagemont 12,114 878
MCE Pakstan Fiad Rebun Tunds undor Manpominl e 7,258,670
Fund {MC8 Pakistan managemen| Dividend incoms 52 862
Fixed Fietum Plan V) Reimbursement of sllocaled expensas 3010376
Rembursarmond of soling and markolEng cxponses 1961311
Invistrmant in wis of fumds under managemant 26431 910
Redemplion of urds of funds under management 26,535 854
MCE Pakistan Foed Return [Funds under Manzpemont foe 185,716 T3 538
Fund {MCB Pakistan management Dividend come: - 308726
Fixeed Roostusm Plan Vil Roimbiirzament ol allbcated copensis 147 361 16312
Reimburssmen of seling and meskelng oxpenses . 38 B0B
Invistrmant in wis of funds under managemant 5,034 261 115642 048
Redemplion of urds of funds under managemaent 16,358 743 107 072 655
MCE Pakstan Fioed Return TFunds wndor Manapemont o 861274
Fund {MCE Pakislan Mt Divndond oome 26871
Fized Retum Plan 1) Retmbursemen of allocated capensas 4 175 BRS
Reimburssmend of seling and maskelng oxpenses 1,668 643
Investment in unds of funds under management 10,977 543
Redemplion af unils of furids under management 10 942 872
MCE Pakestan Fied Robun Funds wnder Manspemint loe 3244 342 J243
Fund {MCE Pakislan Mt Remmbursement of alocslnd exponses 2158847 24186
Fized Retm Plan X) Riimbursemend of sofing and marketng oxpenses 502 287 -
MCE Pakstan Fioed Return TFunds wndor Manapemont o 2,547 23
Fund {MCE Pakislan Mt Divndond oome 8,930
Fized Retum Plan K1) Rimbursemend of allocaled capensas 1427 34
Invesimant in units of funds under managomant 55,800 605
Resdermption of units of funds undor management 56 404 724
MCE Pakiztan Meed Rotam Funds under Management foo 12 462 GRA 462 B33
Fund (MCB Pakistan manapeEment Reimburaemaent of slfocaled sxponens 734 653 233475
Fiend Retum Plan xi)
MCE Pakizlan Fiued Ratumn [Fuansdi wander Managoment oo 35322 300 333085
Fund (MCH Pakistan rRnagment Rembursemend of allocaled soponses 6821, 581 161311
Fixed Rolum Plan X1 Remmbursemen of seling and marksing oxponses 14,475,760 -
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Roturn Funds wnder Manspement foe 5306498
Fond (MCE Pakistan management Resmbursement of allocaled exponses 241979
Fimed Relum Plan XIV)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relationship and percentage . June 30, June 30,
Wi ok s 1t pacty of sharshoiding T 2028 2023
— (Rupees) ——
MCE Pakistan Fiotd Rotum Funds undor Manspement foe 13,667 521 <
Fud (MCB Pakistan management Rembursement of afecated exponsas &27 BG5S -
Fied Feturn Plan £V Reimbursement ol solling and markobng oxpensoes 273418 -
MCE Pakskan Fooed Rotum [Furds under Management oo 18,374,789 -
Fused (MCB Pakizlan EEfi AR Raimbiitamnint of alscalnd expanees 1420 374 -
Fized Fotum Plan XV1) Remburssment of sofing and markeing openses 15299 221 -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds under Manapomient foe 4 45T RGO <
Fud (MCB Pakistan management Rembursement of afecated exponsas 253 697 -
Fixed Freturm Plan £VIE) Reimbursement al solling and mearkobng oxpensoes 2 B36 468 -
MCE Pakistan Fioed Rotum [Furids undor Munagement feg 13457324 -
Fused (MCB Pakizlan EEfi AR Raimbiitamnint of alscalnd expanees 852 ar2 -
Fized Fotum Plan XV Remburssment of sofing and markeing openses TAM AN -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds undor Mamsgoment foe 1,735,360 -
Fud (MCB Pakistan management Diwidind moomo 685, 540 -
Fieed Feturn Plan 1) Invostmant in wils of funds wdes management 10.551 208 -
Reimbursemonl of allocaled exponses 916,645 -
MCE Pakistan Fiood Riotum Funds wnder Managemant foe 2,750,371 -
Fund (MCH Pakistan management Dividond excome 463 818 -
Fisdd Ficsturm Plan XX} Imvestrmant in whiels of funds undor managemion 10,358,963 -
Redemplion ol urdils of funds under manasgementl 10468 S63 -
Remburssment of aliocaled exponses 5622 -
Roesmbursement of solling and markeing oxponses 1,746,366 -
MCE Pakstan Fixed Rofum Funds: umder Managpement fos 2542 A35 -
Fumned [MCB Pakistan management Reimbursement ol allecated expenses 317 oary -
Fiad Rt Plan x00) Raimbiitasmiont of soling and matkoing aipanses 1421453 -
MCH Pakistan Oppotiurly Furds under Managemont fee .56 531 1,505,425
Fumed (MCB Pakistan manapement Diividiond keoome 5289 A18 -
Dvidend Yicki Plan) Sales load 359,230 -
Retmbursemizn] ol alocaled cxponses 210,991 -
Remburssmont of sofing and markeing openses 40,793 -
Irvestment in ot of funds weder managomont 79,498 910 5,000,000
Redempion of undls of funds under managemenl 194 557 217 10,00, 000
Alhamra Cash Managemen Funds under Management foe 44 550 187 1,565 748
Oplirrdzos iR Raimbiitasnnt of alecalnd sxpanses 739174 T4 506
Romburserant of sollng and markoing openses AT B2 042 504 894
Sales load 3,206, 76T BH3,969
Ivvestmanl in wets of funds e managomont Hixzmz 10,150,094
Rodempticn of units of funds undor rmanagement 224 539 204 -
Onvidend inscomi: 20628 176,587
Athamra Opponunity Fund Funds under Management foo 1,609,830 -
(Dvidennd Strabogy Plan management Reimbursement ol allecated cxpenses 42134 -
Reimbursemonl of soling and markolng opensis 184,823 -
Sales load 36,833 -
Invostmant in wils of funds wdes management 20, (02 480 -
Redomption of uts of funds undor managemonl 21 656076 -
Diwnidend isoome 2830 -
MCE DCF Frood Riotum Fund [Funids wder Manmpement fog 1,267 230 X
(MR DCF Fixed Rofum Plan 1) managemont Rembursement of afecated exponsas 17841 -
Reimburzemizn] of sclling and markebng oxponscs 526 461 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relationzhip and percertage June 3, June 3,
S 0 D0 e Pty of sharshaiding et p s 2024 2023
—— (Rupessj ——
MCE DCF Fooad Retum Fund Funds under Managemant oo 115,15 i
(MCE DCF Fixed Rotum Plan )  managomoent Romburserent of aiocaled cxponses 120,033 -
Rembursemoen! of soliitg and markalng oipenses 401,269 -
Alhamra Government Soombes Funds: umeer Management foe 18,852 -
Fud (Adsiemiras Govormammant management Rembursement of afocated exponses 1,624 -
Seaunbes Plan 1) Reimbursemin] of sclling and markelng oxponses 1,482 -
Investment in et of furds under managomont 50,000 000 -
Muharmmnad Saogh Saleom Ex-Chiol Exocutive Officer Lean dishursed during e year - 12 500,060
Lisaiy rexpumd cuirimg e yezar 10,562 158 13,847 498
inlerest moome on loan 51,891 1,168 BOG
Procouds from dsposal of fixed sl B -
Amount outstanding as at year end
MCB Bank Limitod Paronl comary wilh Bank balances 17,589 102 50,1594 BES
B1.42% sharchoking Ohvezr pay'abile 7,084 138 5,609 242
{2023 81 425% sharcholding)  Commesson feryvabie 61912722 16,590, 569
MCE kslamic Bank Limiled Subsidiiary of tha Bank balances 1 204 Jrzg4s
Paronl Company Accrued peofil on savings account 2 556 -
Commession peryablo 222 M4 -
Adamies Lo Assirancs Getip Comany Advienry oo naciablo 130,000 .89, ral
Cormpatvy Limibod Propaid sstrsno 1.742.822 147 177
O piayabile 1,740, 57 -
Adarmes InsuErance Company Group Cormay Propaid gesurancn 12502 263 12,975,808
Lirmibesd of Paront Cormpamy
Muitissl Fisds Associalion Associaled Comparny by viris  Investmanl in shanes 265,000 265 000
of Pakistan of common dinectorship of
M. hawas Khall Shah
MCE DCF ncome Fand [Funds wmder Remuneratsog vl 21,386,185 10,246 441
ranagement Sales load recevabln 12.539,138 7.16%8.969
Rocohvable agansl roimbursement of alibcaled coponses 1,004 378 604,510
Recoivabls againet selling ard markeling exponsos 11,427 626 7 B33, 175
Back ond load rocmvable 1008822 59470
Federad oxcise duly an remuneralbion 95 (60437 99 060 437
Fodoral excise duly on saies load 27 832 590 27932 680
MCB Pakistan Assel Funds under Remuneration mceivabls 1,846 176 1 568 222
Mlication Fund EEfipEnan Salees oad mecaivable 109 1,665
Recoivabls aganrst roimbursement of alibcalod exponses 43,854 50116
Hecoivabln against solling and marketing oxpenses hE2 404 -
Fodetal aecist duly on farmimaralion 19,027 350 18,007 350
Fondisral encise duty on sk |nad 16:172,855 16.1¢2.855
MEB Cash Management Funds under Remuneralion mcaivabs 30,005 156 40 988 104
Ciplirmizor mathagement Balis load roceivable - -
Recowable agains! reimbursemont of aliocstod exponses 2 782 229 -
Recelvable against solling and markeling expenses 29,014 891 61,483 500
Fodorsl excise duly on remanerabion 54 266 812 54 266 B12
Fodoral oxcree duty on ssbes load 18,788 18,708
Invostmaent held nunils of lunds under managemenl 342 XA 033 367 18 41
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retationship and percentage June 3, June 3,
Mame of the refated party ol b Nature of iransacfion L e
————{Rupees) ——

Alhzmra alamac income Fund Funds wndor Remuneralon reoevabs 7385657 2,736 856
s agement Sales load recetvalble 3,103,420 6L 538
Back e I recenvable 128,545 464 TBT
Recoivabis agmmrsl renmbursement of aliocsled expenses B 607 352 036
Rlescatvalile agaivsl saling and marheling sxpensces 9104 276 2485 573
Restnivably agmis! sharah advisor loe 30,000 E,000
Fedoral axcise duly on ramunesaion 8639163 B.535 163
Foderal eacise duly on sales Inad 3,04 38K 3 028 386
Ittt held w5 umls of lunds uhder Makasement - 6,310,240
MCE Pakzstan Siock Markol Funds under Remuneralicn mcaivabin 20,345 24K 9,264 250
Fad managEment Sales load rocevabls 331,789 1,691
Recatvable againsl reimbursemenl of slocsed expanses 454 583 400,923
Rivtamvable agairet salling snd markeling oxpesssos 5,231 386 17 550,750
Fodaral axcise duly on remnerabion 54,173,835 54,773,935
Foderal eacise duly on sales Inad 3,532 FA3 3937 BRI
Pakislan Incarma Fund Furwds undar Resmumaralioen recaivablis 1.0 oA 1,062 782
Al Sales joad recivahls 22098 2 MBARS
Hecoivabls agairsl reimbursement of allocsted oxpensas 132,783 250,034
Rocoivabls agmnsl salling and markeling expenses 1,621 908 4 81 580
Fondirral ontise duly on romdnoralion B.210,245 8210245
Foderal excise duby on saes load 238,198 235,198
MCB Pakeslan Sovereagn Fund Funids: uinder Hemunaration roceivabls 10,334,654 53
s Tl Salees oad mcevabla 120,01 g B
Retoivabie asnsl reambursement of aliocsled expenses £54 396 0,540
Recotvalle agains! salling and marketing expenses f.215,0M B71,845
Fodaral anciss duly on ramunaralion 290776874 20027 874
Fedoral axcise duly on sales load 4 164,840 4,165 B40

Invesimenl hold nurils of lunds under massgoment 354 946 966 -
Pakistan Capital Markel Fund Funds under Remuneralion moeivabls 1,501,110 1,044 B52

irananement Balis load reconvabls 167 -
Recorabis agmnsl reanmbursement of aliocsled expenses 13833 27596

Recatvable agains seling & markeding expenses IBR 582 -
Feadaral onciso duly on remunarabion S.ET2 250 5812250
Fedoral axcise duly on sses load 2 1427 362, 142
Alhamea Jalarmic Stock Fund Funds: wdi Resmuneratin receivabi 11349473 4 634,835
managemeant Sales lnad recenvabla 108 627 1,822
Recoivabis agmns] mimburssment of alocsied exponses 255,165 205,081
Riscarvails ansirsl salling and markeding expinsas 2B16057 B.47%,359
Recaivalls agains! sharab advisor les 30,000 2,000

Invastmant hold i unils ol Tunds under masspement - -
Fedaral axcise duly an remnderabion 5685 242 Se8n.242
Fedarad sxcise duly on sales load 124 913 124 813
Pakistan Ponsicn Fund Funids winder Resmunaralion rocavabls 5234 700 bl S
ananemenl Sales foad receivahls 240,358 114518
Investment hold in wnils of lunds undier mansgement 397, %0 260 35,098 B9
Fodatal aacies duly on famuneralion 5976465 5.0/6 465
Alhamea Isiarmic Assal Funds under Remuneralien mcaivabin 4 437 483 4 0024939
Allocabon Fund MEnapemeEnt Sales oad recenable B0 T
Recatvable againsl reimbursemenl of slocsed expansas 10, 46 107 348

Rescnivabbs agmisl ealling & markoling aperaes 1,710,729 i
Retoivabie somnst sharfah sdvisor fes 30,000 0,000
Foderal eacise duly on remunerafion 5910 300 5,910 300
Fodatal aactss duly on saies load 1,135 845 1,035,845
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relation=hip and percetage June 3, June 3,
e L 00 tuad padly of sharshaiding et e 2024 073
——— (Rupees) ————
Alhamra |skamic Pension Fund Funds under Remuneralion moceivable 2845 281 1,540 395
matiagement Sales load recenvabile 212355 218878
frvestmoent hold e units of unds under maesgemonl 400,343 021 325,504 {59
Fodoral axtise duty on remuneraion 3 (30 332 3,030,332
Fakistan Sarmiaya Mahfooz [Funds umder Fodoral excise duly on ramunerabion 1,560 082 1,865,082
Fund msnagemant Foadoral caclss duly on sk load 2307 278 2307278
Pakistan Cash Managsranl [Fiifids urider Resiiinaralion fcoiab 18,501 702 12,524 358
Fumd ImENARemOng Sales oad recehable 11,257 -
Recehvabie agains reimbursemenl of allbested exponsos 1457 Bi4 1,004 115
Rescobvabl sgmiret solling and markcling caponses 17,183 B10 23 12 4
Fodoral excise duly on ramuneraion 11,932 A84 11,932 884
Pakistan Income Funds under Remuneralion moceivable 6,437 370 552 915
Enkancomant Fund management Salis oad recevabls 109 287 337033
Recotahis agamsl rommbursemoent of aliocsted exponses 404 537 151,198
Recolvable against solling and matkeling cxpenses 45311502 1,017 818
Fodotsl oaciss duly on femimeralion 16,589,808 16,580,808
Fordoral axciee duly on sabes inad 474622 4,746,222
Alhamra lslarmic Money Marka! Funds under Remuneralon meaivabe 10458 474 12368 372
Fusned matiagement Salis load recenvable 30068 111.73r
Recoable agains! roimbursemont of aliocsted cxponses 1,316,115 -
Recolvable against solling and matkeling cxpenses 15222 242 14 560, 974
Recoivable agatet shariah advisor foo 30,000 €0,000
Fodoral axcree duty on rermumdration 840 141 840, 741
Foderal eacise duly on sabes Inad 3,584 040 3,584 040
Adhamra dsiarmic Active [Funds wmder Remuinerateod vl 5583 4553
Allecation Fond [Afamma manasement Recoable agans! roimbursemont of aliocsted cponses - 933
Smart Portiolo) Irvestmant held i units of funds under management 125112483 85483 539
Alhmra Daily Oredond Fund Funds under Remuneralion reconabie B3.4943025 1,607,636
mrenapement Payable agalnst bank charges 43149 11,678
Recobvabl agmns! reimbursement of alibealod oxponses 1,005,735 -
Recoivabls againct selling and markoling oxponses 13,204 332 5,736,806
Sales load reoohvable 14,551 SE21M4
Alhzmra Wada Fund [Furds umnder Remuneration meoivabis - 3562 205
{Adhismra Wasda Plan VIl ImENApemont Recorahis agamsl rommbursemoent of alibcsted exponses - 1,697 226
Recolvable against solling and matkeling cxpenses 13,862 443 -
Ivuestimant hold & unils of funds undor reksgemont - 141,351 835
Alhamra Wads Fond Funde wnder Remuncratn mooiyabin SE0.6r4 -
(At Wesda Plan \VilT) management Recotvable againsl reimbursement of allncaled cxpenses 6341 -
Rescoivable agamel solling 2nd marketing expensos 528 21 <
Alhamra Wada Fund [Furds wnder Remuncraton ooyl 232 pET -
[ Adbrsieites Wk Play X} B Rescobvabbs sgmrs! raimbursemenl of alibeslod axbindes 47 157 -
Recoivabls aganct selling and markoling expensos 167 8T8 -
Ceher recotvablc 100,000 -
Alhzmra Wada Fund [Furds umnder Remuneration meoivabis 1,348,252 -
{Adhamra Wada Plan X) ImENApemont Recorahis agamsl rommbursemoent of alibcsted exponses 235 302 -
Recolvable against solling and matkeling cxpenses 1,594 026
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Retationship and percantage June 30, June 30,
Hame of the related party of sharsholding Habure of transaction 254 s
—— (Rupess| ——
Alhamra Wads Fund Funds undor Remuneration recairabls £ 350,507
(Mdhamra Wada Plan XI) mznagement Receivable against reimbursement of allocaied cxponses 456310
Recoiable soainst solling and markeding sxponses 4188234
Aihamm Wada Fond [Funds umdes Remuneraton recoivable 1,522 067
| Aihvamra Weada Plan X1H) manaoEment Recojvable against reimbursement of allocsind eopenses {48 366
Rescoivable soainst eefling and markeling oxponses 883 6514
MCB Pakestan Fied Rptem [Funds umdes Recoprmable agams! reimbursemont of allocated exponses 175464 6,003,485
Fund {MCB Pakistan manaoEment Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 3,853 506
Fixed Retum Plan V)
MCB Pakestan Fied Rptem [Funds umdes Recoprmable agams! reimbursemont of allocated exponses ZFo 454 3010376
Fund {MCB Pakistan manaoEment Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 1832614
Fieed Retum Plan V)
MCB Pakistan Fied Rotem [Funds umdes Remuneraton recoivable 51,458
Fund {MCB Pakistan manaoEment Recojvable against reimbursement of allocsind eopenses 1273
Fieed Retum Plan VI Investment hield & units of funds undor mansdgoment 10371, 795
MCE Pakéstan Fied Retem Fumds under Recobrable against reimborsemont of allocated exponses 4 378 680
Fund {MCB Pakistan manaoEment Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 1,668 643
Feed Retum Plan [X)
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Furds umdaer Remuneration recaivablo - 36,650
Fund (MCB Pakistan management Receivabls sgainst rembursement of allocated oxpensos 1,430,256 24186
Fixed Retum Plan X}
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds wndor Recoivabie agamst reanmbursament of allocaiod expenses 1,265,348
Fund (MCB Pakistan management
Fixed Returmn Plan X1)
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Furds umdaer Remuneration recaivablo - 572 B45
Fund (MCB Pakistan manpement Receivabls sqmnst rembursement of allocated oxpensos Ti7 825 273875
Fixed Retum Plan X1)
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Furds umdaer Remuneration recaivablo TAT3 740 376 396
Fumd (MCB Pakistan management Receivable against reimbursement of allocatod cxpeneos 1,133 518 161,311
Fixed Raeturm Plan K1) Receivable aganst selling and markefing cxpenses 5,330 887 -
MCE Pakestan Fixed Rotum [Funds wndor Recoivabie agamst reanmbursament of allocaiod expenses 1,425,652
Fund (MCB Pakistan management
Fixed Fetum Plan X1V
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Retum [Funds umder RemuneTation receivabie 8287 712
Fund (MCE Pakistan mansgement Recobrable against reimborsemont of allocated exponses 1.207 732
Fixed Raotum Plan XVi) Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 9837 B73
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Retum [Funds umder RemuneTation receivabie 2 100,750
Fund (MCE Pakistan mansgement Recobrable against reimborsemont of allocated exponses 208,230
Fixed Rotum Plan XV Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 1,752 488
MCE Pakzstan Fixed Retum [Funds umder RemuneTation receivabie 73T 554
Fund (MCE Pakistan mansgement Recobrable against reimborsemont of allocated exponses 790 465
Fixed Rotum Plan XV Recoivable against selling and markeling cxpenses 6,798 253
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

Year ended
Relationship and percontage June 30, June 30,
o of e twialng porty of sharshoiding N ey 2024 02
e L
MCE Paidsian Foed Retam Funids umder Remuneration receivabis 1,407 280
Funed (MCE Pakistan management Recemnahie against rembursement of alocaled expenses 024 285
Fieed Hetum Plan X1X) imvestment held i units of funds under management 10,608,219
MCE Pakestan Foed Retum Funds wnder Receivahiz against seling and markeing expenses 1,766,387
Fumd (MCB Pakistan management
Foced Rietum Plan X))
MCE Palgstan Fred Refum Funds under Remunerabion receivehie 2794304
Fund (MC8 Pakistan mananement Receivable agamst rembursement of alocsted expenses 342 987
Fexed Retum Plan XX1) Receivable sgainst selling ond markeling expenses 1.466 452
MCE Palsstan Opportunsty Funds under Remunerabion recenvable 456 508 184,525
Fund (MCH Pakistan manageEment Recaivable against rembursement of alocaied expenses 1,602
Dividend Yield Plan) Recemnahie aqainst selling and markesing expenses 345902
Invesiment held & unis of funds under masapement . BO.E5T 447
Ahamra Cash Management Funds under Remuneraton recevabie a,0:83,104 1,651,119
Oipirmizer management Eales Ipad moshshie B2 578 555 66T
Recetvable sganst shariah advsor fee 30,000 -
Recanvable against rembursement of alocaied expenses 1,138 414 74 506
Receivable ageinst salling and markebng expenses 14,207 208 S04 894
Invesiment held & units of funds under manecement - 10,150,100
Aihamra Opportunity Fund Funds under Remuneraton recevabie 24677
(Dveend Strategy Plan) management Sales load recenable 2X5772
Recanvable against rembursement of alocaied expenses 11,808
Recemnahie aqainst selling and markesing expenses 128453
Receivabie agemst thanah advsor e 30,000
Other receivable 105,000
MCB DCF Foosd Retum Fund Funds under Remuneration receivabie 1.431 969
(MCB OCF Fixed Retum Plan ) management Receivablz sgainst reimbursement of afocated sxpenses 17841
Reconahie aqainst sefling and markeding expenses G625 461
MCE BCF Fooed Retum Fund Funds under Remuneration recervabe 808 114
(MCH DCF Fixed Fetom Flan If)  management Recaivahie sgamst reimbursement of alocated expenses 120,033
recensahis sganst seling and markeing epenses 401,268
MCB ffamrs KPK Govemment  Funds umder Remunemtion receivabis 117423
Employees' Pension Fund management invesiment held @ units of funds under mansgement 34 973,994
MCB KPK Govemment Funds under Remuneration recervabe 32,360
Empioyees’ Pension Fund management Imvestment held i units of funds under management 33,105,884
Ahamm Govemment Secunfies Funds under Remuneration recenvabie 21,303
Fund (Adhamra Government manageEment Recaivable against rembursement of alocaied expenses 1,624
Securiies Plan 1) Recemnahie against selling and markeling expenses 1482
(her receivabis 100,000
Investment held i units of funds under management 50,055 950
Muhammad Segih Saleem Ex-Chief Executive (ffioer Loan outstanding 10962 158
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302

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Officer Direciorns Executives
24 Tz 2024 1 mz 2024 I 0z
Rupees.

Managerisl remuneration 18,732 587 17.750. 625 - - 7,772,070 108,587 438
Bonus 17,600,000 17,600,000 - - 64,278,882 65,249, 241
Hatirement benefits 1,158,291 1,375,381 - - 0.544 982 B.441.804
Rent and house mantenance 8,209,856 7297372 - - 51,044 810 45,110,432
Uiidifies 1824413 1621 642 - - 11,343,326 10,026,563
Madical 1,824, 40% 1621634 - - 11,343,302 10,026,535
Car allowancs 14,270 251 11,132,310 - - 114,541,415 79,967,638
Mesting fes -+ - B, 125,000 13,425,000 - -
Others 1,212,132 2 306,502 - - 10,742 446 i 759
Nurmnbar of personis} 2. 1 T 10 38 el ]

Me_ Mutigniad Saqib Saleem measgned as Chiel Executve Offcer duiltng [he pear snd M Khawajs Khall Sheh was sppoidsd i s places

‘Exocullve’ maans an amployes other than (he Chial Excculive and direclors, whoss basic salary oxcebds Hs.
1,200,000 in a financial year.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company operales an approved contribulory provident fund for all s permanent amployees o which egual
monthly cantribulions are made bolh by lhe Company and the employees al the rale of B.33%. ol basic salary. The
fimanciai statomants of the fund are saparately propasod and audiled and are nol included as parl of these financial
slatements. The Fund s maintained by the: Trusloes and all decisons regarding invesimants and distribulion of incoome
ole. are mada by he Truslses indepondent ol he Company.

During the yvear, an amounl of Rs. 19103 million (2023%: Rs. 17.718 million) has bean chargod 1o the stalamenl of profil
or loss in respect of the Company’s confribulions 1o the employess provident fund.

Investmants oul of the provident lund have been made in accordance. with the. provisions of seclion 218 of he
Companies Acl, 2017 and s rules fermutated for this purpose.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Mumber of employees at June 30
- Permaneni
- Probalon
- Conlractual

Average number of employees during the year
- Permanenl
-~ Probalion
- Conlraciual

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assels

Long lerm daposils

Receivable from funds undar managemanl - relalod paries
Loans and advanoes

Other recoivables

Accrued profil on Savings accounls

Investmants

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities

Lease abidity agalivsl Aghil-ol-use assals
Linclaimed dividend

Trade and olher payables

MCB Investment Management Limited "7

2024 2023
226 230
a5 14
2z 18
222 211
28 16
i 18
2024
At Al Fair value
amortised through Total
cost rofit or loss
Rupeos ———
B 646,103 - 6,646,103
442 160500 = 442 160,500
15,256,812 - 15,266,812
45204 409 - 45274 409
4,015 = 4015
- 265,000 265,000
A% 6re 807 - 33678807
543,020,646 260, 000 43 285,640
F3.463 056 = £3.463 058
6,028,302 - 6,028,302
576 482 509 - 516,482 509
655 973 867 = 655 973,864
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3421

3422

MCB Investment Management Limited k]

2023
At At fair value
amortised through Total
cost rofil or loss
Rupees
Financial assets
Long lorm deposibs 6,816,103 - 5.816,103
Recowatde rom funds under management - related parties 307 . 785,542 - 307,785,542
Lowamns and advancas 20,206,398 - 2{) 206, 398
Oither recoivablos 450,154 992 - 45,154 9592
Accrued profil on savings actcounls BE, 189 - 86, 189
Irmvestmeans - 285,000 265,000
Cash and bank balances 65478877 - BB 47857V
445 527 BD1 265,000 445,792 BO1

Financial liabilities
Lease kability against nghl-of-use assets 87.575.812 - 87575812
Unclatmed dividend 5,296,298 - 5,296,298
I'rade and other payables 232 478,829 - Z3ZATH 829

J25. 350,535
P

325,350,939
p—

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Tha Company lunctions as a single operaling segment. The income derived from the managameant fee of open-ended
cillactive investmant schemes and voluniary pension schemes-and income derived from investmoen! advisory fee from
separalely managed accounts constiluted 87 368% and 2.64% (2023 95.13% and 4.87%) respectively of tho lotal
Ihcoine sarmed fom imanagemenl and nvestiment advisory Tes during e yesar

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial risk factors

The Company's activibes exposs it 1o cerfan financal risks whech the management monilors and manages theoogh
Internal risk managemenl on an ongoing basis. In conneclion with the Company's financing of operations, he finance
funcion ensures adeguaste and Bexibbe liguidily. This-is guaraniesd by placing deposits in cash and axdromely liguid
negotiable instruments and § or using avalable credil feclibes.

Financial risks pertain o markel fisk, credit sk and liguidity risk. The Company seeks o minimisae the effects ol these
risks by managing mamcial sssets and abdities o minimiss he risk sxposures. Complrance wilh the policies and the
pxposurg mils are reviewed inlermally on a continuous basis,

Market risk

Markel fisk b the risk thal the falr value or the fulure cash flows of a inanclal instrument may lucluale as a resull of
changes in markel prices {(eg. foregn exchange rates, inlorest rates, sguily prices; ole. ). The objective of markel msk
managemeant s o manage and confrol market nsk exposures within accoptable paramelors, while oplimising the
rerlurms o shaseholders.

The Company’s policy s lo managa markel risk through diversibication and selection of securiies within specified limils
sl by he Board of Divecions.

Marrkot rsk comprises of three types of risk: cumency rsk, yeld § interest rate rsk and other price risk.
Currency risk

Currency rsk = the risk thal the fair value or fulure cash lows of a inancal instrumant will luctusle because ol
changes In foreign exchange rales. As al June 30, 2024, tho Company doos nol hold any sgnificant Bnancial
mstruments hat may exposse the Company 10 cirrency rsk.

Yield | inferest rate risk

Yiedd / inlorest rale risk is the dsk Uhal the lar valuve or lulure cash flows of a imancal instroment will lucluate because
of changes in marke! intores] ks

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
Prasently, the Company holds batances with banks in savings accounts which exposa the Company to cash low profit
rale ek, I case of 100 basis poinls increase | decraasa n applicable rates on the last repricing date with all altesr

variables held constant, the net profil for the year and et asssts of the Company would have been tugher [ lower by
Rs. 00183 million (2023 Hs. 0494 million ).
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b} Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments

As al Jurez 30, 2024, the Company does nol hold any financial assceis thal may exposs the Company 1o fair value profit

rate risk,

Yield /[ interest rale sensithvity posibon of on balance sheet financial instrumenis s based on earier of contractual
repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheel instrumenits is based on the setilement dale.

The Company's yvield [ interest rate sensitivity related to inancial assets and financial iabiliies as atl Juno 30, 2024 can

bz determined as follows:

e |
Effaciive yiedd ! interest | mark-up bearing Man-inferes! | mark-up bearing
ket ral Maturity upio | Maturity afier aturity upie | Maturity fher Tatal
B year oo pear o yas oy
(Rupess)
Financial assets
Loy fermn depasits - - EG4G,103 | 6845103 6646, 103
Hecenetie from lunds undsr managemnd
- relaled parlies - - - 447 160,500 - | 442.380,500 || 442 160,500
Lmns and advances 12.55% 194954 | 3906223 4021971 INZE00 | THFZHEIS| 11235635 15,256 812
Ot recaivebles - - - 45,774,409 - 45374 400 45274408
Accrued prafil on ssings scoounts = - 015 - #4015 4,015
Imesiments - - - 265 000 - 265,000 265,000
Cash and bank belances T.75% - A.50% 18,297 965 - 18,297 965 || 15380842 - 15,380 842 33, 67E.BOT
18.412,978 30906,223 2238142 506307 5606 14 568500 5A) 966 504 543 265 B4
Financial [iabikties
Lemes Rabilily sgainsl nghl-ol-use assels S8 - Z2.48% 42E45580 | JOMITATO | TI463,056 - - - 73,463,056
Unecdaimed diviciend - - - 6,028,302 - 6,028, 302 6,028, 302
Trahe and ol payabiles == =] - || 576482509 - | GTEABRZ. 50 || 5TE4H2 500
4ZE45580 30 MTAT)  TIAGEI058 582 BYDEN - BERIDEY B550T3 BGT
On-balance sheet gap (a3} (2432 66T) (MG911.247) (D1.143.914) (76, 113,295) 4S50 (6154307 (112688221
{Hi-balance sheet financial msiruments = - + - -
Dff-balance sheet gap (b} - - - = =i
Total mterest rete sensilivity gap (a+h) [24232.567) (F5.911.247) (51 143.914) (T6.113.245) 14568538 (61.544307) (112688.237)
Curmufative interest rals sensitivity gap (24232 667) (51.143.914) (102287 B26)
2 .
Efleciive yiéld ) : hlhru;lnr-li-im : mhzr—;:gm -
5 - Mztarity upio | Maturdy 5 1 Baturity upio ity Subfoksl
onE yEST onE yEar ons yeur ons yeE
{Rapees)
Financial assots
Long lorm deposils = = - [ TR ThE] EE16, W03 6,816,103
Recenehis Inom tunds undier rmanagermend
- refated parties . = - 307, 7RG 542 - | 307TBE 5 || 307, THS, 542
Lians and advances 12.36% - 17.00% 2082 115 12416044 | 15099059 146056 | 461283 510730 2 206,388
CHiher recaivablios . - - 43,154,892 - 45154 892 45,154 892
Accrued profil on seangs scoounts - - 56,188 - 56,189 B, 159
b _ = = 265,000 - 265,00 265,000
Cash and bank balances T 5% - 19.90% 48,308,737 - A9 36RTAT || 15,108,840 - 16, 109, 340 &5 478 577
52050852 12416044 BH4AETTMD ML ATEI9 S HIT 388 381335005 4457H2 BOY
Financial [iabikties e -
Lemes Rabilily sgans] nghl-ol-use assels S8 - Z2.48% ¥ 7036 | 6028, TTG| BTSTHEIZ - - - 87 575,812
Unedaimed diviciend - - - 5,2096.298 - 5,296,208 5,296 250
Trzxbe and olhwr payables - - - 32 ATH 879 - | 232478,87 || 232 478 829
X703 SE02BTTH  BTSTRBIZ 297 TR 17 - 23075171 4o, 950,90
On-balance sheet gap (a3} 21103876 (442118370 {23.108016) 133572492 997388 141540ETH 120444862
Off-balance sheet financial mstruments - = - -
Off-balance sheet gap (b} - - - - -
Tota! mt=rest ste sensifivity gap {a+h) 21103876 (44211 832) {23.108.006) 133572382  BEIT.386 143 4EBETH 121,441 862
Curmufative interest rals sensitivity gap Z1.103.816 {73.108.016) {45.276,0%2)
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3423 Price risk

MCB Investment Management Limited 120

Price risk is the risk thal the fair value or lulure cash llows of a nancial Instrument will Mectuale as a resull of changes
in markel pricos (other than those-arising from intarest rate nsk or currency fsk) whather those changes are caused by
lactors specific o the individual linancial instrument or ils Esuer, or Bolors affecling all sirmiar francal instruments
traded i thi markel

As al June 30, 2024, he Company does nol hold any financial assels that expose il 1o prica risk.

GCredit rish

Credil risk is tho rek thal a countarparty will fail to discharge an obligation and causse ha othér panly o incur a linancial
loss. The enfire hinancial assols are subject o credil sk, however (he management bebevos that the Company’s crodit
risk is minimal as major porllen of financial assels comprise ol recelvables from ks lunds under managemeanl which are

lnancally scund. The crodil risk on balancos wilth banks & ateo conskiderod minimal as the balances are kept with
sound linancial institubions.

The Company's financial assals are paither past due nor mpaired as-al e reporling date excepl as disclosed in notes
9.6, 11.1 and 11.3 o lhesa Gnanclal stalemants.

Credil nsk on amounts of receivable from separalely managed accounts i minimal due (o contraciual fghts of the
Company lo selile the recavable belore wilhdrawal ! Hguidalion of underying Invesiments.

Recoivable from funds undoer management

The lalesi available ratings of the Funds in which the mvestments are made or Trom which amounts are recedvable as
al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 are az lollows:

Fund name 2024 2023 Raling agoncy
MCB Cash Managemen! Oplimizer An+HI) Al PACHA
MCEB DCF Incomse Fund A/ AAT) PACRA
Alhamra lstamic Income Fund Al Al1) PACRHA
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund AnT) ABT) PACHA
Pakistan Cash Management Fund ABHT) An+0) PACRA
Pakistan Income Enhancament Fumnd A+ A+ PACRA
Pakistan Income Fund A Ab-() PACHSA
Alhamra Cash Managemanl Oplimlzer AR AA+{T) PACRA
Alhamea istamic Money Markat Fund AAHT) ARl PACRA
Alharmra Daily Dividond Fund A/ AA(T) PACRA
Alhamra Wada Fund AN AA(T) PACRA
MCB Pakislan Fixed Relum Fund AL+ Al PACHA
All other fTunds are nol reguired o be rated.
Bank balances
An analysis of the credil qualily of balances with banks s as follows:
2024 2023 L
= Rati
Short term_| |_Long torm Shortterm | | Long term EAMOCY
Bank Makramah Limited Susponded Suspendod Suspanded Suspendod LA,
MCB Bank Limiled A1+ .Y A+ AAL PACRA
Faysal Bank Limitad Al Al At Al PACRA/ VIS
Bank Allalah Limiled Al AR A+ Al PACRA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A A+ A A PACRA
Askarl Bank Limitod Ads Ah Ads+ Al PACRA

Concentration of credil risk

Concenlralion of credil sk exsls whon changes in econamic of industry faclors similarly allect groups of
counlerpatios whose aggrogale oedit axposune B sgnilicant n relaton 1o the Company's lotal credil exposuia. The
Company’s partioho of linancial instrumenis is broadiy diversified and lransacbons are enlered inlo with diverse cradil-
worlhy counlerparlies thareby miligating any signllican] concenlralions of cradil dsk
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Details of the Company's concentration of credit risk of linancial assets by industrial distribution are as follows:

{ 2024 | [ 2023 ]

[(Rupoas) (Percontage) [Rupoees) (Parcontage)

Commuerclal banks 33,677,734 6.20% 65,550 178 14.71%
Muitual funds 442 160500 B1.39% 307 785542 B9 04%
Cihers 61 442 524 12.41% 72,442 493 16.25%
543,280 558 100.00% 445787 213 100.00%

The maximum exposure o credit fisk before any credit enlancemant as at Juna 30, 2024 i the carrying amount of the
financial assets. Cash in hand, however, s nod exposed (o credil nsk and has boon oxduded from the above analysis.

344  Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk Is the risk thal the Company may nol be able lo generale sufficlent cash resources o setile iis obligations
in full 2= they fall due or can only do so on terms thal are materially disadvaniageous. The management closely
monitors the Company's ligudity and cash flow position. This includes maintenance of balance shoet bguidity ratios
and rational Investmenl! decisions afier aking inlo conslderation the current availabifity of hguid resourcez. As al June
30, 2024, the Company's cash and bank balances amounted to Rs. 33.679 million (2023: Rs. 65479 million).
The management of the Company belleves that i s nol exposed o significzint level of liguidity risk as iis roceivables
are highly liqguid and mostly receivables are from ils own funds.
The table below analyses the Company's financial liabiliies into relovant maturity groupings based on the remaining
peried from the reporting date o the contraciaal maturity date. The amounls o the table below are contracisal
undiscounted cash flows:
2024
Contractual Carrying Maturity Maturity
cash fllows amount uplo one afler one
Financial fabilitics Rupees
Loasa kability against right-of-use assels 85,640, 144 73,463 006 52 058 316 33,581,828
Unclaimied dividend 6028302 6,028,302 6,028,302
Trade and olher payvables 976482508 576482509 576,482,509
668,150,955 655873867 634569127 33,581 B28
in _ 2023
Contractual Carrying Maturity Maturity
cash fllows amounl uplo one aflar one
Financial liabilities Rupoes
Lease lmbility against righl-of-use assets 107 573,754 BT 575 812 43 053 256 B4, 520 498
Unclaimed dividend 5,206 298 5296298 5206298
Trade and other payables Z3ZATBB29 232478829 232478829
345 348,881 325350939 280878 383 £4.520.498
345 Operational risk

MCB Investment Management Limited 1

Operational rick is the rsk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide varlety ol causes associated with the processes,
tachnology and infrastrocture supporting the Company’s operalions either internally within the Company or extermally at
the Company's service providers, and from extemal factors other than credit, market and liguidity risks such as thoso
arising from legal and regulalory requirements and generally accepled sfandards of investimenl management
befaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s acliviies.

The Company™s objective s 1o manage operaional risk so as |o balance financial losses and damage (o iis reputation
with achieving iis investment objective of generating returns for investors.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk resis with the
Baard of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the contrals in the following araas:

- requirements for appropriale segregation of dulies between varous funclions, roales and responsibilibes,
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- roguirements Tor the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
- complianco with regulatory and other logal requirements:
- documentaton of controls and procodures;

- roguirements for the poriodic assessment of oparational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procoedures
o address the. nsks identified;

- pthical and business standards, and

- sk mitigation, mduding insurance whera this is sffective.

Senior management ensures that the Company's stafl have adogquate training and experience and fosters effective
communication related o operational risk management.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objective when managing caplial ks o safeguard the Company's abilily to continue as a going concern
=0 that it can conlinue o provide retums for sharcholders and benefits for othor stakeholders and 10 maintain a strong
capital base o support the sustained development of its businesses.

Tha Company 5 subject o extermnally imposed mindmum equity reqguirement of the NBFC Rules 2003 and the NBFC
Regulations 2008 for providing asscl management services and investment advisory sorvices and i reguired to
rmaintain minimum equity of Rs. 200 million. The Company's paid up capital i above the minimum reguired threshold
lirnlL

Tha Company sels the amount of capital in proportion 1o risk. The Company manages the capital struciure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic condiions and the rsk characlenslics of the underlying asseis.
Currently, the Company is financing its operaions through equilty and working capital

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair valuo is the price that would be received to scll-an asset or paid to transfer a liabiity in an orderdy transaction
between markel participants al the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arse between camylng values
and the fair value estimates.

Underying the definition of fair value |s the presumplion thal the Company is a going concern withoul any intonticn ar
requiremant to curlail materally the scate of ils operations or o undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The: estimated falr value of all financial assets and liabilities = considered nol lo be significantly different from camrying
values as tho ilems are eithor short-term in nature of are panodically repriced.

Fair value hierarchy

Intemational Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement” requares the Company o classily fair value
measurements using a far value hierarchy thal moflects the significance. of thoe inpults used in making the
measuremants. The fair value hierarchy has the following loveds:

Lewel 1. guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

- Lewsl 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assel or labilily, aithar
directly (L. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices), and

- Lewsl 3:inputs for tho asset or liabifity that are nol based on observable markel data (i.e. unobsarvable inputs).

As al June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, the Comgany held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

2024 B
ASSETS Level1 || Level2 || Lewveld || Total
Rupoos
Financial assots "at fair
value through profit or loss'
Investment in sharos = . - 265,000 265000
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2023
ASSETS Levelt [| LlevelZz [] Leveld [] Total
Rupees
Financial assets ‘at fair
value through profit or loss®
Investment in shares * . 265,000 265 000

These represent shares of Mutsal Funds: Association of Pakistan which have beon camied at cost since their fir valud s not
considored (o be matenally different from s carryrg amount. Accondimgly, the disclosures with respect o leval 3 financeal assels have
niol been ghwen,

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors in s mesting held on have proposed a final ¢ash dwvidend in
respect of the year ended June 30, 2024 of Rs. per share ( %) [(2023: Rs. 5.50 per share {55%)]].
These financial statements do not include the effect of these appropristions which will be accounted for subsequent to
the year end.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial slalements were authonsed for Bsue on Seplember 25, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off o the nearest Rupees, unless otherwise specified.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Comesponding figures have been rearanged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, for the purposes of

companson and o reflect the substance of the transactons. The following major reclassifications have been made in
these finanoal statemenis dunng the cument year:

Amount
Description Reclassified from Reclassified to (Rupees)
Input {2 adjustmen! agains! Taxation - netl Trade and other 6,250,375

sales lax paysble payables

e zf'-a;':;.«:{ o
ﬁ:.-*;--;/"":: \ Maﬁv\ Wuﬂiipv

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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BALLOT PAPER

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST
FOR POLL AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON

o 2Hth Octn (24 at 11: a ipe Hall, Ramada Cr
Eulfigar Street 1, DITA Phase YITF, Karachi, Pakisian
Designuted email address of the Chairman st which the duly filled in balled paper may be gent: Chalrmana mebfunds.com

Folio No. / CDC Account | Sub-Account No.
Mame of sharehaldesjoint shareholders

Repgisiered Addresy
Numibe of shares held o o
CHICMNICOR Mumier or Passpor: Mumnbey {in case of Foreign national) ;
feopy to be attackied)
Additional Information and enclosures (Tn case of represensative of body gorporate, comporation and Federt Govemment, |

Mame of Awtharized Represgnintive

Authorized Bepresentative’s CNICNICOF Mumber of azepogt Number
{1 cose of Foceyga notional) icopy to be atiached) |

Copy of Board Resolution / Power of Aftomey of body corporale,
corpototion and Federal Governmenl

Trwe higreby exercise my/onr vote in respect of the Tollowing resolutionis) throngh postal hallet by conveving mvfour sssent or dissent
i the followlng resolutlonis) by piacing tick (V) mark in the appropriare box below idelefe a5 appropriate;

Ma. of IWe gysent | 1'We dizssent
ardinary Lo the o the
MNaiure and Deseription of resolutionis) shares fur Eosolution(sd | Resslotionis)
which {FOR) TAGATINST)
VHEES COS]

Sr.
M.

1. Special Resolution { Agenda No. 5}

“RESOLYED THAT subject to pnor approval of the Secunties and Exchange
Commission of Pakistim {the Commussion) undes Bule 5(6ih) of the Mon-
Banking Finance Companies |Esmblishment jnd Reguloticn) Bules, 2003 (the
Rules), afier clavse 3 addibon of clause 3/, and 3B, (a3 appeasing in the
statement of material foctsh in (e object clonse (I of the Memoranidum of
Aszociation of tw Company, ba hereby appeoved and adopted w vadertoke the
business of REIT Management Services undes the Feal Eatate Investment Tes|
Eegulitions, 2022 and Private Fund Muanagement Services under Private Funds
Regulations: 2015,

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT in addhon fo sforesaid changed m (be
Memogsadum of Association approved by the members s special resolution,
any chanpes in the Memorandum of Associabon ag may be advised and direeted
by Commssion and agreed by the Chief Exequnive of the Company shall be
reated as opproved and sdogted by the members from the date of passing of thg
specind resolunon as part of this Speonl Resolulion wathowt the need of the
members approval and shall have effect nccordingty,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chiel Executive andior Compony
Secestnry agd for Chicl Financial OMicer of the Compaay be and are hercby
Joimily o severally authorized to prepere. finalize, execute and file all aecezsary
docomenrs, and do a1l necessary aoid, deeds. and thirgs in connection thenewith
and ancillary thereto as.may be equired or expedient to give effect to the above
resclution and 1o complate all necessary corporate and legal complinnces and
formalities, ™

Sharcholder / Proxy holder Signature/ Authorized Signatery
{In ¢nse of corporate entity, please aflis company gtamp)

DATE:
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BALLOT PAPER

NOTES:

L Dully filicd postl ballor should be sent o Chomrminn, MOH . Investment Management Limited through post ot Registered Office 2nd: Floar,
Adamiee House, L1 Chondrigar Road, Karachi OR Email Chairmondgsamehiunds.com

Copy of CNICNICOR or Passport (i cese of foreign national) should be enclosed with the posial baliot form, In case of representative of body
gorporate, corporation snd Fedensl Grovermoment, Bogrd Resolution /. Power of Attorney shall plso be enclosed

i

Tk

Pasial bullot tirms should reach charemman of the meeting onor before Saturday, October 26, 2024, 5200 PM (last dole of seceiviog postal badlot)
Amy poktal ballof recerved after thes date, will not be ¢onsidered for vorng

$

Signatere on postal ballot should mancl with signature on CRTCNICOP,

n

Incomplete, unsigned, ineorrect, defaced, worm, mutilated, over wrtten ballor paper will be repected
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FORM OF PROXY
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
On October 28, 2024

The Company Sccretary
MCB Investment Management Limited
2% Floor, Adamjee House, 1.1, Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.
Wive of
in the district of
being & member of MCB Investment Management Limited,
hereby appoint Mr./Ms./Mrs of
. Or Failing to Him / Her appoint Mr./Ms.
Mrs of as

nry/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2024,

Sierature on five Rupees

Feverue Siamp

i The signature shoald ageee wath the specmmen regesterad with the Company)

1. WITNESS: 2. WITNESS:
Signature:; Signature:;

Name: Nume:

Address; Address:

CNIC/ Passport No. UNIC/ Passport No.
Shareholder Folio No.

CDC Participant ID No & Sub Account No.

MNotes:
1. This Proxy Form, duly complated and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company at 2
Floor, Adamjer House, L1 Chundrigar Rooad, Kurachi, Pakistan nol less than 48 hours before the linte of bolding
the meeting. A proxy need not be 2 member of the Company.

2. Ifa member appolnts more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy ure deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of the proxy shall be rendersd invalid,

3. (DC shareholdess and their proxies nre each requested to attnch an attested photocapy of their Compuoterized
Mational Identity Carid or Passpod with this praxy form belore submission to the Company,

4. The proxy shall produce his'her origingl CRIC or original passport st the fime of the meeting,

4, Ip cass of acorporate entity, the Board of Direciors Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be submirted (ualess il has been provided saclier) wlong with proxy form 1o the Company.
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM
MANDATORY CREDIT OF DIVIDEND INTO BANK ACCOUNT

Tos Date:

Dear Sir'Madam,

The undersigned being member of MCB Investment Management Limited (the Company), hereby
authorize the Company that all my cash dividend amounts declared by the Company. from time to time, be
credited into the bank account as per following details:
IHSE‘HMM!JJP 's Details I
Name of the shareholder
Folio No. / CDC Partu.lpaﬂh 1D & Sub Acc. No./CDC 1AS
Account
CNIC/NICOP No. (Please attach copy)
Fd‘ﬁp{'rl‘l Mo, [m case of Foreign ﬂilerian]dm] {Ptuaﬂe attach
copy)
Land Line Phone No.
CE‘H[:I-h'DﬂE No.
(@i} Shareholder’s Bank Details
Title of Bank Account
Bank Account Number
Barik's Naime
Branch Name and Address

International Bank Account Number (IBAN) (24 digil)

It is stated that the above mentioned information is correct that 1 will intimate the change in the above
mentioned information to the Company and the concerned Share Registrur/Participant/CDC (a5 the case
may bej as soon as these oeeur,

Signature of the membersharcholder
(Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity)

Note

L. Please provide complete IBAN afier consultation with your bank branch. In case of any error or omission
in given IBAN, the Company will not be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash
dividend payment.

2. In case of physical shares. a duly filled-in E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the
Company’s Share Registrar M/s Share Registrar M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. CDC House:
99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.8., Main Shahrah-e-Faizal, Karachi.

3. While for shares held in CDC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly fo member’s broker
( participant )/ CDC,
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CONSENT FORM FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY

MCB Investment Management Limited

I'Wwe, . being a member of MCB Investment Management Limited holder of
Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio/CDC Participant ID & Sub-Account/Investor Account Nao.
hereby opt for participation in the Annual General Meeting o be held on

.- 2024 or any adjourned meeting through video-conference facility at

(Please insert name of the Cily)

Date: Signature of member

MNote:

This Standard Request Form may be sent at Share Registrar of the Company at below mentioned address.

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, SM.CH.5,,
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400
Tel: OROD 23275

Email: info(@cdesrsl.com
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MCB INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Head Office; 2nd Floor, Adamjee House, LI Chundrigar Road, Karachl
UAN; [+92-21) 111 468 378 (111 INVEST)

URL: wiww, mchfunds.com, Email: info@mcbfunds.com



